
 
1 

 

 
AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 

BOARD ROOM 
6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 

 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 373 012 992# 
 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by attending the meeting in-
person or by dialing the number provided above. Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board 

Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public 
Comment section of the meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address the 
Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three minutes 
per speaker.   

 
 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 
 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
 
*A Municipal Water District 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


2 

PRESENTATION 

• ADVANCED WATER TREATMENT OPERATOR CHAMPIONS AWARD –
Charles Greely, California Water Environment Association President

1. CONSENT ITEMS

NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members, 
staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate action. 

A. MINUTES
Approve minutes of the September 6 and September 20, 2023 Board
Meetings.

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS
Staff recommends that the Board approve the total disbursements for the
month of August 2023, in the amount of $23,762,590.39.

C. ONLINE LEARNING PLATFORM CONTRACT AMENDMENT
Staff recommends that the Board:

1. Amend Contract No. 4600002974 with Skillsoft Percipio in the
amount of $85,360, increasing the total contract from $119,618 to
$204,979, for two additional years, extending the contract through
September 2025; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment,
subject to non-substantive changes.

D. ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10-2 FOR U.S. BUREAU OF
RECLAMATION WATERSMART DROUGHT RESPONSE PROGRAM:
DROUGHT RESILIENCY PROJECTS FOR FY 2024 GRANT
APPLICATION
Staff recommends that the Board Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-2,
authorizing the General Manager or designee to execute the U.S. Bureau
of Reclamation WaterSMART Drought Response Assistance Agreement
and to submit all required documents to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation.

E. COLLECTIBLE WORK AGREEMENT AMENDMENT FOR GAS
RELOCATION FOR THE NORTH SYSTEM NORTH TRUNK SEWER
SIPHON REPLACEMENT PROJECT
Staff recommends that the Board:

1. Approve the amendment for the Collectible Work Agreement with
SoCal Gas for the gas pipeline relocation in the amount of $172,872,
Project No. EN20064, increasing the agreement amount from
$390,156 to $563,028 (44% increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to approve the final payment of the
Collectible Work Agreement.



 
3 

 

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 
A. APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF NEW REGIONAL SEWAGE 

SERVICE CONTRACT 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 
1. Approve the new Regional Sewage Service Contract for the 

establishment of the provisions governing the collection, treatment, 
and disposal of sewage to the IEUA Regional Sewage System and 
preservation of the right of the first purchase of recycled water; and 
 

2. Authorize the President of the IEUA Board of Directors to execute the 
new Regional Sewage Service Contract with the City of Chino Hills, 
Cucamonga Valley Water District, City of Fontana, and City of 
Upland effective January 2, 2024, subject to non-substantive 
changes. 

 
B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10-3, ESTABLISHING 

IMPORTED WATER RATES AND THE READINESS TO SERVE TEN-
YEAR ROLLING AVERAGE PASS-THROUGH  
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-3, 
Establishing Imported Water Rates and Readiness-to-Serve (RTS) Ten-
Year Rolling Average (TYRA) Pass-Through retroactive to July 1, 2023, 
and rescind Resolution No. 2023-6-5 adopted in June 2023. 

 
C. POLYMER CHEMICAL CONTRACT AWARD 

Staff recommends that the Board: 
 
1.  Approve the award to provide the supply of polymer chemical, 

Contract No. 4600003418, to Solenis, LLC, for an eight-month 
contract, with four one-year renewal options, for a potential total 
contract term of four years and eight months for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $17,000,000; and 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 

non-substantive changes. 
 

D. FISCAL YEAR 2023/24 FIRST QUARTER BUDGET AMENDMENT 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 
1. Amend the annual budget for 69 projects in the amount of 

$18,098,147 and amend the total project budget for 20 projects in the 
amount of $14,389,500 in various funds; and 

 
2. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-1, approving the Agency’s FY 2023/24 

amended budget. 
 

 
 
  



 
4 

 
3. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 

A. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – OCTOBER  2023 
(POWERPOINT)  

 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS  
 

B. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM CARPI AND CLAY 
(WRITTEN) 

 

C. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 
(WRITTEN)  

 

D. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) 
 
E. GROUNDWATER RECHARGE UPDATE (POWERPOINT)  

 
F. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE MONTH 

ENDED AUGUST 2023 (WRITTEN/ POWERPOINT)  
 

4. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
(WRITTEN) 
October 17, 2023 SAWPA Commission Meeting. 

 
B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

REPORT (WRITTEN) 
September 26 and October 10, 2023 MWD Board meetings. 

 
C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 

(WRITTEN) 
October 5, 2023 Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee.  
 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT (WRITTEN)  
September 28, 2023 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting. 
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT (WRITTEN)  
October 5, 2023 CDA Board meeting. 

 
F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 

The next IERCA Board meeting is scheduled for November 6, 2023. 
 
 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN) 
 
 
6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
 
7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 

 



 
5 

A. CONFERENCE REPORTS 
 
 

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District 
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any 
other items of interest. 
 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
  Declaration of Posting 

 
I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or 
dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1A



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
REGULAR WORKSHOP/MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Marco Tule, President 
Steven J. Elie, Vice President 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
Michael Camacho, Director 
 

DIRECTOR ABSENT: 
Paul Hofer, Director 
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Deborah Berry, Controller 
Pietro Cambiaso, Manager of Compliance and Sustainability 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Maintenance 
Adrianne Fernandez, Administrative Assistant II 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
Nolan King, Manager of Information Technology 
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist  
Randy Lee, Director of Finance 
Alex Lopez, Acting Treasurer 
Jason Marseilles, Manager of Engineering 
Travis Sprague, Manager of Asset Management 
Ken Tam, Manager of Environmental Services 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
Jeff Ziegenbein, Acting Director of Operations & Maintenance 

   
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Jennifer Hy-Luk, Executive Assistant 
Monica Nelson, Administrative Assistant II 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Tule called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. Administrative Assistant II Adrianne 
Fernandez led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no additions to the agenda. 
 
 
1. ACTION ITEM 

 
A. AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF SEWER SERVICE TO SPEEDWAY 

SBC DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
Manager of Compliance and Sustainability Pietro Cambiaso provided the staff 
presentation.  

 
Director Hall inquired about various portions of the agreement and noted that as 
the representative for the City of Fontana, she wanted to ensure she had sufficient 
time to reach out to representatives from the City to discuss the agreement. 

 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO, THE BOARD APPROVED 
THE AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF 
SEWER SERVICE BETWEEN SPEEDWAY SBC 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, CITY OF FONTANA,        
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, AND                
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY; AND 
AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, SUBJECT TO NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, AS RECOMMENDED, 
BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Tule 

 
     Noes:  Hall 
 
     Absent: Hofer 
 
 
2. WORKSHOP ITEMS 
 

A. REGIONAL WASTEWATER FEE COLLECTION 
Controller Deborah Berry provided the staff presentation.  

 
    INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

 
B. TOOLS FOR EFFECTIVE MANAGEMENT OF ASSETS 

Manager of Asset Management Travis Sprague and Manager of Maintenance 
Robert Delgado provided the staff presentation.  

 
    INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 
 
C. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE EVOLUTION AND FUTURE 

Manager of Compliance and Sustainability Pietro Cambiaso provided the staff 
presentation. 

    
    INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 

General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that IEUA staff are currently participating in 
the Jurupa Community Services District Confined Space Rescue Symposium.  
 
IEUA will be hosting its second career opportunities open house on September 14 from 
5:30 to 7:30 p.m. at the IEUA event center. This workforce development initiative enables 
members of the public to network with IEUA staff and further the Agency’s talent pipeline. 
  

 
4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

There were no future requested agenda items from the Board of Directors. 
 
 
5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS  
 There were no Board of Directors’ comments.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
President Tule adjourned the meeting at 12:33 p.m. in memory of former Chino Councilmember 
for Glenn Duncan.  

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  OCTOBER 18, 2023 



 

 

 
 

MINUTES  
MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Marco Tule, President 
Steven J. Elie, Vice President  
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
Michael Camacho, Director 
Paul Hofer, Director  
 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Andrew Alonzo, Human Resources Officer 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Andrea Carruthers, Communications Officer 
Francis Concemino, Senior Project Manager 
Erik Cortez, Safety Analyst 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Maintenance 
Jon Florio, Deputy Manager of Maintenance 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Matthew Hanson, Acting Business Systems Supervisor 
Branden Hodges, Environmental Resources Planner II 
Paula Hooven, Acting Budget Officer 
Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I 
Julio Lavenant Berumen, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator-in-Training 
Randy Lee, Director of Finance 
Alex Lopez, Acting Treasurer 
Anne Pandey, Grants Administrator 
Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Government Affairs 
Lauramae Recupero, Business Systems Supervisor 
Aurora Rocha Garcia, Associate Engineer 
Sandra Salazar, Senior Associate Engineer 
Vicky Salazar, Senior Associate Engineer 
James Spears, Senior Engineer 
Kenneth Tam, Manager of Environmental Services 
Ashley Womack, Grants & Government Affairs Officer 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

Jeff Ziegenbein, Acting Director of Operations & Maintenance 
Jamal Zughbi, P.E., Senior Project Manager  

    
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Carolyn Echavarria, Administrative Assistant II 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Executive Assistant 
Linda Johnson, Records Management Supervisor 
Monica Nelson, Administrative Assistant II 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Bill Tomlinson, Senior Accountant 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 

  
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
Nicole deMoet, City of Upland 
Randall Reed, Cucamonga Valley Water District 
 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Tule called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Grants Administrator Anne Pandey led 
the flag salute.  
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Cucamonga Valley Water District Board President Randall Reed addressed the Board expressing 
appreciation for the efforts that have been made to enter a new sewerage contract.  
 
City of Upland Environmental Quality Administrator Nicole deMoet noted that the sewerage 
contract would be considered by the Upland City Council at the September 25 meeting.  
 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no additions to the agenda. 
 
 
NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
The following staff member from the Engineering Department was introduced: 
 

• Aurora Rocha Garcia, Associate Engineer, hired September 18, 2023, Engineering 
 
The following staff member from the Finance Department was recognized: 
 

• Bill Tomlinson, Senior Accountant, promoted August 20, 2023, Finance 
 

The following staff member from the Information Technology Department was recognized: 
 

• Phebe Wang, Principal Control Systems Administrator, promoted September 3, 
2023, Information Technology 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

 
The following staff member from the Operations & Maintenance Department was introduced: 
 

• Julio Lavenant Berumen, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator-in-Training, hired 
September 11, 2023, Operations 
 

The Board of Directors welcomed Ms. Rocha Garcia and Mr. Lavenant Berumen to the IEUA 
team. The Board of Directors congratulated Mr. Tomlinson and Ms. Wang on their promotions. 
 
 
1. CONSENT ITEMS 

 
A. MINUTES 
 

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin) 
 
C. ADOPT POSITION OF SUPPORT ON THE WATER EFFICIENCY, CONSERVATION 

AND SUSTAINABILITY ACT (H.R.5016/2654) (Community & Leg) 
 
D. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-9-1, CITY OF RIVERSIDE TRAINING 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR URBAN AREA SECURITY 
INITIATIVE GRANT FUNDING  

 
E. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH ONTARIO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 

COMPANY FOR PHILADELPHA LIFT STATION FORCE MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 
(Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
F. INLAND EMPIRE BRINE LINE CAPACITY RIGHT AGREEMENT WITH IN-N-OUT 

BURGER (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
G. INSTRUMENTATION MAINTENANCE CONTRACT AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
H. MASTER SERVICES CONTRACT AWARD FOR SAP SUPPORT SERVICES 

(Finance & Admin) 
 
I. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-9-3, ADOPTING THE 2023 HAZARD 

MITIGATION PLAN UPDATE (Finance & Admin) 
 
J. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-9-4, AMENDING THE AGENCY’S 

SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX FOR ALL GROUPS 
 
K. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-9-5, ADOPTING THE 2023 UPDATE TO 

THE RECHARGE MASTER PLAN (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
L. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-9-2, REVISING THE NON-RECLAIMABLE 

WASTEWATER SYSTEM LOS ANGELES COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
NORTH RATES (Finance & Admin) 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

4 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO, AGENDA ITEM NOS. 1A 
THROUGH 1L APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED 
BELOW, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

     
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 

     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 

o Approved the minutes of the August 2 and August 16, 2023 Board Meetings.  
 

o Approved the total disbursements for the month of July 2023, in the amount of 
$29,751,754.55.  

 
o Adopted a Position of Support on the Water Efficiency, Conservation and 

Sustainability Act (H.R.5016/2654). 
 

o Adopted Resolution No. 2023-9-1, authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Riverside and the submittal of required documents 
to the City of Riverside and the California Office of Emergency Services. 

 
o Authorized the General Manager to execute the Memorandum of Understanding 

with Ontario Municipal Utilities Company for the Philadelphia Force Main 
Improvements, Project No. EN23002. 

 
o Approved the sale of two (2) Brine Line Capacity Units to In-N-Out Burger for 

$430,000; and authorized the General Manager to execute the Capacity Right 
Agreement, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Awarded a contract to Hach Company, Contract No. 4600003398, for a three-year 

term for the not-to-exceed amount of $315,000 for maintenance and repair 
services; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes. 
 

o Awarded Master Services Contracts for SAP Support Services to the following 
vendors: Aspire HR, Deloitte Consulting, EPI-USE America, Phoenix Business 
Consulting, Sierra Digital Inc, and V3iT Consulting, in the amount of $400,000 per 
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023 for three-years with two one-year extension 
options, for a total potential contract term of five years, for an aggregate not-to-
exceed amount of $2,000,000; and authorized the General Manager to execute 
the contracts, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Adopted Resolution No. 2023-9-3, adopting the 2023 Hazard Mitigation Plan 

update including any revisions necessary to receive approval by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency and be included in the San Bernardino County 
Office of Emergency Services Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
o Adopted Resolution No. 2023-9-4, Amending the Agency’s Salary Schedule/Matrix 

for all groups. 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

5 

o Approved the 2023 Recharge Master Plan Update with non-substantial changes; 
adopt Resolution No. 2023-9-5, adopting the 2023 Update to the Recharge Master 
Plan; and accepted a joint filing to the Court for the 2023 Recharge Master Plan 
Update with Chino Basin Watermaster. 
 

o Adopted Resolution No. 2023-9-2, revising the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater 
System (Los Angeles County Sanitation District North) Rates for Fiscal Year 
2023/24 retroactive to July 1, 2023, and rescind Resolution No. 2023-6-3 adopted 
in June 2023. 

 
 
2. ACTION ITEMS 

 
A. PROJECT MANAGEMENT, INSPECTION, AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

MASTER CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
Director of Engineering Jerry Burke provided the presentation.  

 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR ELIE, THE BOARD AMENDED THE 
EXISTING AGGREGATE MASTER CONSULTANT 
CONTRACTS FOR PROJECT MANAGEMENT, 
INSPECTION, AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
WITH BUTIER ENGINEERING,                      
CAROLLO ENGINEERS, GK ASSOCIATES, 
MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL,                    
MWH CONTRACTORS, PROJECT PARTNERS, 
WALACE & ASSOCIATES, AND                           
WOOD ENVIRONMENTAL FOR AN ADDITIONAL 
TOTAL AGGREGATE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT 
OF $24,000,000 OVER A TWO-YEAR PERIOD, 
INCREASING THE CONTRACT FROM 
$10,000,000 TO $34,00,000 (240% INCREASE) 
THROUGH DECEMBER 2025; AND AUTHORIZED 
THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
MASTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS, SUBJECT 
TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, BY THE 
FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
  
 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. GRANTS SEMI-ANNUAL UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 
Director of External & Government Affairs Alyson Piguee provided the presentation. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

6 

The following items were received and filed by the Board:  
 

B. 2023 REVIEW OF AGENCY’S PURCHASING CARD PROGRAM – FOOD, 
TRAINING AND TRAVEL PURCHASES (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) 

 
C. 2023 PETTY CASH AUDIT AND FOLLOW-UP REVIEW (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) 
 
D. PROGRESS UPDATE FOR ALL PROCURE TO PAY AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

– SEVENTH UPDATE 
 
E. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2023 

(WRITTEN) 
 
F. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM CARPI AND CLAY (WRITTEN)  
 
G. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT & MATRIX FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 

(WRITTEN)  
 

H. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) 
 
I. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – SEPTEMBER  2023 (POWERPOINT)   
 
J. SAFETY UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 
 

K. FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 FOURTH QUARTER BUDGET VARIANCE, 
PERFORMANCE UPDATES, AND BUDGET TRANSFERS (POWERPOINT) 

 
L. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE MONTH ENDED 

JULY 2023 (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT)  
 

 
4. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  

 
A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY (SAWPA) REPORT 

Director Hall reported that at the September 5 SAWPA Commission Meeting, the 
Commission approved an adjustment to the medical insurance cap from $1,944.00 to 
$2,057.56, which is equal to the ACWA/JPIA 2024 Kaiser Family Plan rate; authorized 
the General Manager to execute a General Services Agreement and Task Order with 
CWE in the amount not to exceed $93,711.00 for the Consulting Services of Surface 
Water Quality Monitoring and received an report on the Headwaters Arundo Removal. 
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA (MWD) 
REPORT 
Director Camacho reported that at the September 12 MWD Board meeting, the Board 
approved a total of 11 action items, including two items directly benefitting IEUA:                
1) awarded a contract for $15.6 million to construct an intertie pipeline between the 
Inland Feeder and Rialto Pipeline. This project is part of water supply reliability 
improvements in the Rialto Pipeline service area, connecting IEUA to Diamond Valley 
Lake by early 2025 and authorizing up to $80 million for additional costs towards the 
design, construction, and operation of Water Bank facilities at the Antelope Valley-
East Kern Water Agency, which will store SWP supplies immediately upstream of 
IEUA. 2) MWD continues its ongoing efforts to update planning assumptions to reflect 
anticipated climate change impacts. Until now, the Board has been considering four 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

7 

plausible Scenarios for supplies and demands in Metropolitan’s future. The Board 
voted to focus on the two scenarios representing unstable imported water supplies 
due to climate change. The findings of this analysis will help to inform MWD future mix 
of water resources and storage programs. 
 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 
President Tule reported that at the September 7 Committee meeting, the Committee 
heard a report on the status of the regional contract. 

 
D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT 

President Tule reported that at the August 24 Chino Basin Watermaster Board 
meeting, the Board approved an Amended and Restated Lease Agreement. 

 
E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT 

Vice President Elie reported that although he was unable to attend the meeting, the 
matters on the agenda were routine in nature.  

 
F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 

There was nothing to report.  
 
 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
Deputy General Manager Christiana Daisy reported that on September 6, IEUA staff 
participated in a Confined Space Rescue Rodeo in partnership with several local 
agencies.  The team included staff from various trades within the Agency, including 
maintenance, electrical and instrumentation, and collections. Teams used various 
methods to transport victims to safety, including dragging, winching, carrying, and hoisting 
through tunnels and up and down a building. The event helped agencies learn about each 
other and improve their skills while raising awareness of the dangers of confined spaces 
and safety procedures. 
 
On September 14, IEUA hosted its second Career Opportunities Open 
House.  Approximately 100 community members attended the event and connected with 
staff from various departments about opportunities at IEUA. 

 
 

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no requested future items. 

 
 

7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND CONFERENCE REPORTS 
Director Hall stated that she attended the ASBCSD General Membership Meeting & 
Dinner on August 21; the Urban Water Institute’s 30th Annual Water Conference from 
August 23 through August 25; the IE Works Strategic Planning Retreat on September 11; 
the WEF Eastern Sierra Tour from September 12 through September 15; and the EUCI 
Leadership Conference for Women in Water/Wastewater on September 19. 

 
Director Camacho reported that he attended the Urban Water Institute’s 30th Annual Water 
Conference from August 23 through August 25; the 8th Annual California Water Data 
Summit from September 7 through September 8; and the San Gabriel Valley Public Affairs 
Network Luncheon Leadership Series featuring Adel Hagekhalil on September 14. 

 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

8 

Vice President Elie reported that he attended the Swearing in for Chino’s New Police Chief 
Kevin Menses on August 17; the Urban Water Institute’s 30th Annual Water Conference 
from August 23 through August 25; and joined Congresswoman Torres for a tour of IERCF 
on September 7. 

 
President Tule reported that he attended the IEUA Career Opportunities Open House on 
September 14. 

 
 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 10:58 a.m. 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(a) – THREAT TO 
PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES  
Consultation with Manager of Information Technology 

 
B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
One Case 

 
The meeting resumed at 12:04 p.m. General Counsel Cihigoyenetche stated that the 
Board discussed Items 8A and 8B with no reportable action. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 President Tule adjourned the meeting at 12:05 p.m.  
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 

APPROVED: OCTOBER 18, 2023 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1B



General Manager

Budget Impact 

Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of August 2023 were $23,762,590.39. Disbursement activity
included check payments of $1,092,923.40 to vendors and $81,987.83 for worker's
compensation related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House
(ACH) of $19,108,636.91 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $1,523,303.92. The total
payroll was $1,946,883.71 for employees and $8,854.62 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of August 2023 in the amount of $23,762,590.39.

 October 18, 2023
  

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements
associated with operating requirements.

On September 20, 2023 the Board of Directors approved the July 2023 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $29,751,754.55.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

23218



Page 1 of 2

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 1,092,923.40
2B Workers' Comp Checks      $        81,987.83
2C Vendor ACHs $ 19,108,636.91
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll)       $   1,523,303.92
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $           8,854.62
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 1,946,883.71

Total Disbursements $23,762,590.39

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

WM LYLES COMPANY $ 5,843,875.16 Professional Svc’s for EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 
30 mgd; EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility.

COUNTY SANITATION 
DISTRICTS OF LA COUNTY $ 2,533,555.67 4th Qtr 22/23 Wastewater Treatment Surcharge

PARSONS WATER & 
INFRASTRUCTURE $ 1,057,320.65 Professional Svc’s for EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 

30 mgd; EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility.

GARNEY PACIFIC INC $   994,857.37 Professional Svc’s for EN17006 CCWRF Asset 
Management and Improvements.

SO CALIF EDISON $  819,446.06 06/14/23 – 08/26/23 Electricity

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $   818,369.10 P/R 16, 17; Dir 08 Taxes



Page 2 of 2 
 

Vendor Amount Description 

CAROLLO ENGINEERS $    595,475.89 

Professional Svc’s for EN11039-RP-1 Disinfection 
Pump Improvements; EN17110-RP-4 Process 
Improvements; EN19051-RW Hydraulic Monitoring; 
EN20057-RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II; 
EN22044-RP-1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase 
Digester; PL21002-NRW Rate Study; RW15003.06- 
Wineville/Jurupa Force Main Improvements. 

INNOVATIVE 
CONSTRUCTION 
SOLUTIONS 

$    548,918.25 Professional Svc’s for EN11039-RP-1 Disinfection 
Pump Improvements. 

 































































































































































Report on General Disbursements

Deborah Berry
Controller

October 2023



• Approve the total disbursements for the month of August 2023 in the amount of 
$23,762,590.39.

2

Staff’s Recommendation

The Report on General Disbursements is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal under Fiscal Responsibility, specifically 
safeguarding the Agency’s fiscal health to effectively support short-term and long-term needs, while providing the best value for our 

customers.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1C



General Manager

Budget Impact 

Online Learning Platform Contract Amendment 

On September 25, 2020, IEUA entered into an agreement with Skillsoft Percipio (Percipio) to
provide its online learning platform services to Agency employees. Percipio provides the
opportunity for learners to participate in self-paced online courses, virtual live courses and
access books and audio books on a wide variety of topics. In addition, Percipio allows Agency
employees to set the course of their own learning and development, engaging in these learning
opportunities on their own time, at their own pace.

The Agreement was initially amended in September 2022 to provide continuous access of the
platform to Agency employees and based on employee engagement and utilization, staff is
recommending to amend the agreement term again to allow for services to continue through
September 2025.

1. Amend Contract No. 4600002974 with Skillsoft Percipio in the amount of $85,360,
increasing the total contract amount from $119,618 to $204,979, for two additional years,
extending the contract through September 2025; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to
non-substantive changes.

 October 18, 2023
  

Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources

Y

Staff Contact:

kcrawford
Cross-Out



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The online learning platform contract amendment supports the business goal of Workplace 
Environment: IEUA is committed to providing a dynamic work environment with a
highly skilled and dedicated workforce.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Amendment No. 2

Not Applicable

23220



Online Learning Platform 
Contract Amendment 

Sheila Esparza
Human Resources Officer

October 2023



2

Of employees are more likely to stay with their 
current employer if more upskilling 
opportunities are provided.

Background

1. Overview

2. User Utilization

3. Contract Amendment

2022 Workplace Learning & Development Trends by Society of Human Resources Management



3

Skillsoft Percipio 
Online learning platform 

Self-paced online courses 

Virtual live courses

Books and audiobooks

Professional Improvement 

Business Operations

Management

Productivity Tools

Leadership



4

Skillsoft Percipio 



5

Skillsoft Percipio 



6

Skillsoft Percipio 



7

User Utilization

923

720

956

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

FY 20 - 21 FY 21 - 22 FY 22 - 23

Number of Sessions Completed

1 Professional Improvement

2 Business Operations

3 Management

Top Skill Areas 



Cost Breakdown 

8

Contract Amendment 

Based on Agency employee engagement and utilization, staff is recommending to extend the contract 
through September 2025.

This will increase the contract from $119,618 to $204,979.

Year Cost Running Total 

1 (initial) 2020 – 2021 $39,091 $39,091
2 (initial) 2021 – 2022 $39,091 $78,182
3 (current) 2022 – 2023 $41,437 $119,618
4 (renewal) 2023 – 2024 $42,680 $161,294
5 (renewal) 2024 – 2025 $42,680 $204,979



1. Amend contract  No. 4600002974 with Skillsoft Percipio in  
the amount of  $85,360, increasing the total contract amount 
from $119,618 to $204,979, for two additional years, 
extending the contract through September 2025; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract 
amendment, subject to non-substantive changes.

9

Staff’s Recommendation 



10

Questions



Page 1 of 2 
FY24-00215469McGhee 
O-1044455

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO LETTER AGREEMENT DATED 25 SEPTEMBER 2020 

BETWEEN SKILLSOFT (US) LLC AND INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 

This Amendment No. 2 together with any Exhibits attached hereto which are hereby incorporated by reference (the “Amendment No. 2”)  is effective as 

of 25 September 2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Skillsoft (US) LLC (“Skillsoft”) and Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“Customer”) and issued 

in accordance with the terms and conditions and made a part of the Letter Agreement between Skillsoft and Customer dated 25 September 2020 (the 

“Agreement”). 

WHEREAS, Skillsoft and Customer entered into the Agreement; 

WHEREAS, Skillsoft and Customer entered into an Amendment No. 1 dated 25 September 2022 to the Agreement (“Amendment No. 1”); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Skillsoft and Customer agree as follows: 

A. License Term Extension. The parties agree that the License Term of the Agreement is hereby extended by two (2) years (“License

Term Extension”). Therefore, the new End Date of the License Term is now 24 September 2025. The parties agree, that upon the

expiration of the amended License Term, the parties will negotiate in good faith new terms and conditions for any renewal.

B. Amendment to Skillsoft Product(s). The parties agree that from the following Skillsoft Products shall be licensed by Customer for

the License Term Extension: 

SKILLSOFT PRODUCT AUTHORIZED AUDIENCE 

PERCIPIO BUSINESS EXPERT 2.0 310 

DEPLOYMENT METHOD: Percipio 

C. Amendment No. 2 License Fees and Commitment. Customer’s total commitment hereunder is set forth below and is calculated
as follows (the “Amendment No. 2 Commitment Fees”). In the event there is a license period less than a 12-month term (“Stub
Period”), the 1st annual license fee shall account for the Stub Period and may be prorated based on the length of term. Applicable
state and local taxes are not included in the totals below and will be calculated as of the date of the invoice(s) issued hereunder:

YEAR/TERM COMMITMENT FEES 

Y1 USD 42,679.55 

Y2 USD 42,679.55 

TOTAL USD 85,359.10 

The Amendment No. 2 Commitment Fees stated in the table above are for the License Term Extension set forth herein. 

The Amendment No. 2 Commitment Fees shall be invoiced annually in advance and are due and payable as follows: 100% net 30 days from the date of 
the invoice. 

RATIFICATION.  The terms and conditions of the Agreement shall govern the use of the Skillsoft Products provided hereunder. 

Except as modified above, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement remains effective as is. The authorized representatives of Skillsoft and 
Customer have executed this Amendment No. 2 signifying their agreement to its contents. 

SKILLSOFT (US) LLC INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 

\signature3\ 

Signature 

\fullname3\ 

Print Name 

\title3\ 

Title 

\date3\ 

Date 

\signature1\ 

Signature 

\fullname1\ 

Print Name 

\title1\ 

Title 

\date1\ 

Date 

\checkbox2\ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 10D97749-1E7F-4E09-A185-C529C8A1D0EC



Page 2 of 2 
FY24-00215469McGhee 
O-1044455

CUSTOMER INFORMATION EXHIBIT 

BILL TO Inland Empire Utilities Agency SHIP TO Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

CONTACT Sheila Esparza CONTACT Sheila Esparza 

PHONE 909-993-1828 PHONE 909-993-1828

E-MAIL sesparza@ieua.org E-MAIL sesparza@ieua.org 

ADDRESS 6075 Kimball Ave ADDRESS 6075 Kimball Ave 

CITY Chino CITY Chino 

STATE CA STATE CA 

COUNTRY USA COUNTRY US 

ZIP CODE 91709 ZIP CODE 91708 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 10D97749-1E7F-4E09-A185-C529C8A1D0EC



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1D



General Manager

Budget Impact 

October 18, 2023

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-2 for U.S. Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART 
Drought Response Program: Drought Resiliency Projects for FY 2024 Grant 
Application

On August 7, 2023, the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) released a grant funding 
opportunity for the USBR WaterSmart Drought Response Program: Drought Resiliency Projects 
for Fiscal Year 2024. The objective of the funding opportunity is to identify projects that can 
increase the reliability of water supplies through infrastructure improvements, increase the 
reliability of water supplies through groundwater recovery, improve water management through 
decision support tools, modeling, and measurement, and construction of domestic water supply 
projects for tribes or disadvantaged communities. IEUA is applying for a grant on behalf of the 
Chino Basin Desalter Authority (CDA) for the Chino II Desalter Groundwater Sustainability 
Project. This project will provide critical groundwater pumping capacity that will reduce the 
reliance of this region on imported supply.

One of the application requirements is for the Board of Directors to adopt a resolution 
authorizing the designated representatives to execute a public assistance agreement and 
authorize the submittal of all required documents pertaining to the application.

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-2, authorizing the General Manager or designee to execute the 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART Drought Response Assistance Agreement and to 
submit all required documents to USBR.

If awarded the USBR Grant will reimburse a portion of CDA's costs for the construction of a
new well. There will be no impact to IEUA's current fiscal year budget.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

This action supports the Agency's Business Goals of fiscal responsibility and water reliability.

Not Applicable

Attachment 1 - Resolution No. 2023-10-2

Not Applicable

23227



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10-2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN 

BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING 

THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY TO ENTER 

INTO A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER 

THE WATERSMART DROUGHT RESPONSE PROGRAM: 

DROUGHT RESILIENCY PROJECTS FOR FY 2024 WITH 

THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR, BUREAU OF 

RECLAMATION AND DESIGNATING A 

REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE THE FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT, AND ANY AMENDMENTS 

THERETO  

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (IEUA) is authorized to 

enter into a financial assistance agreement under the WaterSMART: Drought Response Program: 

Drought Resiliency Projects for Fiscal Year 2024 with the U.S. Department of Interior - Bureau 

of Reclamation (USBR) to increase the reliability of water supplies through groundwater recovery 

on behalf of the Chino Basin Desalter Authority (CDA);   

BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager has reviewed and supports the application 

for CDA Project: Chino II Desalter Groundwater Sustainability; 

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager, or 

in his absence, his designees, to execute the financial assistance agreement, any amendments, and 

any grant-related documents thereto;  

BE IT RESOLVED, that CDA has the capacity to provide the amount of funding and/or 

in-kind contributions specified in the funding plan;   

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA will work with the USBR to meet established deadlines 

for entering into a cooperative agreement; and,  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors hereby adopts 

Resolution No. 2023-10-2 on this 18th day of October, 2023.   

________________________________ 

Marco Tule, President of the Inland Empire 

Utilities Agency* and of the Board of 

Directors thereof 



Resolution No. 2023-10-2 

Page 2 of 3 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the  

Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the 

Board of Directors thereof 

* A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2023-10-2 

Page 3 of 3 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 

) SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-10-2 was adopted at a regular 

meeting on October 18, 2023 of said Agency* by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________ 

Jasmin A. Hall 

Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 

Utilities Agency* and of the  

Board of Directors thereof 

(SEAL) 

* A Municipal Water District



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1E



General Manager

Budget Impact 

October 18, 2023

Collectible Work Agreement Amendment for Gas Relocation for the North System
North Trunk Sewer Siphon Replacement Project

Due to maintenance issues and insufficient slope, the existing siphon in the North System North
Trunk (NSNT) Sewer was experiencing a build-up of solids and odors. The project scope
includes installing approximately 3,369 linear feet of 12-inch sewer pipeline along Hellman
Avenue in Rancho Cucamonga to provide a long-term solution to odor-related issues. In January
2023, the Board approved a construction contract to Ferreira Construction. During design, a
conflict with an existing 2-inch gas pipeline was identified on Hellman Avenue. In October
2021, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute a Collectible Work Agreement
(CWA) with SoCal Gas to relocate approximately 1,500 linear feet of the conflicting gas
pipeline to facilitate construction of the new sewer. SoCal Gas required the work to be
completed by their contractor, and the work was completed in March 2022. The CWA provided
an original cost estimate of $390,156 for the work. During relocation of the gas pipeline, the
contractor encountered unanticipated substructure utilities, corroded tie-in locations,
modifications to the traffic control, and additional paving. This increased the total cost for the
gas pipeline relocation to $563,028; and therefore, an amendment to the CWA in the amount of
$172,872 is required to complete final payment.

1. Approve the amendment for the Collectible Work Agreement with SoCal Gas for the gas
pipeline relocation in the amount of $172,872, Project No. EN20064, increasing the agreement
amount from $390,156 to $563,028 (44% increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to approve the final payment of the Collectible Work
Agreement.

EN20064/NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement

The project has an approved FY 2023/24 budget of $1,510,744 and an approved total project
budget of $4,572,126 in the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund. This action is covered
by the approved budget. The funding sources for the project include: CIP fees and reserves.

1000 10500 175000 127104 EN20064

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of
Environmental Stewardship, specifically safeguarding public health and the environment. Staff
will control odors at all Agency facilities for the purpose of improving the environment and
being a good neighbor to the local community.

On October 21, 2020, the Board of Directors approved the consulting engineering services
contract for NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement, Project No. EN20064, to Michael Baker
International in the not-to-exceed amount of $241,130; On October 20, 2021, the Board of
Directors approved the collectible work agreement with the SoCal Gas to relocate an existing 2"
gas line in the amount of $390,156; and on January 18, 2023, the Board of Directors approved a
construction contract to Ferreira Construction in the amount of $2,686,640.

CEQA identifies certain categories of projects as exempt from more detailed environmental
review because these categories have been deemed to have no potential for significant impact on
the environment. This project qualifies for the Categorical Exemption, Class 3 as defined in
Section 15303(d)of the State CEQA Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint

Categorical Exemption

23214



 

 

Attachment 1 



Collectible Work Agreement Amendment for 
Gas Relocation

North System North Trunk Sewer Siphon Replacement Project
Project No. EN20064

Megan Trott, PE

Senior Associate Engineer - PE

October 2023



Location

H
e
ll
m

a
n

 A
v

e

8th Street

7thStreet

6th Street

A
rc

h
ib

a
ld

 A
v
e

V
in

e
y
a
rd

 A
v
e

Foothill Blvd

5th Street

2



Scope

• Existing siphon maintenance challenges and odor issues 

• Installing 3,369 LF of 12” sewer pipeline to replace siphon

• Install 14 manholes

• Existing siphon will be abandoned and filled with grout

Siphon along the Cucamonga Creek Channel to be abandonedPotholing along Hellman Avenue

3



Gas Pipeline Relocation

• Signed Collectible Work Agreement 

• Relocated prior to construction for safety reasons

• Higher costs than original SoCalGas estimate

Alignment of relocated gas 

line

Original gas alignment

7
th

S
t

6
th

S
t

4



Project Budget and Schedule

Description Estimated Cost

Design Services (actual) $558,149

Consultant Design Services $314,415

IEUA Design Services $243,734

Gas Line Relocation $563,028

SoCalGas Collectible Work Authorization $390,156

Final Invoice for Additional Costs (this action) $172,872

Construction Services $406,355

Engineering Services During Construction $156,355

IEUA Construction Services (~10%) $250,000

Construction $2,955,240

Construction $2,686,640

Contingency (~10%) $268,600

Total Project Cost $4,482,772

Total Project Budget $4,572,126

Project Milestone Date

Construction

Construction Contract Award January 2023

Construction Completion March 2024

5



Staff’s Recommendation

The NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of Environmental Stewardship, 

specifically safeguarding public health and the environment. Staff will control odors at all Agency facilities for the purpose of 

improving the environment and being a good neighbor to the local community.

1. Approve the amendment for the Collectible Work Agreement with SoCal Gas
for the gas pipeline relocation in the amount of $172,872, Project No.
EN20064, increasing the agreement amount from $390,156 to $563,028
(44% increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to approve the final payment of the
Collectible Work Agreement.

6



ACTION
ITEM

2A



General Manager

Budget Impact 

October 18, 2023

Approval and Execution of New Regional Sewage Service Contract

On January 2, 1973, IEUA and the Cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Fontana, Montclair, Ontario,
Upland, and Cucamonga Valley Water District (Contracting Agencies) entered into a fifty-year
agreement (Contract) for provisions of sewage treatment services within the IEUA service area
that expired on January 2, 2023. IEUA and the Contracting Agencies began negotiations on an
updated Contract in 2016, but were unable to reach agreement by the expiration date of the
original Contract. To establish a governing document for continuation of wastewater treatment
& recycled water services to the region, the IEUA Board adopted Ordinances No. 111 & 112 on
December 21, 2022. A commitment was made to continue negotiations until April 30, 2023.

Negotiations between IEUA and Sewage Collection Agencies (SCAs) Principals resulted in
several drafts exchanged between the groups. A final comprehensive draft Contract
incorporating the SCA's feedback and input was submitted to SCAs on August 9, 2023. IEUA
requested that all SCA governing bodies approve Contract by September 30, 2023. City of
Chino Hills, Cucamonga Valley Water District, City of Fontana, and City of Upland approved
the draft Contract. Provisions for wastewater treatment and recycled water services to Cities of
Chino, Ontario, and Montclair will continue under Ordinances No. 111 and 112.

1. Approve the new Regional Sewage Service Contract for the establishment of the provisions
governing the collection, treatment, and disposal of sewage to the IEUA Regional Sewage
System and preservation of the right of first purchase of recycled water; and

2. Authorize the President of the IEUA Board of Directors to execute the new Regional Sewage
Service Contract with the City of Chino Hills, Cucamonga Valley Water District, City of
Fontana, and City of Upland effective January 2, 2024, subject to non-substantive changes.

N/A

None

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The approval of the new Regional Sewage Service Contract is consistent with IEUA’s Business
Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Business Practices, Wastewater Management, & Water
Reliability by providing a governance structure that maintains reasonable service rates that
support costs of service, applying the best industry practices to maintain or improve the quality
and value of wastewater treatment services to the region, committing to meeting the regional
wastewater demands, and preserving the right of first purchase of recycled water.

On August 15, 1972, the IEUA Board entered into the Regional Contract with the Regional
Contracting Agencies.
On April 12, 1984, the IEUA Board adopted amendments to the Regional Contract.
On October 19, 1994, the IEUA Board adopted amendments to the Regional Contract.
On December 21, 2022, the IEUA Board adopted Ordinances No. 111 and No. 112 regarding
Regional Sewage Service and Regional Recycled Water Service

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Regional Sewage Service Contract

Not Applicable

23230



Ken Tam

Manager of Environmental Services 

October 2023

Approval and Execution of New Regional 
Sewage Service Contract



Region’s Original Regional Sewage Service Contract Expired 
and Ordinances No. 111/112 Were Adopted

2

• Original Regional Sewage Service Contract effective on January 2, 1973
—Contract expired January 2, 2023
—Forecasting, planning, and funding for regional sewage system
—Advisory Regional Committees

• IEUA and the seven Regional Contracting Agencies unable to reach 
agreement after seven years of negotiations

• Ordinance No. 111 and 112 adopted on December 21, 2022
— Contract expiration required IEUA to take action to protect all parties’ interests

• IEUA and Sewage Collection Agencies (SCAs) continued negotiations after 
adoption of ordinances



Further Negotiations Culminated in Draft Contract 
Incorporating SCA’s Input

3

• Contract draft sent to SCAs in April 2023
– SCA response to draft in May and June 2023

• Final comprehensive draft submitted to SCAs on August 9, 2023
– Approval at SCA governing bodies requested by September 30, 2023

• City of Chino Hills, Cucamonga Valley Water District, City of Fontana, City of 
Upland approved the final draft Contract

• City of Chino, City of Ontario, and City of Montclair submitted letter requesting 
further negotiation & withdrawal of deadline on September 29, 2023



Final Comprehensive Contract Draft Maintains Mutually Beneficial 
Relationship Between Parties

4

• IEUA Board’s authority and responsibilities are maintained
– Fiduciary duties (e.g., setting rates and budgets, allocating property taxes)

• Extra-territorial back-tax provision removed
• Preserves Regional Advisory Committees
• Regional Pretreatment Program authority clarified
• Recycled Water Base Entitlement maintained and Santa Ana River (SAR) 

Obligation language clarified from original Contract
– Monthly Base Entitlement provisions added
– Fulfillment of SAR Obligation with Recycled Water to be revisited in 10-year 

timeframe
• Wastewater and Recycled Water Services to Cities of Chino, Ontario, and 

Montclair will continue under Ordinances No. 111 and 112



1. Approve the new Regional Sewage Service Contract for the 
establishment of the provisions governing the collection, treatment, and 
disposal of sewage to the IEUA Regional Sewage System and 
preservation of the right of first purchase of recycled water; and

2. Authorize the President of the IEUA Board of Directors to execute the 
Regional Sewage Service Contract with the City of Chino Hills, 
Cucamonga Valley Water District, City of Fontana, and City of Upland, 
effective January 2, 2024, subject to non-substantive changes.

Staff’s Recommendation

5

The approval of the new Regional Sewage Service Contract with the City of Chino Hills, Cucamonga Valley Water District, 
City of Fontana, and City of Upland is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Business 
Practices, Wastewater Management, and Water Reliability by providing a governance structure that maintains 

reasonable service rates that support costs of service, applying the best industry practices to maintain or improve the quality 
and value of wastewater treatment services to the public and region, committing to meeting the regional wastewater 

demands, and preserving the right of first purchase of recycled water



 

Regional Sewage Service Contract 

With Exhibits 

Dated _______, 2023 

 



Table of Contents 

 i  

 

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS ....................................................................................................... 2 

SECTION 2 - RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS ............................................................................ 8 

SECTION 3 - COMMUNITY SEWER SYSTEMS ...................................................................... 8 

SECTION 4 - RESERVED ............................................................................................................ 8 

SECTION 5 - REQUESTS FOR REGIONAL INTERCEPTORS AND WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT PLANTS ....................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 6 - REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM; PROHIBITED DISCHARGES .............. 10 

SECTION 7 - REGIONAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM ..................................................... 12 

SECTION 8 - RESERVED .......................................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 9 - CAPITAL FINANCING OF REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM ................... 12 

SECTION 10 - FORECASTING AND PLANNING .................................................................. 18 

SECTION 11 - AVAILABILITY OF REGIONAL SYSTEM; IEUA’s PEFORMANCE ......... 21 

SECTION 12 - EXTRA-TERRITORIAL SEWER SERVICE ................................................... 22 

SECTION 13 - DELIVERY POINTS:  CONNECTION COSTS ............................................... 23 

SECTION 14 - DETERMINATION OF SEWAGE DELIVERIES: COSTS OF 

MEASURING EQUIPMENT .............................................................................. 24 

SECTION 15 - CONTROL, PRODUCTION, AND DISPOSITION OF RECYCLED 

WATER ............................................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 16 - RESERVED ........................................................................................................ 28 

SECTION 17 - SERVICE CHARGES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF 

THE REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM ......................................................... 28 

SECTION 18 - RESERVED ........................................................................................................ 30 

SECTION 19 - REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM BUDGETS ............................................. 30 

SECTION 20 - BILLING AND PAYMENT OF SERVICE CHARGES ................................... 32 



Table of Contents 

(continued) 

 

 

SECTION 21 - RESERVED ........................................................................................................ 34 

SECTION 22 - RESERVED ........................................................................................................ 34 

SECTION 23 - GRANTS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ................................................... 34 

SECTION 24 - REGIONAL POLICY COMMITTEE ................................................................ 35 

SECTION 25 - REGIONAL TECHNICAL COMMITTEE ....................................................... 36 

SECTION 26 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION .................................................................................. 37 

SECTION 27 - EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRACT ............................................................... 38 

SECTION 28 - TERM OF CONTRACT..................................................................................... 38 

SECTION 29 - RENEWAL ......................................................................................................... 39 

SECTION 30 - AUTHORIZATION AND EXECUTION OF SEWAGE SERVICE 

CONTRACT ........................................................................................................ 40 

SECTION 31 - NOTICE .............................................................................................................. 42 

SECTION 32 - PARTIAL INVALIDITY ................................................................................... 43 

SECTION 33 - INCORPORATION OF RECITALS ................................................................. 43 

SECTION 34 - COUNTERPARTS ............................................................................................. 43 

 



 

Page 1 of 46 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. WHEREAS, the parties previously entered into that certain Chino Basin Regional Sewage 

Contract, dated as of January 2, 1973, and amended April 12, 1984 and October 19, 1994; and  

B. WHEREAS, said contract provided an effective term of 50 years and lapsed on January, 2, 

2023; and   

C. WHEREAS, the parties wish to enter into a new Regional Sewage Service Contract 

effective immediately; and 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:     

 

  



 

Page 2 of 46 

 

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Unless otherwise required by the context, various terms used in this Contract, including the 

recitals, shall have the meanings set forth in this section. The singular number includes the plural 

and the plural the singular. 

“Acquire” or “Acquisition” means to acquire or make the acquisition of one or more of the 

following: 

A. Fee simple title to land. 

B. Any interest in land by deed, easement, lease, sublease, contract or otherwise. 

C. Title to or any interest in any existing facilities located upon land. 

D. Interests or capacity rights in any land or facilities owned by others. 

“Capacity Demand” means the volume and strength (i.e., biochemical oxygen demand and 

suspended solids) of sewage discharged from the Community Sewer System of a Contracting 

Agency into the Regional Sewerage System.  

“Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account” means the accounts established and maintained by 

the Contracting Agencies and to which are deposited or credited Capital Capacity Reimbursement 

Payments.  

“Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payment” means a deposit or credit made to the Capital 

Capacity Reimbursement Account of a Contracting Agency for new connections to its Community 

Sewer System.  

“Chino Basin” means that area underlain by the Chino and Cucamonga groundwater basins and 

that portion of the Claremont Heights groundwater basin within San Bernardino County which 

groundwater basins are described in Bulletin No. 53 of the California Division of Water Resources, 

dated March, 1947, and entitled “South Coastal Basin Investigation - Overdraft on Groundwater 

Basins.” 



 

Page 3 of 46 

 

“Commercial Unit” means a building, establishment or premises where businesses selling goods 

or providing professional or other services to the public or governmental offices are or will be 

located.  

“Community Sewer System” means all facilities owned, controlled or operated by a Sewage 

Collection Agency for the purpose of collecting and conducting sewage to a Delivery Point, 

including collector sewers conducting sewage from the originating premises, trunk sewers 

conducting sewage from tributary collector sewers or other trunk sewers and any facilities 

appurtenant to the foregoing. 

“Contracting Agency” means any Sewage Collection Agency located, in whole or in part, within 

the boundaries of IEUA which has entered into this Regional Sewage Service Contract with IEUA. 

"Demand Deficit” means the difference between the aggregate total Forecasted Demand of a 

Contracting Agency and the total aggregate Equivalent Dwelling Units connected to its 

Community Sewer System during an eight-year period commencing with the fifth fiscal year 

preceding the fiscal year for which IEUA is at the time of the determination of such difference 

preparing a Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast, and including the initial three fiscal years of such 

Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast. 

“Delivery Point” means the transfer point at which Sewage is delivered from a Community Sewer 

System into the Regional Sewerage System. 

“Dispose” or “Disposal” means any process or method for the elimination or beneficial use of 

Sewage and any Effluent or solid waste residuals thereof, including exportation from the Chino 

Basin.  

“Effluent” means the liquid outflow at the discharge point of any Regional Treatment Plant.  

“Equivalent Dwelling Unit” or “EDU” means a measure of sewage flow equivalent in quantity 

and strength to the daily flow of an average single-family household determined by resolution of 

the Board of Directors of IEUA and referred to as Exhibit “J” hereto.  



 

Page 4 of 46 

 

“Expansion” means the acquisition or construction of new facilities for the Regional Sewerage 

System and the making of any replacements, betterments, additions or extensions of the Regional 

Sewerage System. 

“Facilities” means any pipelines, buildings, structures, works, improvements, fixtures, machinery, 

equipment, or appliances and any real property, or interests therein, necessary or convenient for 

the construction, maintenance and operation of any of the Regional Sewerage System. 

“Fiscal Year” means a 12-month period commencing on July 1 and ending on the following June 

30. 

“Forecasted Demand” means the yearly forecasted or estimated volume and strength of sewage 

discharged from the Community Sewer System of a Contracting Agency into the Regional 

Sewerage System as set forth in a Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast.    

“IEUA” means the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a municipal water district. 

“Industrial Unit” means a building, establishment, or premises where manufacturing, fabrication 

or assembly operations or industrial or chemical processes are conducted.  

“Industrial Waste” means any wastewater and any water borne solid, liquid, or gaseous wastes 

resulting from any producing, manufacturing, or processing operations of whatever nature as more 

particularly defined, from time to time, by any federal, state, or regional agency authorized by law 

to prescribe quality standards for the discharge of sewage effluent and industrial waste effluent 

within the Chino Basin. 

“Non-Domestic Waste” means waste or wastewater discharged into the Community Sewer System 

of a Contracting Agency which has a greater concentration of total dissolved solids or biochemical 

oxygen demand or any other constituents limited by IEUA than the waste or wastewater discharged 

from the typical single family domestic household in the Contracting Agency’s Service Area.  

 



 

Page 5 of 46 

 

“Orange County Judgment” means the judgment entered in the action entitled Orange County 

Water District v. City of Chino, et al. (Case No. 117628, Superior Court, County of Orange). 

“Recycled Water” means as defined in Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3, Water Recycling Criteria, 

Section 60301.050 et seq., of the California Code of Regulations; water which is available as a 

result of the treatment of wastewater. Also as described in subdivision (n) of Section 13050 of the 

Water Code of the State of California, treated wastewater that is suitable for direct beneficial use 

or a controlled use that would not otherwise occur. 

“Regional Interceptor”  includes, but is not limited to, pipelines, facilities and appurtenances  

which receive sewage from the most downstream trunk or collector sewer of a Community Sewer 

System, or a portion thereof, for the purpose of transmitting the sewage to a Regional Treatment 

Plant or to any other point of disposal, and any facilities appurtenant thereto, or any sewer which 

is utilized for the transmission of the sewage of two or more Contracting Agencies to such a plant 

or point of disposal.  

“Regional Policy Committee” means the committee provided for in Section 24 hereof   

“Regional Sewerage System” means all facilities owned, controlled, or operated by IEUA and any 

interest or capacity rights of IEUA in facilities owned, controlled, or operated by others, for the 

purpose of transmitting, treating and/or disposing of Sewage, including interceptor sewers, sewage 

treatment and disposal plants, facilities for the Disposal of Effluent and solid waste residuals and 

any facilities appurtenant to the foregoing. The Regional Sewerage System does not include the 

Recycled Water system which is owned, operated, managed, and maintained by IEUA.  The 

Regional Sewerage System shall include all other disposal facilities which are required to meet the 

requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit or permits or Waste 

Discharge Requirements issued to IEUA by the Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana 

Region, for the operation of the Regional Treatment Plants.  

“Regional Technical Committee” means the committee provided for in Section 25 hereof.  



 

Page 6 of 46 

 

“Regional Treatment Plant” means a sewage and wastewater treatment plant operated by IEUA as 

part of the Regional Sewerage System.  

“Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund” means the fund of IEUA into which is 

deposited all Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds received by IEUA from the Contracting 

Agencies for the acquisition, construction, improvement, and expansion of the Regional Sewerage 

System. 

“Residential Unit” means a single-family residence, a condominium unit, an apartment unit or 

other such structure or portion thereof which is equipped and suitable for human habitation or a 

mobile home space in a mobile home park, not including, however, transient lodging rooms in 

motels or hotels which are considered to be commercial units.  

“Santa Ana River (SAR) Base Flow Obligation” means the obligation established under the 

Orange County Judgment and defined under the Prado Settlement, Stipulations and Orders of 

Dismissal re Certain Defendants and Cross-Defendants (filed April 17, 1969), and the October 2, 

1968, CBMWD – WMWD Agreement re Satisfaction of Joint Obligation Prado Settlement 

(“Allocation Agreement”), the October 28, 1968 Agreement between Chino Basin Municipal 

Water District and City of Pomona re the Prado Settlement, and the December 18, 1968 Agreement 

Between Western Municipal Water District of Riverside County and City of Corona in Regard to 

Prado Settlement (collectively “Settlement Agreement”), which obligation defines the shared 

responsibility for a Base Flow obligation at Prado Dam between IEUA and Western Municipal 

Water District. IEUA implements the Chino Basin portion of the Settlement Agreement which is 

commonly referred to as the Santa Ana River (“SAR”) Base Flow obligation at Prado.   

“Service Area” means all territory now or hereafter served by the Community Sewer System 

owned, controlled or operated by any Contracting Agency. The IEUA service area includes the 

Cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, Upland, and the Cucamonga Valley 

Water District.    

“Service Contract” means this Chino Basin Regional Sewage Service Contract and any 

substantially similar contract between IEUA and a Contracting Agency providing for the 



 

Page 7 of 46 

 

Transmission, Treatment and Disposal of sewage from the Contracting Agencies by means of the 

Regional Sewerage System.  

“Sewage” means any liquid waste and water borne solid waste resulting from residential, 

commercial, industrial, or institutional activities or uses. 

“Sewage Collection Agency” means any county, city or special district, other than IEUA, which 

is located in whole or in part within the IEUA Service Area and which is authorized to own, control 

and operate a Community Sewer System.  

“Sewer” means any pipeline conducting sewage, either by gravity or by pressure, and any facilities 

appurtenant thereto. 

“Sewer User Charge” means any charge, fee, rental, or rate, excluding property taxes and Capital 

Capacity Reimbursement Payments, which is imposed on and collected from the owner, lessee, or 

occupant of property for providing services and facilities of any Community Sewer System or the 

Regional Sewerage System, or both. 

“Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds” means contributions by a Contracting Agency from its 

Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account reserves to IEUA to supplement the funding of the 

planning, design and construction of Regional Sewerage System capital improvement projects.   

“Transmit” or “Transmission” means the conducting (i) of Sewage from any Delivery Point to a 

Regional Treatment Plant or other point of Disposal or (ii) of Effluent from a Regional Treatment 

Plant to a point of Disposal;  

“Treat” or “Treating” or “Treatment” means any process or method for altering the quality of 

Sewage and/or Effluent to meet applicable regulatory standards for Disposal or beneficial reuse. 

“Wastewater Treatment Plant” or “WWTP” means a sewage and wastewater treatment plant 

constructed by a Contracting Agency and is not a part of the Regional Sewerage System.  

 



 

Page 8 of 46 

 

SECTION 2 - RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

The Contracting Agencies shall have the right to deliver all Sewage collected by its Community 

Sewer Systems to the Regional Sewerage System and IEUA shall have the obligation to receive 

into the Regional Sewerage System all Sewage so delivered by the Contracting Agency subject to 

the provisions of this contract.   

SECTION 3 - COMMUNITY SEWER SYSTEMS 

Each Contracting Agency shall be responsible for all costs and expenses of the acquisition, 

construction, operation, and maintenance of its Community Sewer System. 

A. Inspection of Facilities 

Any authorized officer or employee of IEUA may enter and inspect any part of the Community 

Sewer System of any Contracting Agency during normal working hours on regular business days 

and upon the giving of not less than 24 hours prior notice of the inspection, except during 

emergencies.   

SECTION 4 - RESERVED   

SECTION 5 - REQUESTS FOR REGIONAL INTERCEPTORS AND 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS  

Regional Interceptors are a part of the Regional Sewerage System and their design and 

construction or acquisition shall be financed as provided in Section 9 hereof. Separate from the 

Regional Sewerage System, a Contracting Agency may construct, own and operate a wastewater 

treatment plant (“WWTP”) or permit another person, firm or corporation to construct a WWTP 

which will be controlled and operated by the Contracting Agency when to do so is not detrimental 

to the operation of the Regional Sewerage System. The IEUA Board shall consider requests for 

Regional Interceptors and Contracting Agency construction of WWTPs pursuant to the following 

procedures:  



 

Page 9 of 46 

 

A. Request To IEUA – Regional Interceptor and Contracting Agency Construction of 

WWTP. 

1. Any Contracting Agency may make a written request to IEUA for a determination 

as to the location of a new Regional Interceptor, an acquisition of an existing 

Regional Interceptor, or the construction of a WWTP. 

2. Notification.  IEUA shall provide the Regional Technical Committee notice of 

written request from the Contracting Agency within 45 days of its receipt. 

3. Determination by IEUA.  IEUA shall review and determine whether the action 

proposed in the request will be detrimental to the operation of the Regional 

Sewerage System and present an informational item with a recommendation to the 

Regional Technical Committee for the request. 

4. Recommendation By Regional Technical Committee.  The Regional Technical 

Committee shall review the request and determination by IEUA and shall provide 

a recommendation to the Regional Policy Committee as an informational item.    

5. Review and Recommendation By Regional Policy Committee.  The Regional 

Policy Committee shall review the recommendation from the Regional Technical 

Committee and issue its own recommendation to IEUA regarding the request.  

B. Determination by the IEUA Board.   

The IEUA Board shall review and consider the Regional Policy Committee’s 

recommendation for the request, and shall issue its final determination. The failure of the 

Regional Technical Committee or the Regional Policy Committee to take action on the 

request shall not preclude IEUA from taking action on the request.    

C. Request For Hearing.   

Any Contracting Agency, that disagrees with the determination may file a written request 

for a hearing before the IEUA Board.   



 

Page 10 of 46 

 

D. Cost/Expense of Contracting Agency WWTP.   

A Contracting Agency which constructs a WWTP shall be solely responsible for the cost 

and expense of the construction and maintenance and operation of said plant.  Any such 

WWTP which is constructed and owned by a Contracting Agency shall not be operated by 

IEUA as a part of the Regional Sewerage System without the written consent of all other 

Contracting Agencies and IEUA.  

E. Operation And Maintenance of Contracting Agency WWTP.   

A Contracting Agency which constructs a WWTP may enter into a contract with IEUA for 

the maintenance and operation of the plant subject to the terms and conditions agreed to by 

the parties.  In the event a Contracting Agency and IEUA enter into such a contract, the 

budgeting and funding for the maintenance and operation of the plant shall be accounted 

for separately by IEUA in order to prevent any adverse impact on the Regional Sewerage 

System or any impact on the rates and charges imposed by IEUA under this Service 

Contract. 

SECTION 6 - REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM; PROHIBITED DISCHARGES  

IEUA shall own and operate a Regional Sewerage System for the Transmission, Treatment and 

Disposal of Sewage delivered by any Contracting Agency. The Regional Sewerage System, 

including any interests or capacity rights of IEUA in facilities owned, controlled or operated by 

others, shall be as shown or described in the IEUA Wastewater Facilities Master Plan, as amended 

from time to time, and is intended to accept domestic waste. 

Use of the Regional Sewerage System by industrial users discharging process wastewater shall be 

governed by Ordinance No. 109, or any successors thereof. 

Except as may be specifically provided on a temporary basis, no Contracting Agency shall 

discharge or cause to be discharged in the Regional Sewerage System any waste which exceeds or 

results in the inability of the wastewater treatment plant effluent to meet the wastewater discharge 



 

Page 11 of 46 

 

requirements presently established by any State or Federal regulatory agency, or which may be 

adopted in the future. 

A Contracting Agency shall not discharge wastewater, in quantities or concentrations, alone or in 

conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources that cause the pH of the wastewater 

entering the headworks of any Regional Treatment Plant to decrease below 6.0 Standard Units at 

any time. 

A Contracting Agency shall not discharge wastewater, in quantities or concentrations, alone or in 

conjunction with a discharge or discharges cause an increase in temperature of a Regional 

Treatment Plant’s influent to be above 90 degrees Fahrenheit, which normally occurs during the 

period of June through October, nor above 78 degrees Fahrenheit during the remainder of the year. 

IEUA shall pay all costs and expenses incurred in the acquisition, construction, maintenance, and 

operation of the Regional Sewerage System. Each Contracting Agency shall, as provided in 

Section 17 hereof, pay to IEUA service charges representing a pro rata share of all net audited 

costs incurred by IEUA in the maintenance and operation of the Regional Sewerage System, and 

each Contracting Agency shall contribute Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds to IEUA for the 

improvement and expansion of the Regional Sewerage System as provided in Section 9 hereof.   

Expansion of the Regional Sewerage System is done to accommodate growth and development 

within the respective Contracting Agency’s service area and is based largely on growth projections 

and requests for expansion from the Contracting Agencies. Accordingly, voluntary withdrawal of 

wastewater flows by one or more Contracting Agencies could be detrimental to the Regional 

Sewerage System by creating stranded assets and resulting in increased costs to the remaining 

Contracting Agencies. Nevertheless, should a voluntary withdrawal of flows from the Regional 

Sewerage System occur, the impact of the withdrawal will be calculated by IEUA and an impact 

fee will be assessed against the withdrawing Contracting Agency. 

 

 



 

Page 12 of 46 

 

SECTION 7 - REGIONAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM 

IEUA owns and operates the Regional Sewerage System facilities that are regulated by National 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits issued by the Regional Water Quality 

Control Board, and which are subject to numerical discharge limitations and requirements.  Those 

permit regulations and discharge limitations require the control and restrictions to the discharge of 

industrial wastewater on Significant Industrial Users (SIUs).  Furthermore, the permit regulations 

require IEUA to implement pretreatment regulations in all jurisdictions tributary to IEUA’s service 

area. The regional pretreatment program requirements between IEUA and the Contracting 

Agencies shall be established by resolution of the Board of Directors of IEUA and in Ordinance 

No. 109 and any successors thereof. 

SECTION 8 - RESERVED 

SECTION 9 - CAPITAL FINANCING OF REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM 

A. General 

The Regional Sewerage System and any improvement or expansion of that system will provide 

benefits to the entire territory served by that system in that the entire territory will be benefited by 

the protection of public health, the protection of the quality of water sources, the improvement of 

water management through integrated use of all sources of water supply, including sewage 

treatment plant effluent, the improvement of general conditions for individual, residential, 

commercial and agricultural development and the reduction in costs for the Transmission, 

Treatment, and Disposal of Sewage by the pro rata sharing of all costs incurred by IEUA in the 

maintenance and operation of the Regional Sewerage System. 

The acquisition, construction, improvement, and expansion of the Regional Sewerage System shall 

be financed with real property tax revenues, revenues from capital capacity fees, sewage service 

charges levied by the Board of Directors of IEUA, grants and other financial assistance which may 

be available from any federal, state, local or other source, Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds 

contributed by the Contracting Agencies. 



 

Page 13 of 46 

 

B. Taxes, Sewage Service Standby or Availability Charges 

The Board of Directors of IEUA may fix, levy, and collect sewage service standby or availability 

charges for the purpose of financing the acquisition, improvement, and expansion of the Regional 

Sewerage System.  The IEUA Board of Directors will adopt a property tax allocation plan, which 

will remain in effect until amended in IEUA’s discretion. The IEUA Board of Directors may elect 

to add, consolidate, or rename funds as necessary to best manage the IEUA funds. 

At the time of review of fund budgets, IEUA shall develop a plan that includes the basis for the 

tax allocation. IEUA shall inform the Regional Technical Committee and Regional Policy 

Committee of any proposed allocations of the property tax revenues intended for the Regional 

Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund and will consider input and recommendations from the 

committees prior to making a final determination.    

C. Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account and Capital Capacity Reimbursement 

Payments 

1. General 

As a condition to sewage treatment service and for the purpose of providing Supplemental Capital 

Outlay Funds to IEUA, each Contracting Agency shall establish and maintain a Capital Capacity 

Reimbursement Account to which the Contracting Agency shall deposit or credit its Capital 

Capacity Reimbursement Payments. The amounts so deposited or credited by a Contracting 

Agency to its said account shall be used by the Contracting Agency only for the purpose of 

providing Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds to IEUA; provided that interest earned on such 

amounts shall not be so restricted and may be used by the Contracting Agency for any lawful 

purpose. The source of Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payments shall be at the discretion of 

each Contracting Agency. 

2. Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payments    

Each Contracting Agency shall have deposited or credited to its Capital Capacity Reimbursement 

Account a Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payment for each connection which has been or will 



 

Page 14 of 46 

 

be made to its Community Sewer System or for each change in use of an existing commercial or 

industrial connection in an amount determined as follows: 

a. The amount of the Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payment for each new 

connection to a Contracting Agency’s Community Sewer System and for each 

change in use of any existing Commercial Unit or Industrial Unit which results 

in an increase in volume or strength of Sewage therefrom shall be determined 

by computing the number of Equivalent Dwelling Units therefor as provided 

in that document approved by Resolution of the Board of Directors and 

identified as “Exhibit J”  and made a part hereof and applying the then current 

Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payment amount as established by the IEUA 

Board to each such EDU. 

b. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions, the amount which a Contracting 

Agency is required to have deposited in or credited to its Capital Capacity 

Reimbursement account for any such new connection or change of use shall 

be reduced by payments, if any, made by the Contracting Agency to IEUA for 

the new connection or change of use to support Supplemental Capital Outlay 

Payments, made at IEUA’s request.  

c. A Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payment shall be deposited or credited to 

a Contracting Agency’s Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account for such a 

new connection or change of use at the time of the issuance of a building 

permit or a sewer connection permit, or for changes in the use of existing 

Commercial Units and Industrial Units, or the permits required therefor. Upon 

request by a Contracting Agency, IEUA will review, with support and 

consultation as needed from the Building Activity Report (BAR) 

Subcommittee, fee calculations and collections by any Contracting Agency 

for any errors, within 30 days from the receipt of the monthly building activity 

report, as further described herein, unless a more expedited review is 

requested by Contracting Agency. In the event a Contracting Agency fails to 

deposit Capital Capacity Reimbursement Payments into the Contracting 



 

Page 15 of 46 

 

Agency’s Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account by the applicable 

deadlines, the Contracting Agency shall be required to make late payments in 

amounts which correspond to the adopted EDU rate in place at the time that 

said payments first became due and owing.   

3. Capital Capacity Reimbursement Reports  

a. Each Contracting Agency shall report monthly to IEUA, at such time as IEUA 

shall designate, the balance of the funds in its Capital Capacity 

Reimbursement Account as of the last day of the preceding month.  Such 

monthly reports shall be in writing and shall include the calculation sheets and 

also contain the number of building permits and sewer permits which were 

issued in the Contracting Agency’s Service Area during the preceding month 

and estimated volume of Sewage flows for all residential, commercial, and 

industrial connections within the Contracting Agency’s Service Area for the 

current month and the cumulative total thereof. Commercial and industrial 

sewer connection permits shall be listed by individual permit with the number 

of fixture units and expected volume and strength of sewage for each permit.  

IEUA shall have 30 days from receipt of said reports to contact the applicable 

Contracting Agency with any questions or requests for clarification regarding 

the connection fee calculations reflected in said report.     

b. IEUA shall maintain a summary accounting of the Capital Capacity 

Reimbursement Account reserves of all Contracting Agencies and shall make 

written semiannual reports to the Contracting Agencies on or before 1) July 

15 (with actuals up to March 31) and January 15, (with actuals up to 

September 30) of each fiscal year. The reports shall include: (i)  the amounts 

of the Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account reserves of all Contracting 

Agencies as of the last day of March and September respectively, (ii) the 

amount of the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund reserves as of 

the last day of March and September respectively, (iii) a summary of all 

expenditures from said fund incurred up to March and September respectively 



 

Page 16 of 46 

 

for each Regional Sewerage System capital improvement project then in 

progress, (iv) an estimate of the amounts to be expended from said fund for 

each such project during the quarter then commencing or in progress (the 

“current quarter”), (v) the estimated amount of Supplemental Capital Outlay 

Funds, if any, which will be necessary for the Contracting Agencies to 

contribute to IEUA during the current quarter in order to provide a working 

capital balance in said fund which shall not exceed $5,000,000 on the last day 

of the quarter next succeeding the current quarter, and (vi) the amount, if any, 

of the contribution of Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds for each 

Contracting Agency for the current quarter, determined as provided in 

subparts E and F of this Section.  

D. Determination of Demand Deficits  

At the time of the preparation of each Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast, pursuant to Section 10 

hereof, IEUA shall determine each Contracting Agency's Demand Deficit, if any. The 

determination of Demand Deficits pursuant to this subpart is for the sole purpose of allocating 

shortages in Supplemental Capital Outlay Fund payments as provided in subpart F of this Section. 

Except as provided in said subpart F, such determinations shall not result in the creation of an 

obligation or indebtedness on the part of any Contracting Agency to IEUA or other Contracting 

Agencies. 

E. Supplemental Capital Outlay Fund Payments 

On July 15, and January 15, of any fiscal year IEUA may require payment by each Contracting 

Agency from its Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account of Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds 

for the planning, design and construction of Regional Sewerage System capital improvement 

projects in the amount, if any, set forth for the Contracting Agency in the semiannual report due 

from IEUA on such date. Upon receiving such a demand from IEUA, each Contracting Agency 

shall pay the amount demanded to IEUA within 45 days of receipt of such demand. The amount 

of each Contracting Agency’s proportionate share of the total amount of Supplemental Capital 

Outlay Funds demanded by IEUA from all Contracting Agencies shall be determined based on the 



 

Page 17 of 46 

 

percentage which the amount of Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds demanded by IEUA from all 

Contracting Agencies is to the total amount of the current Capital Capacity Reimbursement 

Account reserves of all Contracting Agencies set forth in the semiannual report upon which the 

demand is based. The amount demanded by IEUA from each Contracting Agency on any such 

date shall be an amount determined by applying the percentage thus obtained to the balance of the 

reserves, not including interest, in the Contracting Agency’s Capital Capacity Reimbursement 

Account set forth in the semiannual report upon which the demand is based. All amounts received 

by IEUA from the Contracting Agencies as Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds shall be deposited 

in or credited to the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund.  All such amounts together 

with all interest earned thereon shall be available and utilized by IEUA solely for the purpose of 

financing the acquisition, improvement and expansion of the Regional Sewerage System.  

F. Allocation of Supplemental Capital Outlay Fund Shortages  

If at the time of any demand by for Supplemental Capital Outlay Funds, pursuant to subpart E of 

this Section, there are not sufficient funds deposited or credited to the Capital Capacity 

Reimbursement Accounts of all Contracting Agencies to pay the full amount of the demand, each 

Contracting Agency which has a Demand Deficit shall pay the full balance then deposited or 

credited to its Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account plus an amount determined based on the 

percentage which the amount of its Demand Deficit is of the total Demand Deficit for all 

Contracting Agencies. The amount to be paid by each such Contracting Agency shall be 

determined by multiplying the difference between, the Supplemental Capital Outlay Fund demand 

and the total amount of the Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account balances of all Contracting 

Agencies by the percentage thus determined. 

G. Audit Process  

The audit process for collection of connection fees by Contracting Agencies is intended to verify 

accuracy and uniformity in practices regionwide and to improve future performance.  The audit 

and BAR review processes may result in IEUA and the Contracting Agencies working 

collaboratively to reconcile any discrepancies in connection fees from the Residential, or 



 

Page 18 of 46 

 

Commercial or Industrial Unit.  Contracting Agencies may be audited by IEUA on an annual basis, 

as well as periodically through the Building Activity Reports Subcommittee as described below.   

H. Building Activity Reports and Building Activity Reports Subcommittee   

There shall be created a Building Activity Reports (“BAR”) Subcommittee comprised of a 

staff/employee representative from IEUA and also from of each Contracting Agency who elects 

to participate.  The Contracting Agency representative may be changed by the applicable 

Contracting Agency at any time.  IEUA will convene the BAR Subcommittee quarterly to 

complete a more extensive review of a percentage of applications for which connection fees have 

been calculated and collected.  The percentage of applications to be reviewed will be determined 

by the BAR Subcommittee.  The review by the BAR Subcommittee may include such reviews as, 

but not limited to, an in-depth look at the collection fee calculation methodology, approach for 

calculating connection fees for similar facilities (e.g. - facilities that have an embedded restaurant 

and other services), monthly sewer fee collections, for region wide consistency. 

SECTION 10 - FORECASTING AND PLANNING 

A.  Contracting Agency Reports 

1. Monthly Reports 

On such date as IEUA may designate, each Contracting Agency shall submit to IEUA monthly 

reports of sewered building activity.  Each such report shall contain the following information in 

a format which will allow tracking through the development process: 

a. The number of building permits issued during the month for structures which 

will contribute sewage to the Regional Sewerage System; 

b. Estimate volume of sewage and EDUs for such building permits; 

c. The tract number and number of lots for each tentative tract map approved 

during the month; 

d. The tract number and number of lots or dwelling units for each final tract map 



 

Page 19 of 46 

 

recorded during the month; 

e. The number of final inspections or certificates of occupancy issued during the 

month for structures which will contribute sewage to the Regional Sewerage 

System; 

f. The estimate volume of sewage and EDUs for all such structures. 

B. IEUA Reports 

1. Annual Forecast 

IEUA shall work collaboratively with the individual Contracting Agencies to ensure they are using 

the most recent planning and other documents and incorporating agency knowledge about their 

service area into the Annual Forecast.  On a biennial basis, prior to the first regularly scheduled 

Regional Technical Committee meeting of that calendar year, IEUA shall provide to the Regional 

Technical Committee and the Regional Policy Committee the Regional Annual Forecast from the 

Regional Wastewater Demand Forecast Model or other mutually agreed upon forecasting 

methodology.  

2. Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast   

On a biennial basis, by no later than the end of June, IEUA shall prepare and deliver to the Regional 

Technical Committee and the Regional Policy Committee a Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast 

which includes dates of commencement and completion of capital improvement projects necessary 

to enable the Regional Sewerage System to meet the forecasted Capacity Demands of all 

Contracting Agencies. Such forecasts, hereinafter referred to as the “Ten-Year Sewer Capital 

Forecast,” shall include: 

a. Projected dates for the commencement and completion of design and 

construction of capital improvement projects necessary to meet forecasted 

Capacity Demands; 

b. Estimates for each Regional Treatment Plant of the Capacity Demand of each 

Contracting Agency which received sewerage service the previous Fiscal 



 

Page 20 of 46 

 

Year; 

c. An estimate of the amount of available treatment capacity at the IEUA 

Regional Treatment Plants; 

d. An estimate of the amount of treatment capacity to be added, if any; 

e. Projected annual expenditures for the design and construction of such 

projects; 

f. The Demand Deficit, if any, of each Contracting Agency; 

C. Review by Regional Committees 

1. Annual Forecast   

To ensure accurate forecasting, upon receipt of the Regional Annual Forecast, the Regional 

Committees shall review the proposed Capacity Demands and provide input to IEUA within 30 

days regarding anticipated development. 

2. Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast  

Upon receipt of the Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast, the Regional Committees will have 30 days 

to review and provide input and the Forecast will be placed on the agenda of both committees to 

provide recommendations to IEUA. Prior to adoption, IEUA shall consider the recommendations 

of the Regional Policy Committee.  

D. Reclaimable Industrial Waste 

Proposed new industrial connections to Community Sewer Systems which are expected to 

discharge more than 25,000 gallons per day of reclaimable industrial waste shall be approved based 

on the conditions set forth in the Ordinance No. 109 and any successors thereof. The determination 

of permit requirements and discharge limitations of the reclaimable industrial waste to be 

discharged into the Regional Sewerage System through an appropriate connection point in a 

Contracting Agency’s Community Sewer System shall be made by IEUA through the regional 

pretreatment program, resolution of the Board of Directors of IEUA, and Ordinance No. 109 and 



 

Page 21 of 46 

 

any successors thereof. 

E. Major Construction Contracts  

IEUA shall not proceed with the award of a construction contract for a budgeted Regional 

Sewerage System capital improvement project previously approved through the Ten-Year Sewer 

Capital Forecast, which will involve an expenditure in excess of $10,000,000 (adjusted every 5 

years or as needed based on the Consumer Price Index beginning in the year 2025), without 

informing and considering recommendations from the Regional Policy Committee unless IEUA 

determines the project is necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the Regional Sewerage 

System. The latest Ten-Year Sewer Capital Forecast and any requested project details including 

funding information shall be made available to assist in the Regional Policy Committee’s review.  

SECTION 11 - AVAILABILITY OF REGIONAL SYSTEM; IEUA’s 
PEFORMANCE 

A. Contracting Agencies   

The services and facilities of the Regional Sewerage System shall be available to any 

property within the IEUA Service Area, subject to such terms and conditions as may 

be prescribed by a Contracting Agency for connection to its Community Sewer System. 

B. Other Sewage Collection Agencies   

IEUA shall not make the services and facilities of the Regional Sewerage System 

available, other than on a temporary, emergency basis, to any sewage collection agency 

which is not a party to a Service Contract until such agency has entered into a Service 

Contract per Section 30. Prior to entering into any such Service Contract, IEUA shall 

present the proposed terms thereof to the Regional Technical Committee and Regional 

Policy Committee for review and comment. Any Contracting Agency may challenge 

services offered under this part B by invoking the procedures set forth in Section 26 of 

this Service Contract.  



 

Page 22 of 46 

 

C. IEUA’s Performance   

IEUA shall exercise its best effort to implement capital improvement projects necessary 

to enable the Regional Sewerage System to meet the Forecasted Demands of all 

Contracting Agencies are planned, designed and constructed in a timely manner and so 

that the Regional Sewerage System will at all times be able to provide for the Capacity 

Demands of all Contracting Agencies. The Contracting Agencies recognize that the 

timing of the planning, design and construction of such capital improvement projects 

is largely dependent upon the Contracting Agencies making reasonable accurate 

projections of increased connections to and usage of their Community Sewer Systems.  

SECTION 12 -   EXTRA-TERRITORIAL SEWER SERVICE 

12.1 SERVICE OUTSIDE THE BOUNDARIES OF IEUA SERVICE AREA 

A. Upon the Effective Date of this Contract  

Any Contracting Agency which, upon the effective date of this contract was furnishing sewer 

service to any territory outside the boundaries of the IEUA Service Area, may continue to furnish 

such service and shall be entitled to the services and facilities of the Regional Sewerage System 

for that purpose. Each Contracting Agency providing sewer service to any such outside territory 

shall file a map or maps with the secretary of IEUA showing the boundaries of all such territory.  

B. After the Effective Date of this Contract  

Any Contracting Agency, after the effective date of this contract, may furnish sewer service to 

additional territory outside the boundaries of the IEUA Service Area. Prior to furnishing such 

sewer service, the Contracting Agency shall file a written request with IEUA. IEUA may consider 

the question of authorizing sewer service to the additional territory, subject to the authorization of 

the Local Agency Formation Commission for San Bernardino County, and the IEUA Board of 

Directors shall by resolution authorize sewer service to all or any part of the additional territory by 

the applicant or applicants unless it determines that such service is not in the public interest.  



 

Page 23 of 46 

 

C. Annual Capital Outlay Charge for Territory Outside IEUA and the Service Area  

In addition to the payment of service charges, each Contracting Agency providing the services and 

facilities of the Regional Sewerage System to territory outside the IEUA Service Area shall be 

obligated to pay IEUA special capital outlay charges for such territory, as provided in subpart C 

or D of this Section or both such subparts, if both are applicable. Monies received by IEUA in 

payment of special capital outlay charges shall be deposited or credited to the Regional Wastewater 

Capital Improvement Fund and utilized, together with all interest earned thereon, solely for the 

purpose of financing the acquisition, improvement, and expansion of the Regional Sewerage 

System.  

D. Annual Capital Outlay Charge   

The Contracting Agency shall annually pay IEUA a special capital outlay charge in an amount 

equivalent to the amount of the property tax and other revenue which IEUA would have received 

during the fiscal year if such property were within the IEUA Service Area.  Such charge shall be 

payable by the Contracting Agency during each fiscal year in the amounts and at the times 

specified by IEUA.  

SECTION 13 - DELIVERY POINTS:  CONNECTION COSTS 

Each Contracting Agency shall deliver sewage from its Community Sewer System into the 

Regional Sewerage System at such Delivery Points as may, from time to time, be requested by the 

Contracting Agency and approved by IEUA. The Delivery Point request may be made by the 

Contracting Agency or on behalf of a third party.  In all Delivery Point requests, the Contracting 

Agency or third party shall pay applicable plan review and hydraulic/load modeling costs for the 

evaluation of the impact of the Delivery Point to the Regional Sewage System.  The Contracting 

Agency or third party may also be required to submit a resolution confirming the authorization of 

annexation from the Local Agency Formation Commission for San Bernardino County or a 

resolution confirming an irrevocable annexation agreement to the Contracting Agency.   



 

Page 24 of 46 

 

Upon consideration of the information submitted, IEUA may authorize the new Delivery Point.  

IEUA shall provide written notice of its recommendation regarding the new Delivery Point at a 

regularly scheduled Regional Technical Committee meeting. Upon receipt of a favorable report 

and recommendation from the committee or upon failure of the committee to respond within a 30-

day period, IEUA may authorize the new Delivery Point.  

If the Regional Technical Committee recommends against a new Delivery Point for any 

Contracting Agency, they shall do so in writing including the technical basis for their decision. 

The Contracting Agency may file a written request for a hearing with the secretary of the Board 

of Directors of IEUA. Upon receipt of such a request, said Board of Directors shall schedule and 

conduct a hearing in accordance with the provisions of Section 26 hereof. All costs and expenses 

of making the connection between the Regional Sewerage System and the Community Sewer 

System of any Contracting Agency shall be borne by the Contracting Agency and/or third party.    

SECTION 14 - DETERMINATION OF SEWAGE DELIVERIES: COSTS OF 
MEASURING EQUIPMENT 

IEUA shall determine the amount of sewage delivered to the Regional Sewerage System by all 

Contracting Agencies and shall maintain accurate and complete records thereof.  The amount of 

sewage delivered to the Regional Sewerage System by each Contracting Agency shall be 

determined by IEUA based on a standard daily measurement or contribution per Equivalent 

Dwelling Unit methodology established by IEUA and the Regional Technical Committee from 

time to time. 

If required by IEUA, a Contracting Agency shall install and maintain and operate at its expense, 

measuring devices and equipment for measuring the flow of sewage from the Contracting 

Agency’s Community Sewer System into the Regional Sewerage System. Prior to installation, 

IEUA shall approve the design of such measuring devices and equipment and shall inspect and 

approve their installation. Such measuring devices and equipment shall be examined, tested and 

serviced regularly, but not less than once a year, by IEUA to ensure their accuracy. At any time 

IEUA or any Contracting Agency may inspect any such measuring device and equipment and all 

records and measurements taken therefrom.  



 

Page 25 of 46 

 

The determination of sewage flow or contribution methodology per Equivalent Dwelling Unit 

contributed by each Contracting Agency shall be reviewed and updated if needed, or as requested 

by IEUA, but not less than every ten (10) years.   

Once the EDU methodology is updated and adopted, EDU and equivalent EDU determinations 

will be made with the updated methodology. Adjustments in cost allocations among Contracting 

Agencies and users among customer classes (i.e.- residential, commercial, and industrial) resulting 

from the updated methodology and determination shall be implemented in consultation with the 

BAR Subcommittee.   

SECTION 15 - CONTROL, PRODUCTION, AND DISPOSITION OF RECYCLED 
WATER 

A. General 

IEUA shall have ownership and control of all sewage delivered into the Regional Sewerage System 

for the purposes of Transmission, Treatment, and Disposal, and shall retain the exclusive right 

over the Recycled Water generated from the sewage delivered to IEUA from the Contracting 

Agencies, having sole discretion over its use, subject only to those contractual rights of the 

Contracting Agencies described in this Section 15. It is the intent of IEUA that Recycled Water be 

put to local beneficial use within the IEUA service area and the Chino Basin to the greatest extent 

practicable and allowed. The contractual right to purchase Recycled Water is established pursuant 

to this Section 15 while the terms and conditions regulating the sale, delivery, and use of Recycled 

Water shall be governed by Ordinance No. 112, or any successors thereof.  

B. Contractual Right to Purchase Recycled Water 

1. Right of First Purchase 

Each Contracting Agency shall have the right of first purchase of Recycled Water as 

provided herein. The purchase of Recycled Water shall be voluntary and determined at the 

option of the Contracting Agency from year to year. The right of first purchase shall take 



 

Page 26 of 46 

 

priority over any other Recycled Water purchase agreements between IEUA and customers 

that are not Contracting Agencies.   

Each Contracting Agency shall have the right of first purchase from IEUA of Recycled 

Water in a total quantity not exceeding the base entitlement of the Contracting Agency. 

The total base supply of Recycled Water which is subject to the right of first purchase from 

IEUA by the Contracting Agencies receiving sewerage service at any Regional Treatment 

Plant shall be the total quantity of sewage delivered into the Regional Sewerage System by 

all such Contracting Agencies, measured at the intake point of the Regional Treatment 

Plants, less normal processing losses resulting from the treatment of sewage, and less 

Recycled Water exported from the Chino Basin by IEUA to satisfy the SAR Base Flow 

Obligation if and to the extent deemed necessary by IEUA. 

Each Contracting Agency shall have a monthly base entitlement to a portion of the total 

base supply of Recycled Water, said portion being in the proportion that the quantity of 

sewage delivered into the Regional Sewerage System by the Contracting Agency bears to 

the total quantity of sewage delivered into the Regional Sewerage System by all 

Contracting Agencies. 

The Contracting Agencies have expressed a desire to achieve equitable distribution of 

Recycled Water deliveries, especially during periods of high demand. Each Contracting 

Agency shall manage its Recycled Water usage responsibly during periods of high demand 

so as not to impede other Contracting Agencies from utilizing all their base entitlement, 

and to prevent Contracting Agencies from using Recycled Water in excess of their base 

entitlement as calculated on a monthly basis. Recycled Water demands in excess of a 

Contracting Agency’s monthly base entitlement shall not be allowed if it inhibits another 

Contracting Agency from developing a new Recycled Water use project that would be 

within their monthly base entitlement. Following the execution of this contract by all 

Parties, the Regional Technical and Policy Committees will develop an Exhibit “A”, Peak 

Flow Monitoring and Enforcement Criteria, to be incorporated into this contract, that will 



 

Page 27 of 46 

 

detail the requirements for meeting base entitlement as calculated on a monthly basis. 

Authorization of this Exhibit “A” will not require re-authorization of this contract through 

the Parties. Exhibit “A” shall become an authorized Exhibit of this contract by a two-thirds 

majority vote of the Regional Policy Committee and approval by the IEUA Board of 

Directors. 

2. SAR Base Flow Obligation.  

The Parties have differing views regarding the SAR Base Flow Obligation including, but 

not limited to the allocation of the obligation and the method and way the obligation is 

fulfilled. Historically there have been sufficient flows from IEUA Regional Treatment 

Plant discharges to satisfy base entitlement claims and satisfy the SAR Base Flow 

Obligation with Recycled Water and it is believed that such condition will continue for the 

next several years at a minimum.  Although alternative sources of water for meeting the 

SAR Base Flow Obligation are not precluded, IEUA will continue its current practice of 

fulfilling the SAR Base Flow Obligation using Recycled Water from IEUA Regional 

Treatment Plants in conformity with established practice since inception of the Orange 

County Judgment, until an alternative acceptable to IEUA is determined. This topic will be 

reconsidered at the ten-year review provided for in Section 28 of this contract, or earlier 

upon unanimous consent of the Parties.   

IEUA, within its discretion, may prioritize the usage of Recycled Water for meeting the 

SAR Base Flow Obligation when it is necessary to do so regardless of the effect on base 

supply for purchase. If the SAR Base Flow Obligation is not met in a given year, IEUA 

will determine the best course of action to satisfy the SAR Base Flow Obligation the 

following year, which may include reducing the available base supply. IEUA will satisfy 

the SAR Base Flow Obligation with the most cost-effective or practical source of water 

available and seek alternative means of satisfying the SAR Base Flow Obligation in order 

to maximize available local supplies.  

3. Surplus Base Supply.  



 

Page 28 of 46 

 

Surplus base supply is that portion of base supply remaining after each Contracting Agency 

has exercised its right of first purchase to purchase its base entitlement, or portion thereof. 

During and following the end of each year IEUA shall determine the amount of surplus 

base supply available, if any, for purchase by Contracting Agencies, and shall notify all 

Contracting Agencies of that amount, in writing. Each Contracting Agency shall have the 

option to purchase surplus base supply in an amount calculated utilizing the same ratio 

used to calculate base entitlement. However, if after offering surplus base supply to all 

Contracting Agencies there remains surplus base supply, then a Contracting Agency may 

purchase from the remaining surplus base supply in an unrestricted amount subject to 

mutual agreement with IEUA. Nothing herein shall prevent Contracting Agencies from 

establishing agreements to purchase Recycled Water from other Contracting Agencies. The 

purchase of Recycled Water in excess of a Contracting Agency’s base entitlement in any 

given year shall not result in an increase in base entitlement for subsequent years. 

4. Disposition by IEUA of Unclaimed Recycled Water. 

To the extent that any of the Contracting Agencies fail to exercise their respective rights of 

first purchase of Recycled Water, IEUA may make any lawful use of such Recycled Water, 

including beneficial use, sale, or other disposition inside or outside the Chino Basin; 

provided, that, any funds generated by the sale of Recycled Water shall be deposited into 

the IEUA Recycled Water Fund. IEUA will inform the Contracting Agencies of the use or 

sale of any unclaimed Recycled Water within 30 days of the transaction. 

SECTION 16 - RESERVED 

SECTION 17 - SERVICE CHARGES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION 
OF THE REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM 

All Contracting Agencies shall pay service charges for all sewage delivered to the Regional 

Sewerage System. Each Contracting Agency shall pay its pro rata share of all net audited costs 

incurred by IEUA in the maintenance and operations of the system. Net audited costs consist of: 



 

Page 29 of 46 

 

A. Maintenance and Operation 

Costs of maintenance and operation of all transmission and treatment facilities comprising the 

Regional Sewerage System; and 

B. Other Costs 

Any other costs reasonably related to the maintenance and operation of the system; and 

C. Replacement and Unforeseen Costs 

Based upon generally accepted engineering and accounting principles, reasonable reserves for the 

estimated costs and expenses of: 

1. Replacement of any facilities where the costs and expenses of replacement are 

customarily considered a part of the costs and expenses of extraordinary 

maintenance which adds to the normal service life of facilities; and 

2. Unforeseen contingencies; and 

3. Actual costs and expenses incurred by IEUA for the Transmission, Treatment and 

Disposal of any byproduct resulting from the treatment of the Sewage delivered 

by a Contracting Agency. 

D.  Cost Of Service Study (“COSS”) 

IEUA may, from time to time, conduct a COSS which shall be conducted in accordance with 

procedures normally utilized in the public rate setting process and in accordance with applicable 

law. 

E. Proposed Service Charge Rate Adjustment (“Adjustment”) 

Prior to the imposition of a rate adjustment, IEUA shall conduct a rate workshop wherein 

Contracting Agencies may express comments and feedback on the matter for consideration by 

IEUA. Rate adjustments for each fiscal year shall be within the discretion of the IEUA Board of 

Directors and shall conform to the COSS and applicable law.    



 

Page 30 of 46 

 

SECTION 18 - RESERVED 

SECTION 19 - REGIONAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM BUDGETS  

A. Fiscal Year Budgets  

For each fiscal year, or on a biennial basis if utilized by IEUA, the IEUA Board of Directors shall 

cause to be prepared and shall adopt a budget, which includes the Regional Sewerage System 

budget. 

B. Form and Content of Budgets  

The budget shall contain a plan of financial operations for the Regional Sewerage System and shall 

contain an estimate of the requirements for expenditures, including provisions for any reserves, 

and the means of financing such requirements.  The budget shall be itemized and shall show in 

reasonable detail the nature and purpose of each item of revenue and expense and the actual or 

estimated amount thereof. The budget shall include a plan of financial operations for the capital 

costs of the acquisition and construction of the Regional Sewerage System, and a plan of financial 

operation for the maintenance and operation of the system, prepared as follows: 

1. Capital Improvement Fund Budget.  The costs of the acquisition and construction 

of the Regional Sewerage System shall show:  

a. The various items and amounts of capital costs and the total thereof;  

b. The total amount in the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund and 

the available and unencumbered balance of such fund as of the 

commencement of the fiscal year and an estimate of the amount therein and 

the unencumbered balance thereof as of the end of the fiscal year;  

c. The amounts, if any, of IEUA revenues from sources other than property taxes 

which are or will be available for payment of capital costs and the total thereof;  

d. The estimated amount of property taxes to be received during the fiscal year;  

e. The projected amount of Supplemental Capital Outlay Fund contributions 



 

Page 31 of 46 

 

required from each Contracting Agency during the fiscal year and the total 

thereof. 

2. Maintenance and Operations Fund Budget.  The part covering the maintenance and 

operation of the Regional Sewerage System shall show: 

a. The various items and amounts of maintenance and operation expenses, 

including replacement and rehabilitation, and the total thereof; 

b. The total amount in any reserves theretofore established, and the available and 

unencumbered balance in such reserves as of the commencement and end of 

the fiscal year;  

c. The amount of service charges payable by each Contracting Agency and the 

total paid or payable by all Contracting Agencies;  

d. The amounts, if any, of revenue from sources other than services charges 

which will be available for payment of maintenance and operation expenses 

and the total thereof;  

e. The total amount required to be raised from service charges for payment of 

maintenance and operations expenses;  

f. The rate of the service charge for the fiscal year(s);  

g. The amount of any surplus of service charges received by IEUA during the 

fiscal year preceding the fiscal year in progress in excess of the cost of 

maintenance and operation of the Regional Sewerage System for that year 

which was transferred to the Regional Sewerage System Operation and 

Maintenance Fund reserve for replacement of Regional Sewerage System 

facilities for such preceding fiscal year, or the amount, if any, of any shortage 

in the amount of service charges received by IEUA during such preceding 

fiscal year less than the cost of maintenance and operation of the Regional 

Sewerage System for that year which was transferred from said reserve during 

the year then in progress for such preceding fiscal year;  



 

Page 32 of 46 

 

C. Preparation and Approval of Proposed Budgets   

Not later than April 1 of each budgeting year, the IEUA Board of Directors shall direct its General 

Manager, or such other person or persons as the Board may designate, to prepare and submit to 

the Board a proposed Regional Sewerage System budget for the next fiscal year(s). IEUA will 

conduct informational sessions with the Regional Technical and Policy Committees to inform the 

Committees of the proposed Regional Sewerage System budget and provide the Committees with 

opportunities for input. Said budget and the rate of service charge for the next fiscal year will be 

considered and adopted by IEUA no later than June 30 of each fiscal year. If the Board of Directors 

fails to adopt a budget by June 30 then, until such time as the Board shall adopt such budget, the 

budget last adopted shall constitute the budget for such fiscal year.   

D. Adoption of Separate Budgets   

Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this section, the Board of Directors of IEUA may 

elect for any fiscal year to separately prepare and adopt a Capital Improvement Fund Budget and 

a Maintenance and Operation Fund Budget. If said Board elects to so proceed, each such separate 

budget shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of this section which are applicable 

thereto. Both said budgets shall be processed and adopted in accordance with the procedures and 

pursuant to the time schedule set forth in this section.  

SECTION 20 - BILLING AND PAYMENT OF SERVICE CHARGES 

A. Monthly Billing Statements of Service Charges   

Not later than 20 days after the end of each month, each Contracting Agency shall provide to IEUA 

a report with the number of billable Equivalent Dwelling Units billable to each Contracting 

Agency. IEUA shall provide a billing statement of service charges to each Contracting Agency, 

setting forth the number of billable Equivalent Dwelling Units during such month for the service 

charge rate applicable thereto and the total service charge due and payable to IEUA for said month. 

Monthly service charges shall be based on the service charge rate adopted by the IEUA Board.   



 

Page 33 of 46 

 

B. Payment of Statements; Interest on Overdue Payments   

Each Contracting Agency shall pay the amount of the service charge set forth in any statement on 

or prior to its due date, namely, the thirtieth day following the date of the delivery of such 

statement. In the event that a Contracting Agency is delinquent in payment of bills for service 

charges, a penalty of ten (10) percent of the original unpaid invoice amount shall be added to any 

fee or charge that becomes delinquent. Interest at the maximum rate provided by California 

Government Code Section 926.10 as may be amended from time to time, shall accrue on the total 

of all delinquent fees or charges.  

 
Additional charges provided herein for delinquent payments may be waived by the Board of 

Directors upon written request by the IEUA Customer upon a finding that the delinquency was 

caused by excusable neglect or circumstances beyond the control of the Contracting Agency, 

provided that the delinquent Contracting Agency reimburses IEUA for all costs and penalties 

actually incurred by IEUA as a result of the delinquent payment.  

 

Interest paid upon any delinquent amount shall be credited to the Regional Sewerage System 

Maintenance and Operation Fund unless, by reason of such delinquency, IEUA shall have 

advanced the amount of the delinquency from other sources, in which case, the interest shall be 

credited to such fund as the IEUA Board of Directors may designate. A Contracting Agency shall 

not be entitled to withhold payment, in whole or in part, of the amount of any statement for service 

charges pending action pursuant to part C of this Section 20. 

C. Adjustment for Overpayment or Underpayment   

Upon disagreement between any Contracting Agency and IEUA over the amount of service 

charges or the discovery of an error in computation of service charges for a Contracting Agency, 

which is not resolved within 30 days of communication, IEUA shall request a recommendation 

from the Regional Technical committee. The IEUA Board of Directors shall consider the 

recommendation by the Regional Technical Committee and make its determination on service 



 

Page 34 of 46 

 

charge adjustments, due dates and any interest due, and shall provide for the appropriate credit to 

or debit of any affected Contracting Agency’s service charge account. 

D. Deposit of Payments in Maintenance and Operation Fund   

All monies received by IEUA in payment of service charges shall be deposited in and credited to 

a separate fund or account in the treasury of IEUA, to be known as the “Regional Sewerage System 

Maintenance and Operation Fund.” All monies in said fund and interest earned thereon shall be 

used and expended only for payment of maintenance and operation expenses paid or incurred by 

IEUA under the provisions, of this contract.  

SECTION 21 - RESERVED 

SECTION 22 - RESERVED 

SECTION 23 - GRANTS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

IEUA and the Contracting Agencies shall exercise their best efforts to obtain the maximum 

amounts of grants and other financial assistance which may be available from any federal, state, 

local, or other source for defraying all or any part of the capital costs and the maintenance and 

operation expenses of the Regional Sewerage System. The General Manager of IEUA, the 

Regional Policy Committee, and the Regional Technical Committee shall keep each other fully 

informed of any available grant or other financial assistance programs known to any of them. 

In addition, IEUA shall on a semi-annual basis, submit a report to the Regional Technical 

Committee and the Regional Policy Committee, as an information item, on any proposed or 

pending applications (which may include updates on negotiation status) for grants or other 

financial assistance.  

IEUA’s costs for the acquisition, construction, maintenance, or operation of the Regional 

Sewerage System shall be reduced by amounts of any grants or other non-repayable financial 

assistance received therefor by IEUA from the federal or state government.  



 

Page 35 of 46 

 

SECTION 24 - REGIONAL POLICY COMMITTEE 

The parties desire to provide for a Regional Policy Committee to advise IEUA of the needs and 

views of the Contracting Agencies concerning IEUA’s policies and activities in the financing, 

acquisition, construction, maintenance and operation of the Regional Sewerage System, to make 

reports and recommendations with respect thereto, and to inform the Contracting Agencies 

concerning such policies and activities. Committee membership shall be voluntary.  

Each participating Contracting Agency shall appoint one regular member and one alternate 

member to the Regional Policy Committee.  Such members shall be members of the Contracting 

Agency’s governing body. The regular and alternate members so appointed shall serve at the 

pleasure of the appointing agency. Each participating Contracting Agency shall give the secretary 

of IEUA immediate notice of all appointments and removals made by it, and of the name and 

contact information of each appointee. IEUA shall appoint one regular member and one or more 

alternates to the Regional Policy Committee. The members so appointed shall be members of the 

IEUA Board of Directors of IEUA and shall serve at the pleasure of IEUA. The IEUA member 

shall be entitled to participate at all regular and special meetings of the committee.  

The Regional Policy Committee shall be chaired by a regular member of the Regional Policy 

Committee and shall rotate among its regular members on a biennial basis through all the 

Contracting Agencies.  A Vice Chair shall also be designated to act in the Chair’s absence.  The 

Vice Chair shall be selected by a majority vote of the regular members. A quorum made up of a 

majority of members shall be required to conduct business.   

Each regular member of the Regional Policy Committee or the Contracting Agency’s alternates, 

shall have one vote. A majority of members voting shall be required to carry any matter before the 

committee.  

The Regional Policy Committee shall hold a regular meeting quarterly or as needed in the 

determination of IEUA. The Regional Policy Committee may adopt such procedures and rules as 

it deems advisable concerning its officers, meetings and the manner and method of making its 



 

Page 36 of 46 

 

reviews, reports and recommendations on any matter affecting the acquisition, construction, 

maintenance and operation of the Regional Sewerage System. 

IEUA shall, if requested by the Regional Policy Committee, provide the Regional Policy 

Committee with a meeting place and with the services, advice, and assistance of members of its 

staff. All records, reports, and other information of IEUA pertaining to the financing, acquisition, 

construction, maintenance and operation of the Regional Sewerage System shall be available for 

inspection by members of the Regional Policy Committee. IEUA agrees to maintain and make 

available to the Regional Policy Committee accurate records of all of its costs, disbursements, and 

receipts with respect to activities under this contract. 

SECTION 25 - REGIONAL TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

The parties desire to provide for a Regional Technical Committee to advise the Regional Policy 

Committee on technical matters related to the Regional Sewerage System. Participation shall be 

voluntary. The members and alternate members of the Regional Technical Committee shall be 

appointed by their respective Contracting Agencies and IEUA shall be entitled to appoint one 

member and alternate members with the same right of participation as other members. The 

committee shall hold regular meetings quarterly or as needed in the determination of IEUA.  

Appointments and the number of alternates shall be determined in the sole discretion of each 

Contracting Agency and IEUA as applicable. 

The committee may, and upon request by the Regional Policy Committee or IEUA shall, review 

and make recommendations concerning any of the following technical matters: the acquisition, 

design, construction, maintenance, operation, or financing of sewer facilities, sewage treatment, 

reclamation, or disposal facilities, sewage and effluent measuring devices and equipment, 

Community Sewer Systems and the Regional Sewerage System; sewer user charges; service 

charges; quality standards for sewage and any effluent; and any other technical matter related to 

any of the foregoing.  

 



 

Page 37 of 46 

 

SECTION 26 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Members of the Regional Policy Committee are encouraged to raise pertinent issues concerning 

the Regional Sewerage Contract with the IEUA Board of Directors during the public comment 

period of a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. To the extent that any provision of this 

contract authorizes a hearing under this Section 26, the following procedures will apply: 

A. Notice of Dispute.  

The Regional Policy Committee, through a majority vote of its members, may request a 

hearing before the IEUA Board of Directors on any dispute related to the IEUA’s 

performance of this Contract or where the Contract authorizes a hearing by submitting a 

request in writing to the General Manager of IEUA, with the date of delivery of such 

request deemed the submission date. The request shall state the issue in dispute and a brief 

explanation of the Regional Policy Committee position on the matter. 

B. Notice of Hearing.  

Within 30 days of the submission date IEUA shall schedule a hearing to consider the 

matter. IEUA shall send written notice to all Contracting Agencies by First Class Mail and 

shall be deemed to have been given when so deposited in the United States Mail, postage 

prepaid. The notice shall set forth the date, time and location for the hearing. The hearing 

shall be conducted in conjunction with a special or regularly scheduled meeting of the 

IEUA Board of Directors and shall be published in conformity with Brown Act 

requirements. The hearing shall be scheduled on a date not more than 60 days from the 

submission date. 

C. Hearing.  

Any person may address the IEUA Board of Directors at the hearing. Any documentary 

evidence to be introduced by a party must be submitted to the Secretary of the IEUA Board 

of Directors no later than 10 days prior to the hearing date to ensure the documents are 

included in the agenda package and available for posting to the IEUA website. 



 

Page 38 of 46 

 

D. Continuance.  

The IEUA Board of Directors may, within its discretion, continue the hearing at the request 

of any person or the Board of Directors upon a showing of good cause, but in no event 

shall such continuance extend beyond 30 days. 

E. Decision.  

At the close of the hearing, the IEUA Board of Directors may confer and render a decision 

through a majority vote of its members, which shall be recorded upon the minutes of the 

meeting. The decision by the IEUA Board of Directors shall be deemed a final 

administrative action. The IEUA Board of Directors may continue the matter for up to 60 

days for further discussion and consideration of the evidence. 

SECTION 27 - EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRACT 

This contract between IEUA and the undersigned Contracting Agency shall become effective 

(“Effective Date”) after the occurrence of both of the following events:  

1. The authorization and execution of this contract by IEUA and the undersigned 

Contracting Agencies.  

2. IEUA shall give written notice thereof to the undersigned Contracting Agency. 

The notice shall specify a date, as determined by IEUA in accordance with this 

section, which shall be the Effective Date of this contract.  

 

SECTION 28 - TERM OF CONTRACT 

The term of this contract and any other Service Contract entered into between IEUA and any 

sewage collection agency, shall be 50 years from the Effective Date. It is the intent of the parties 

that all Service Contracts providing for the services and facilities of the Regional Sewerage System 



 

Page 39 of 46 

 

shall have the same termination, date, without regard to the effective dates of the individual, 

contracts. 

In order to provide for a periodic review and update, as necessary, of the provisions of this contract, 

IEUA and the Contracting Agencies agree to enter good faith discussions at intervals not exceeding 

ten years or at the request of the majority of the Contracting Agencies. 

SECTION 29 - RENEWAL 

No later than two years prior to the end of the term of this contract or any earlier termination or 

extension of this contract, the parties shall negotiate for the extension or renewal of this contract 

upon comparable terms and conditions. If the parties have been unable to agree thereon, then any 

Contracting Agency, by written notice given to IEUA at least 12 months prior to the expiration of 

said term, may elect to receive continued sewage treatment service after the expiration of said 

term, on a temporary basis, through separate agreement, upon the following conditions:  

A. Expansion.   

If, by reason of continued service, no expansion is required in any facilities of the Regional 

Sewerage System in existence upon the expiration of the term of this contract, the 

Contracting Agency may deliver sewage into the system in any quantity and at any flow 

rates. If, by reason of continued service, such expansion shall be required, the annual 

quantity and flow rates of sewage to be delivered into the Regional Sewerage System by 

the Contracting Agency shall not exceed the quantity and flow rates delivered by the 

agency during the last full fiscal year preceding the expiration of said term.  

B. Service Charge.   

The service charge rate shall be determined as provided in Section 17 hereof.  



 

Page 40 of 46 

 

C. Quality.   

The sewage quality standards shall be in accordance with those in effect during the last full 

fiscal year preceding the expiration of said term or any higher standards prescribed by any 

federal, state or regional agency authorized by law to prescribe quality standards for 

effluent discharges.  

D. Physical Conditions.   

IEUA shall maintain and operate the Regional Sewerage System under substantially the 

same physical conditions of service as prevailed during the last fiscal year preceding the 

expiration of said term. 

Other terms and conditions of continued service shall be reasonable and equitable and shall be 

mutually agreed upon and, if they provide for continued service for a specified number of years, a 

Contracting Agency shall have the option to receive further continued sewage treatment service 

upon the expiration of that and each succeeding period of continued service. Nothing herein shall 

extend the term established in Section 28 of this contract.    

SECTION 30 - AUTHORIZATION AND EXECUTION OF SEWAGE SERVICE 
CONTRACT 

A. Authorization of Any Sewage Collection Agency.   

All proposed contracts between IEUA and any sewage collection agency for the purpose 

of, (i) providing the agency with the services and facilities of the Regional Sewerage 

System under a Service Contract, (ii) the acquisition by IEUA of any existing sewage 

treatment and disposal plant or interceptor sewer, or (iii), both (i) and (ii), shall be 

authorized for execution by IEUA. The agency shall furnish IEUA with a certified copy of 

the resolution authorizing execution by the agency, together with a certified Copy of the 

proposed contract referred to therein. The resolution shall contain all restrictions, 

limitations, and conditions, if any, which may have been imposed on the execution of the 

contract.  



 

Page 41 of 46 

 

B. Amendment of Any Existing Contract; New Contracts with Subsequent Contracting 

Agencies   

If IEUA proposes (i) to amend or rescind any existing Service Contract with a Contracting 

Agency or (ii) to enter a new Service Contract or a contract for the transfer of any existing 

sewage facilities to IEUA, as part of the Regional Sewerage System, the IEUA Board of 

Directors shall adopt a resolution declaring its intention to do so and shall specify a time, 

not sooner than 60 days after the adoption of the resolution, and a place at which the Board 

will hold a hearing on the question of the proposed amendment, rescission or new contract, 

as the case may be.  Immediately thereafter the secretary of IEUA shall deliver a copy of 

the resolution, together with a copy of the proposed amendment, rescission or new contract 

to the clerk or secretary of each Contracting Agency and to each member of the Regional 

Policy Committee.  The Regional Policy Committee shall review the proposal and, not later 

than 10 days preceding the date of the hearing, shall submit its written report and 

recommendation thereon to the general manager of IEUA and to each Contracting Agency. 

At the hearing on the proposal, the IEUA Board shall consider the report and 

recommendation of the Regional Policy Committee and shall hear representatives of any 

Contracting Agency, members of the committee, and any other interested persons. The 

IEUA Board may modify the proposal and, upon the conclusion of the hearing, order the 

authorization for execution by IEUA of the proposed amendment, rescission, or new 

contract, as the case may be. 

Notwithstanding the above, except in regard to amendments authorized by IEUA for 

administrative implementation of an existing Service Contract, any material amendments, 

such as, for example, the Contractual Right to Purchase Recycled Water under Section 

15.B, must also be authorized by Contracting Agencies and agreed to in writing for the 

execution prior to going into effect.  Said authorization by Contracting Agencies shall not 

be unreasonably withheld. 



 

Page 42 of 46 

 

C. Revisions Due to Result of Litigation 

The parties acknowledge that as of the Effective Date, there may be one or more 

Contracting Agencies that do not plan to executive this contract, but rather, have filed, or 

plan to file, litigation relation to the Contract (“Protesting Agency(ies)”.  In the event of 

such litigation, results in a new or revised provisions being included in the Service 

Contracts between IEUA and Protesting Agencies, the other Contracting Agencies may, in 

their discretion, elect to revise their Service Contracts to have said new or revised 

provisions included in their Service Contracts as well. 

SECTION 31 - NOTICE 

Notices authorized or required to be given by any provision of this contract shall be deemed to 

have been given upon delivery, if delivered personally, or upon deposit in the mail, if enclosed in 

a properly addressed envelope and deposited in the United States mail for delivery by registered 

or certified mail, or delivered via electronic mail. 

Notice shall be given to the parties by delivery or mailing to the following officers of the parties 

at the following addresses: 

IEUA 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 

Undersigned Contracting Agency: 

____________________________________ 

____________________________________ 

At any time, a party may give written notice to the other party of a change in the designated officer 

or address. 



 

Page 43 of 46 

 

Notice to members of the Regional Policy Committee or the Regional Technical Committee shall 

be given to the persons and at the addresses designated in the notices of appointment filed with the 

Secretary of IEUA. 

SECTION 32 - PARTIAL INVALIDITY 

The invalidity of any provision of this contract shall not affect the validity of the remainder thereof 

which can be given effect without such invalid provision. 

SECTION 33 - INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made an operative part of this Service 

Contract. 

SECTION 34 - COUNTERPARTS 

This Service Contract shall be executed by all parties in duplicate originals, each of which shall be 

considered an original Service Contract. 

 

Date of Execution 
 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
Date of Execution 
 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
 
 
___________________________ 
President of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Chino 
 
 



 

Page 44 of 46 

 

___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Date of Execution 
 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Execution 
 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
Date of Execution 
 
 

___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Chino Hills 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cucamonga Valley Water District 
 
 
___________________________ 
Board President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Fontana 
 
 



 

Page 45 of 46 

 

___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Date of Execution 
 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of Execution 
 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Date of Execution 
 
 

___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Montclair 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Ontario 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Upland 
 
 



 

Page 46 of 46 

 

___________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACTION
ITEM

2B



General Manager

Budget Impact 

October 18, 2023

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-10-3, Establishing Imported Water Rates and the
Readiness-To-Serve Ten-Year Rolling Average Pass-Through

The current Resolution 2023-6-5, adopted on June 21, 2023, was established based on
Metropolitan Water District (MWD) Board initially approved the Readiness-To-Serve (RTS)
Ten-Year Rolling Average (TYRA) and Capacity Charge rates and Standby Charge for FY
2023/24.

On June 2023, MWD issued a memo to all the metropolitan member agencies that the rates have
been finalized for FY 2023/24 which also incorporated the adjustment in the standby charge and
the ten year rolling calculation.

The total RTS TYRA pass-through shall be charged by IEUA to the Local Agencies
(Cucamonga Valley Water District, Fontana Water Company and Water Facilities Authority)
and any other agencies purchasing MWD imported water, to recover 100% of total RTS charges
imposed by MWD.

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-3, Establishing Imported Water Rates and Readiness-to-Serve
(RTS) Ten-Year Rolling Average (TYRA) Pass-Through retroactive to July 1, 2023, and
rescinding Resolution No. 2023-6-5 adopted in June 2023.

$ 0

The revision of the resolution will not affect the Agency's proposed spending levels or reserves,
as the total RTS charges imposed by MWD is 100% pass-through to local agencies.

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Amendment to the rate resolution for FY 2023/24 is consistent with the Agency’s business goal
of Fiscal Responsibility in funding and appropriation.

Resolution No. 2023-6-5 was adopted by the Board on June 21, 2023.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Resolution No. 2023-10-3, establishing Imported Water Rates and 
Readiness-to-Serve (RTS) Ten-Year Rolling Average (TYRA) Pass-Through
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

23229



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Metropolitan Water District’s Readiness-To-Serve Charge Correction 

In April 2022, the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) Board of Directors adopted supply/access 
rates for Calendar Year (CY) 2023 and 2024. The MWD Board also adopted the Readiness-to-
Serve (RTS) charge and Capacity charge for CY 2023 at that time. In April 2023, the MWD Board
adopted the same RTS and Capacity charge for CY 2024. This allowed IEUA to adopt Resolution 
2023-6-5 in June 2023 to establish pass-through rates for Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24. 

The RTS charge recovers capital costs for the portion of MWD’s system that is utilized for 
emergency service and available capacity during outages and hydrologic variability. The RTS is 
calculated based on the Ten-Year Rolling Average (TYRA) of each member agencies’ FY 
demands up until the prior FY at the time of adoption. For example, in April 2023, MWD adopted 
the RTS charge based on FY demands from FY 2012/13 through FY 2021/22.

After an extensive review of MWD’s purchase volumes and invoices, Staff discovered that 
MWD’s TYRA calculation of purchase totals did not fully match IEUA’s calculation. Cucamonga 
Valley Water District (CVWD) also discovered and notified IEUA at this time that the MWD 
TYRA calculation was missing a portion of CVWD’s additional Dry-Year Yield (DYY) water 
purchases from FYs 19/20 through 21/22. This issue also impacted the totals for Fontana Water 
Company (FWC), as FWC also purchased DYY water during this period.

IEUA contacted MWD to resolve the issue and MWD confirmed that this occurred due to an 
incorrect coding in their new accounting system that they transitioned to back in 2020. MWD 
revised their RTS TYRA calculation in their system to include the incorrectly coded DYY 
purchases and as a result, IEUA’s TYRA percentages increased along with IEUA’s share of the 
RTS. IEUA’s proposed Resolution 2023-10-3 makes the necessary corrections to the MWD RTS 
pass-through charge previously adopted under Resolution 2023-6-5. Due to this system error, 
MWD will also issue an RTS correction memo later this year to request missing RTS charges that 
would have been paid during the previous years. Staff estimates this charge will amount to 
approximately $185,000 and will be paid for by CVWD and FWC for their water purchased 
through the DYY program from FYs 19/20 through 21/22. Both entities have verified these 
amounts and have acknowledged their responsibility for those charges. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10-3 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, 
ESTABLISHING IMPORTED WATER RATES AND THE READINESS-TO-
SERVE (RTS) TEN-YEAR ROLLING AVERAGE (TYRA) PASS-THROUGH 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Division II, Part II, Section 201 of Ordinance No. 104, the Board of 
Directors of Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (Agency) annually updates established rates and 
charges to cover the current cost of water purchased by Local Retail Agencies within the 
portions of their service areas that are eligible** for wholesale water deliveries from the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD); 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency establishes rates for delivery of MWD’s 
water supplies; and the rates are based on the biennial budget, rates and charges that were 
approved and adopted by the MWD Board on May 09, 2023, and updated in the MWD Water 
Service Rates and Charges for 2024 memorandum issued to Member Agency Managers on June 
13, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of IEUA shall establish an annual Readiness-To-Serve 
(RTS) pass-through charge, based on a Ten-Year Rolling Average (TYRA) MWD 
methodology.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES AND 
ORDERS the following to be effective July 1, 2023, and January 1, 2024, and to remain in 
effect until rescinded by a new resolution: 

 
Section 1.  That the rates of sales of imported water are direct pass-through charged by MWD 
for each class of water.  The rates, by class of water are as follows: 

 
(a)    FOR TIER 1 FULL SERVICE UNTREATED  
 WATER – i.e., domestic and municipal purposes:    
 
 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023  $855.00 per acre foot 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024  $903.00 per acre foot 
  
 
(b) FOR TIER 2 FULL SERVICE UNTREATED  
 WATER – i.e., domestic and municipal purposes:    

  
 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023  $1,064.00 per acre foot 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024  $1,102.00 per acre foot 
  
 
Section 2.  That IEUA will impose any MWD rates and charges, applicable to each service 
connection, if invoiced by MWD to IEUA during FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/2025. 



Resolution No. 2023-10-3 
Page 2 of 4 

   
Section 3.  The MWD levied total Readiness-To-Serve (RTS) Charge shall be as follows:   
 

 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023             $  154,000,000 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024             $  167,000,000 
 

IEUA shall be charged by MWD a percentage of the annual total RTS Charge based on a Ten-
Year Rolling Average of use by IEUA and any agencies to which IEUA serves MWD imported 
water. IEUA’s share of the total RTS Charge has been calculated by MWD to be as follows: 
 

 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023             4.12% 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024             4.21% 

 
Section 4.  That a Readiness-To-Serve Ten Year Rolling Average (RTS TYRA) pass-through 
shall be charged by IEUA to the Local Agencies (Cucamonga Valley Water District, Fontana 
Water Company and Water Facilities Authority) and any other agencies purchasing MWD 
imported water, to recover 100% of total RTS charges imposed by MWD. 
 
07/01/2023 – 06/30/2024         $  6,686,273 
 
Section 5.  The MWD levied estimated Standby Charge for the year for IEUA shall be as 
follows:   
 
07/01/2023 – 06/30/2024         $  1,977,977 
 
The RTS Charge levied on IEUA by MWD shall be reduced by an equivalent amount of the 
total Standby Charge. 
 
Section 6.  That the MWD levied Capacity Charge ($/cfs) shall be as follows: 

 
 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023             $  10,600 per cubic foot per second (cfs) 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024             $  11,200 per cubic foot per second (cfs) 
 

Section 7. To the extent that MWD offers financial incentives as credits on their monthly 
invoices for participation in applicable MWD-sponsored water resources programs (such as the 
Dry-Year-Yield recharge program, Conservation Credits Program, or Local Resources 
Program), IEUA will pass the credit onto the invoice(s) of the applicable Local Agency(ies), 
unless IEUA is the designated recipient.  

  
Section 8.  In the event of any delinquent payments for bills related to imported water or other 
charges, the Agency will apply Division III, Part I, Section 107 of Ordinance No. 104 
 

  



Resolution No. 2023-10-3 
Page 3 of 4 

Section 9.  That upon the effective date of this Resolution, Resolution No. 2023-6-5 is hereby 
rescinded in its entirety. 

 
 

ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2023. 
 
 

 
                         
Marco Tule 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*  
and of the Board of Directors thereof 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*a Municipal Water District 
**In order to be eligible for supplemental water provision from MWD, parcels must have been annexed into the service areas of both MWD and 
the Agency 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2023-10-3 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

)SS 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO  ) 
 

I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2023-10-3, was adopted at a regular meeting 

on October 18, 2023, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:  None 
 

NOES:  None  
 

ABSTAIN: None  
 

ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 

  ________________________________ 
       Jasmin A. Hall     
       Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 

 
  



Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-10-3, 
Establishing Imported Water Rates 
and the RTS TYRA Pass-Through

Alex Lopez

Acting Treasurer

October 2023



Background

2

 IEUA’s Resolution 2023-6-5 was 
adopted on June 21, 2023 based on 
MWD’s Board previously approved 
RTS and Capacity Charge rates and 
Standby Charge for FY 23/24

 MWD subsequently adjusted its FY 
23/24 RTS Charges to incorporate 
DYY deliveries to IEUA, which were 
memorialized in an MWD member 
agency memo in June 2023 

 This resolution would incorporate 
MWD’s updated RTS Charges

   

Adopted 

Resolution

No. 2023-6-5

Amended 

Resolution

No. 2023-10-3

Difference

Inc/(Dec)

MWD RTS Obligation for FY:

Calendar Yr (CY) 2023 TYRA 55,762                58,512                2,750                  
RTS Share 3.93% 4.12% 0.19%
Calendar Yr (CY) 2024 TYRA 54,932                59,973                5,041                  
RTS Share 3.87% 4.21% 0.34%
CY 2023 RTS Charge 154,000,000$     154,000,000$     -$                    
CY 2024 RTS Charge 167,000,000$     167,000,000$     -$                    

6 mths @ CY23 RTS Charge 3,026,283$         3,169,387$         143,104$            
6 mths @ CY24 RTS Charge 3,232,703$         3,516,887$         284,183$            

Total FY 2023-24 RTS Charge 6,258,986$         6,686,273$         427,286$            

Standby Charge Collection: 2,009,525$         1,977,977$         (31,548)$             
  

IEUA (Adjusted) RTS Obligation: 4,249,462$         4,708,296$         458,834$            



Staff’s Recommendation

3

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-3, Establishing Imported Water 
Rates and Readiness-to-Serve (RTS) Ten-Year Rolling Average 
(TYRA) Pass-Through retroactive to July 1, 2023, and rescinding 
Resolution No. 2023-6-5 adopted in June 2023.

Amendment to the rate resolution for FY 2023/24 is consistent with the Agency’s 
business goal of Fiscal Responsibility in funding and appropriation.



ACTION
ITEM

2C



General Manager

Budget Impact 

Polymer Chemical Contract Award



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

’

23213

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/pvn1hso1apj7u8ehl1la7/October_Board_Approval_-_Solenis_LLC_-_460000.pdf?rlkey=y4842somk53gpxh1hp0xb84ph&dl=0


Polymer Chemical Contract Award

Michael Dias, PE
Senior Associate Engineer - PE

October 2023



Purpose of Polymer

2

Polymers: 
—Act as a glue to bind larger solids particles for a better 

solid-liquid separation

• Dissolved Air Floatation Thickener 
(DAFT):

—Maintain digester health and capacity through 
thickening solids

• Target total solids concentration of 5%

• Centrifuge Dewatering:
—Reduce hauling cost

• Target total solids concentration of greater than 22%
—Reduce off site discharge costs to the NRW system

• Target 95% recovery rateRaw Sludge
Thickened Sludge



Background

3

DAFT Sludge Thickening Polymer is used at:

• Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 
• Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 2 (RP-2)

Centrifuge Dewatering Polymer is used at:

• Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1)
• Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5)

—Upon completion of the RP-5 expansion



IEUA Wastewater Chemicals

4

Chemical Purpose

Sludge thickening 
polymer

• Used in dissolved air flotation thickeners for improving the solid-liquid 
separation

Dewatering polymer • Used in centrifuges for improving the solid-liquid separation

Sodium hypochlorite • Disinfection

Sodium bisulfite • Neutralize residual chlorine

Anti-struvite • Struvite prevention in centrate piping

Aluminum sulfate • Tertiary flocculation 

Ferric chloride • H2S management and primary clarifier settling



Chemical Supplier Updates

5

Chemical Cost Justification Agency Impact FY23/24

Sludge thickening 
polymer

• Competitive bid • Increase of 6%

Dewatering 
polymer

• Competitive bid • Increase of 3%

Sodium 
hypochlorite

• Competitive bid • Decrease of 9%

Sodium bisulfite • CPI-U • Increase of 5%

Anti-struvite • CPI-U • Increase of 5%

Aluminum sulfate • Sulfuric acid
• Alumina trihydrate
• Freight

• Increase of 34%

Ferric chloride • Hydrochloric acid
• Freight

• Increase of 36%



Proposal Results – Thickening and 
Dewatering Polymer

6

Contract Terms Aqua Ben Solenis, LLC
Univar 

Solutions

Eight-month 
fixed price

$1.47/lb
$1.54/lb

$1.67/lb
$1.70/lb

$2.03/lb
$2.03/lb

Option year 1 1-5% 0-5% 0-5%

Option year 2 1-5% 0-5% 0-5%

Option year 3 1-5% 0-5% 0-5%

Option year 4 1-5% 0-5% 0-5%

Life Cycle Estimate 
(*includes hauling 
cost savings estimate)

$14,300,000 $14,200,000* $17,300,000*

Proposals Received

Aqua Ben Corporation (Current Supplier)

Solenis, LLC

Univar Solutions

Evaluation Criteria

Comprehensive scoring with field testing

• Performance Results

• Estimated Yearly Cost

• Supplier Abilities



Staff’s Recommendation

7

1. Approve the award to provide the supply of polymer chemical, Contract
No. 4600003418, to Solenis, LLC, for an eight-month contract, with four
one-year renewal options, for a potential total contract term of four years
and eight months for a not-to-exceed amount of $17,000,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes.

The IEUA Polymer Chemical Contract is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Business Practices, 
specifically the Operations objective that IEUA is committed to sustainable cost containment of operating and 

capital costs.



ACTION
ITEM

2D



General Manager

Budget Impact 

FY 2023/24 First Quarter Budget Amendment

On June 21, 2023 the Board of Directors approved the Agency’s FYs 2023/24 and 2024/25
Biennial Budget and the Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP) 2023/24- 2032/33 which
is consistent with the Agency's long term planning documents and the Board adopted IEUA
Business Goals.

Beginning this fiscal year, staff will bring budget amendment requests to the Board each quarter.
Finance staff worked with different Agency units to identify items needing budget augmentation
including the annual carry forward open encumbrances and commitments from Fiscal Year (FY)
2022/23 to FY 2023/24.

A total FY 2023/24 budget amendment of $18,098,145 and a total project budget amendment of
$14,389,500 is requested for the first quarter of FY 2023/24.

1. Amend the annual budget for 69 projects in the amount of $18,098,147 and amend the total
project budget for 20 projects in the amount of $14,389,500 in various funds; and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-1, approving the Agency's FY 2023/24 amended budget.

$ 0

If approved, the FY 2023/24 budget will be augmented by $18,098,145 in the respective funds
and major account categories (capital and operations & maintenance) as detailed in Attachment
A.

 October 18, 2023
  

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Approval of the First Quarter Budget Amendment is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of 
Fiscal Responsibility and maintaining prudent budgetary controls.

On June 21, 2023, the Board adopted the Agency's Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years (FYs)
2023/24 and 2024/25 and the FYs 2023/24 - 2032/33 TYCIP.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Resolution No. 2023-10-1 
Attachment 3 - Powerpoint

Not Applicable

23222



Page 1 of 8 

Background
Subject: Fiscal Year 2023/24 First Quarter Budget Amendment 

BACKGROUND

On June 21, 2023, the Board of Directors approved the Agency’s FYs 2023/24 and 2024/25 
Biennial Budget and the Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP) 2023/24 - 2032/33 which 
is consistent with the Agency's long term planning documents and the Board adopted IEUA 
Business Goals.

In compliance with the Agency's Fiscal Control Ordinance 102 and Policy A-81, Fiscal Year End 
Carry Forward of Encumbrances and Related Budget, a review is done at the end of the fiscal year 
to determine whether any budget adjustments are needed to meet changes in certain assumptions 
or conditions. Finance staff worked with different units to identify items needing budget 
augmentation including open encumbrances and commitments from Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 to 
be carried forward to FY 2023/24. A summary of the total annual budget amendment and the total 
project budget amendment request is shown in Table 1. 

Table 1:  Budget Amendment Summary by Fund
($ in Millions)

Fund
Adopted

FY 2023/24 
Budget

Proposed
Amendment

Amended
FY 2023/24 

Budget

Current 
Total Project 

Budget

Proposed
Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Administrative Services $1.70 $1.82 $3.52 $14.85 $0.00 $14.85

Recharge Water 2.77 2.93 5.70 33.53 0.00 33.53
Non-Reclaimable 

Wastewater 2.72 1.08 3.80 11.33 0.00 11.33 

Recycled Water 2.33 0.27 2.60 6.34 2.00 8.34
Water Resources 0.47 4.56 5.03 3.92 9.05 12.97

Regional Wastewater 
O&M 4.26 7.23 11.49 56.82 1.89 58.71

Regional Wastewater 
Capital 1.28 0.20 1.48 18.98 1.45 20.43

Total $15.53 $18.09 $33.62 $145.77 $14.39 $160.16

First Quarter Budget Amendment line-item detail is shown in Attachment A included at the end 
of this document.  

Pursuant to Fiscal Ordinance 102, total project budgets need to be amended to reflect changes in 
the overall projections. After the adoption of the TYCIP and the accumulated project costs through 
FY 2022/23 were entered, the projections of some total project costs have changed. The proposed 
total project budget has been determined in collaboration with the project managers for each 
project. The total project budget amendment request for capital projects is $5,050,000. The 



Page 2 of 8 
 
requested augmentation to the total project budgets will have no fiscal impact to the annual 
appropriation for the amended FY 2023/24 budget. 
 
Staff is requesting two non-capital operations and maintenance projects be added to the FY 
2023/24 budget. The first, WU24016 Turnkey Turf Transformation project is 100% grant-funded 
by the Department of Water Resources. This is a multi-year program that will identify and replace 
non-functional turf (NFT) in highly visible, non-residential sites across the service areas of the 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Calleguas Municipal Water District, Las Virgenes Municipal 
Water District, and Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District. The Agency will serve as 
the program administrator and implementor, on behalf of the other four agencies. The Turnkey 
Turf Transformation Project is expected to transform over 1 million sq. ft. of NFT on selected sites 
through a combination of turf removal, landscape design and implementation, irrigation upgrades, 
and more. The grant will cover costs associated with administration, a public relations campaign, 
a water savings study, and landscape services. As such a $2.8 million fiscal year budget and a $8.5 
million total project budget augmentation is requested for the Water Resources fund to complete 
this project.  
 
Additionally, staff is requesting a new project, EN24050 Solids Handling Lease, with a total 
project budget of $250,000 be approved and a $175,000 annual project budget be established in 
FY 2023/24 in the Regional Wastewater Operations and Maintenance fund. Currently the RP-5 
Solids Handling Facility is unused, the Agency would like to enter into a long-term lease 
agreement to place the asset in use by leasing the facility. The amended budget would fund staff 
time to issue an RFP to the public and review the proposals received to determine which entity is 
best suited to lease the facility. This will help generate additional funds for the Agency and ensure 
the land and facility do not continue to remain idle.  
 
A $620,000 fiscal year and total project budget amendment for six non-capital operations & 
maintenance projects is requested to cover additional costs for completion of hydraulic modeling 
and to satisfy a Water Use Efficiency business model agreement to budget each year customer 
agency unspent flex fund budgets. The proposed amendments requested in the Water Resources 
fund total $575,000 and Regional Operations and Maintenance fund totals $45,000.  
 
Non-capital project EN24009 Agency Wide Office Furniture was approved in June 2023 as part 
of the TYCIP with a fiscal year budget of $120,000. Recently, it was determined that a portion of 
project EN24009 should be capitalized. Staff is requesting approval for a fiscal year and total 
project budget transfer of $60,000 from the Administrative Services operations and maintenance 
budget to new capital project FM24010 Agency Wide Office Furniture. Approval of this transfer 
will reduce the operations and maintenance budget and increase the capital budget.  
 
An encumbrance is a reservation or earmark of budgeted funds for obligations arising from 
purchase orders, contracts, leases, or approved non-purchase order commitments. Encumbrances 
improve budgetary control by treating commitments as expenditures and reducing the budget 
amount available for spending. Encumbrances are not actual expenditures until goods and services 
are received, therefore, special treatment is required for open encumbrances if appropriations 
(budget) lapse at the end of the fiscal year. In this case, encumbrances to be honored in the 
following fiscal year, along with corresponding budget, need to be carried forward. Non-
encumbered requests refer to the unexpended budget from the prior fiscal year that is needed to 
support ongoing obligations in the current fiscal year. The Agency’s Fiscal Control Ordinance 



Page 3 of 8 
 
established that both encumbered and non-encumbered requests for carry forward must be 
approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
The proposed carry forward amount of $14,478,314 is comprised of $6,519,336 for capital 
projects, and $7,958,978 for non-capital projects.  

 
The Agency’s accounting treatment of budget carry forwards for open encumbered and non-
encumbered commitments at fiscal year-end is consistent with the accounting standards prescribed 
by the National Council on Government Accounting Statement #1, and the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and affirmed by the Agency’s external auditors.



   Page 4 of 8 
  Background 

Attachment A
Fund Project 

Number Description Adopted
Budget

Requested 
Change

Amended 
Budget

Current 
Total Project

Requested 
Change

New total 
Project Justification 

NON-CAPITAL PROJECTS

Administrative 
Services

FM24009 Agency Wide Office 
Furniture $120,000 ($60,000) $60,000 $120,000 ($60,000) $60,000 Transfer budget to capital project 

FM24010
EN23099 CIPO Enhancements 0 50,000 50,000 125,000 0 125,000 Annual CF

IS21020 ERP Readiness 
Assessment 0 2,775 2,775 110,000 0 110,000 Annual CF

Recharge 
Water EN23113 RW/GWR Safety Work 820,000 107,482 927,482 1,020,000 0 1,020,000 Annual CF

Recycled 
Water

EN19030 Rec Asset Management 100,000 38,430 138,430 1,087,510 0 1,087,510 Annual CF

EN19051 Recharge Water Hydraulic 
Modeling 0 67,902 67,902 702,534 0 702,534 Annual CF

EN21051 Ely Monitoring Well 10,000 6,407 16,407 379,999 0 379,999 Annual CF

EN23017 WC Emergency O&M 
Projects 0 55,908 55,908 225,000 0 225,000 Annual CF

EN23090 WC On-Call /Small 
Projects 250,000 53,439 303,439 500,000 0 500,000 Annual CF

WR21031 Recycled Water Rate 
Study 0 46,353 46,353 200,000 0 200,000 Annual CF

Water 
Resources

Water 
Resources 

WU24005 Large Landscape Retrofit 50,000 15,000 65,000 50,000 15,000 65,000

Water Use Efficiency agreement 
to carry forward unspent flex 

funds  

WU24006 CII Device Rebates 5,000 79,000 84,000 5,000 79,000 84,000

WU24011 Contract Agency 
Administered projects 285,378 72,000 357,378 285,378 72,000 357,378

WU24013 CII Turf Replacement 5,000 192,000 197,000 5,000 192,000 197,000

WU24014 Residential Turf 
Replacement 5,000 217,000 222,000 5,000 217,000 222,000

WR24016 Turnkey Turf 
Transformation 0 2,824,833 2,824,833 0 8,474,500 8,474,500 Approve new project, 100% 

DWR grant funded
WR20004 Garden in Every School 0 6,033 6,033 25,390 0 25,390 Annual CF
WR22004 Garden in Every School 0 4,500 4,500 45,000 0 45,000 Annual CF
WR23004 Discover Env. Water 115,356 248,612 363,968 711,425 0 711,425 Annual CF
WU22001 WUE General Program 0 398,500 398,500 538,695 0 538,695 Annual CF
WU23002 CBWCD LEAP 0 21,400 21,400 27,462 0 27,462 Annual CF
WU23004 Large Landscape Ret 0 117,772 117,772 316,520 0 316,520 Annual CF
WR23010 Residential Pressure 0 18,813 18,813 112,488 0 112,488 Annual CF
WU23012 Residential Small Site 0 112,595 112,595 620,160 0 620,160 Annual CF



Page 5 of 8 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

WU23018 Landscape Irrigation 0 86,001 86,001 638,152 0 638,152 Annual CF 
WU23020 Residential Turf Replace 0 150,000 150,000 535,225 0 535,225 Annual CF 

Regional 
Wastewater 

O&M 
EN24050 Solids Handling Lease 0 175,000 175,000 0 250,000 250,000 

Approve new project to fund staff 
time to issue RFP and lease 

facility 

Regional 
Wastewater 

O&M 

EN24041 Regional Sewer Hydraulic 
Modeling 40,000 45,000 45,000 40,000 45,000 85,000 

Increase annual and total project 
budget to complete model 

updates 
EN16021 TCE Plume Cleanup 0 1,909,425 1,909,425 31,639,618 0 31,639,618 Annual CF 

EN19023 Asset Management 
Planning Document 0 30,653 30,653 1,196,146 0 1,196,146 Annual CF 

EN19024 Regional System Asset 
Management  0 281,897 281,897 3,919,419 0 3,919,419 Annual CF 

EN20034 RO On-Call/Small 
Projects FY 19/20 87,600 5,126 92,726 800,000 0 800,000 Annual CF 

EN20038 Agency Wide Pavement 
Management Study 0 35,653 35,653 340,000 0 340,000 Annual CF 

EN21058 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic 
Modeling 0 953 953 100,000 0 100,000 Annual CF 

EN22037 Prado De-Chlorination 
Station Inundation 0 142,573 142,573 380,000 0 380,000 Annual CF 

EN22053 RO On-Call/Small 
Projects FY  21/22 0 370,281 370,281 565,000 0 565,000 Annual CF 

EN22054 RO Safety On-Call/Small 
Projects FY  21/22 0 169,146 169,146 405,000 0 405,000 Annual CF 

EN23019 RO Emergency O&M 
Projects FY 22/23 0 213,277 213,277 500,000 0 500,000 Annual CF 

EN23021 Agency Wide Infiltration 
and Inflow Study 300,000 300,000 600,000 600,000 0 600,000 Annual CF 

EN23026 RO Assessment Projects 150,000 143,597 293,597 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 Annual CF 

EN23066 Preserve Lift Station 
Improvements 698,000 324,341 1,022,341 1,050,000 0 1,050,000 Annual CF 

EN23088 RO On-Call/Small 
Projects FY 22/23 122,500 829,910 952,410 1,265,000 0 1,265,000 Annual CF 

EN23089 RO Safety On-Call/Small 
Projects FY22/23 0 425,826 425,826 500,000 0 500,000 Annual CF 

IS21007 WW Cybersecurity 
Assessment 0 70,380 70,380 75,000 0 75,000 Annual CF 

PA22003 Agency Wide Paving 300,000 510,913 810,913 3,735,000 0 3,735,000 Annual CF 

PL19002 Regional Contract 
Facilitation 0 50,287 50,287 865,467 0 865,467 Annual CF 



Page 6 of 8 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

PL23001 PFAS Investigation 0 76,674 76,674 250,000 0 250,000 Annual CF 

PL23004 Wastewater Flow and 
Loading Study 100,000 450,689 550,689 600,000 0 600,000 Annual CF 

PL23007 RO Planning Documents 0 24,454 24,454 123,000 0 123,000 Annual CF 

Total Non-Capital Request $3,563,834 $11,518,810 $15,082,644 $58,839,588 $9,284,500 $68,124,088  

 
Fund Project 

Number Description Adopted 
Budget 

Requested 
Change 

Amended 
Budget 

Current 
Total Project 

Requested 
Change 

New total 
Project Justification 

CAPITAL PROJECTS   

Administrative 
Services 

FM24010 Agency Wide Office 
Furniture $0 $60,000 $60,000 $0 $60,000 $60,000 Transfer budget from non-capital 

project FM24009 

EN21020 Oracle P6 Migration and 
Web Hosting Serv 206,000 180,630 386,630 545,500 0 545,500 Annual CF 

EN23003 Central Plant Cooling 
Tower Replacement 420,000 415,758 835,758 3,000,000 0 3,000,000 Annual CF 

EN23034 Agencywide EV 
Charging Stations 600,000 499,297 1,099,297 1,100,000 0 1,100,000 Annual CF 

EN23039 Lab Rooms Temperature 
Variation 0 237,948 237,948 240,000 0 240,000 Annual CF 

EN23100 Headquarter B 
Additional Office Space 0 47,964 47,964 75,000 0 75,000 Annual CF 

EN23102 RP-1 New Parking Lot 100,000 53,231 153,231 1,248,465 0 1,248,465 Annual CF 

EP22004 Agency Wide Vehicle 
Replacement 0 104,350 104,350 1,867,256 0 1,867,256 Annual CF 

FM21005 Structural Agency Wide 
Roofing Phase II 250,000 228,573 478,573 6,416,308 0 6,416,308 Annual CF 

Recharge 
Water 

EN21057 Recharge Basin Clean-up 
of Illegally Dumping 145,898 174 146,072 552,978 0 552,978 Annual CF 

RW15003 Recharge Master Plan 
Update 1,800,000 2,812,587 4,612,587 27,938,033 0 27,938,033 Annual CF 

RW15004 
Lower Day Basin 

Improvements (RMPU 
PID 1 

0 11,550 11,550 4,014,958 0 4,014,958 Annual CF 

Non-
Reclaimable 
Wastewater 

EN20064 
North Sewer North 

Trunk Sewer Siphon 
Replacement 

2,385,000 1,071,103 3,456,103 4,572,126 0 4,572,126 Annual CF 

EN22020 Philadelphia Lift Station 
Pump Upgrades 335,000 10,112 345,112 6,762,142 0 6,762,142 Annual CF 



Page 7 of 8 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

Recycled 
Water 

EN23067 
Hickory Basin 

Replacement Monitoring 
Well 

525,000 0 525,000 653,100 1,200,000 1,853,100 
Increase total project budget, 
drilling expense increase to 
penetrate two aquifer layers 

EN23123 
RP-4 Outfall Valve 

Replacement & Blow Off 
Valve Upgrade 

1,450,000 0 1,450,000 2,587,886 800,000 3,387,886 

Increase total project budget, due 
to additional scope items and 

design consultant not originally 
budgeted 

Regional 
Wastewater 

O&M 

EN21042 RP-1 East Influent Gate 
Replacement 150,000 0 150,000 666,117 30,000 696,117 Increase total project budget, due 

to several change orders 

EN21056 
RP-1 Evaporation 

Cooling for Aeration 
Blower Building 

760,000 0 760,000 1,371,732 500,000 1,871,732 
Increase total project budget, 
design revisions increasing 

project scope 

EN23035 CCWRF RAS Header 
Replacement 180,000 0 180,000 380,000 50,000 430,000 

Increase total project budget, 
additional consultants for PDR 

needed 

EN23038 CCWRF HVAC System 
Upgrade 199,000 0 199,000 257,577 20,000 277,577 

Increase total project budget, 
increase contingencies during 

PDR 

EN24020 RP-1 Dewatering 
Centrate Pumps 500,000 0 500,000 1,394,353 1,000,000 2,394,353 

Increase total project budget, due 
to additional scope items and 
centrate line clean out needs 

EP22003 South Major Facilities 
Repair & Replace 0 54,250 54,250 395,000 0 395,000 Annual CF 

EP23003 South Facilities 
Repair/Replacement 0 59,779 59,779 250,000 0 250,000 Annual CF 

FM23001 Heavy Equipment 
Replacement 670,000 529,574 1,199,574 1,655,000 0 1,655,000 Annual CF 

Regional 
Wastewater 

Capital 

EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvement 116,000 0 116,000 9,200,000 450,000 9,650,000 

Increase total project budget, 
revised construction costs due to 

blower issue and increase 
inspection 

EN19025 Regional Force Main 
Improvement 685,000 0 685,000 4,807,327 920,000 5,727,327 

Increase total project budget, due 
to material and other construction 

delays  

EN23005 
CCWRF Filter Effluent 
Sodium Hypochlorite 

Modification 
180,000 0 180,000 112,975 75,000 187,975 Increase total project budget, due 

to higher construction bids 

IS22006 
SCADA Network 

Infrastructure 
Replacement 

300,000 108,817 408,817 4,300,000 0 4,300,000 Annual CF 



Page 8 of 8 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

IS22007 
RP-1 and RP-2 

Distributed Control 
System Upgrade 

0 71,926 71,926 420,000 0 420,000 Annual CF 

IS22008 Operations Electronic  
Logbook 0 21,712 21,712 140,000 0 140,000 Annual CF 

Total Capital Request  $11,956,898 $6,579,335 $18,536,233 $86,923,833 $5,105,000 $92,028,833  

Grand Total Project Requests $15,520,732 $18,098,145 $33,618,877 $145,763,421 $14,389,500 $160,152,921  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10-1 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AND ADOPTING ITS AMENDED BUDGET 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/24. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* does hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. That this Board of Directors hereby approves and adopts the 
amended budget for Fiscal Years 2023/24, subject to any regulatory reform, or 
action of the State legislature that would have negative impact on the Agency’s 
revenues and expenditures. 

 
 Section 2.   Upon adoption of this resolution, the budget is amended in 

accordance with Attachment A. 
 

 
ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2023. 

 
 
 
 

                         
Marco Tule 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and of the Board of Directors 
thereof 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
  



Resolution No. 2023-10-1 
Page 2 of 7 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

)SS 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2023-10-1 was adopted 

at a regular meeting on October 18, 2023, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:    
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:   
 

ABSENT:   
  
 
 
 

      
        Jasmin A. Hall   
        Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 



Attachment A 
Fund Project 

Number Description Adopted 
Budget 

Requested 
Change 

Amended 
Budget 

Current 
Total Project 

Requested 
Change 

New total 
Project Justification 

NON-CAPITAL PROJECTS   

Administrative 
Services 

FM24009 Agency Wide Office 
Furniture $120,000 ($60,000) $60,000 $120,000 ($60,000) $60,000 Transfer budget to capital project 

FM24010 
EN23099 CIPO Enhancements 0 50,000 50,000 125,000 0 125,000 Annual CF 

IS21020 ERP Readiness 
Assessment 0 2,775 2,775 110,000 0 110,000 Annual CF 

Recharge 
Water EN23113 RW/GWR Safety Work 820,000 107,482 927,482 1,020,000 0 1,020,000 Annual CF 

Recycled 
Water 

EN19030 Rec Asset Management 100,000 38,430 138,430 1,087,510 0 1,087,510 Annual CF 

EN19051 Recharge Water Hydraulic 
Modeling 0 67,902 67,902 702,534 0 702,534 Annual CF 

EN21051 Ely Monitoring Well 10,000 6,407 16,407 379,999 0 379,999 Annual CF 

EN23017 WC Emergency O&M 
Projects  0 55,908 55,908 225,000 0 225,000 Annual CF 

EN23090 WC On-Call /Small 
Projects  250,000 53,439 303,439 500,000 0 500,000 Annual CF 

WR21031 Recycled Water Rate 
Study 0 46,353 46,353 200,000 0 200,000 Annual CF 

Water 
Resources 

Water 
Resources 

WU24005 Large Landscape Retrofit 50,000 15,000 65,000 50,000 15,000 65,000 

Water Use Efficiency agreement 
to carry forward unspent flex 

funds  

WU24006 CII Device Rebates 5,000 79,000 84,000 5,000 79,000 84,000 

WU24011 Contract Agency 
Administered projects 285,378 72,000 357,378 285,378 72,000 357,378 

WU24013 CII Turf Replacement 5,000 192,000 197,000 5,000 192,000 197,000 

WU24014 Residential Turf 
Replacement 5,000 217,000 222,000 5,000 217,000 222,000 

WR24016 Turnkey Turf 
Transformation 0 2,824,833 2,824,833 0 8,474,500 8,474,500 Approve new project, 100% 

DWR grant funded 
WR20004 Garden in Every School 0 6,033 6,033 25,390 0 25,390 Annual CF 
WR22004 Garden in Every School 0 4,500 4,500 45,000 0 45,000 Annual CF 
WR23004 Discover Env. Water 115,356 248,612 363,968 711,425 0 711,425 Annual CF 

WU22001 WUE General Program  0 398,500 398,500 538,695 0 538,695 Annual CF 

WU23002 CBWCD LEAP 0 21,400 21,400 27,462 0 27,462 Annual CF 

WU23004 Large Landscape Ret 0 117,772 117,772 316,520 0 316,520 Annual CF 

WR23010 Residential Pressure 0 18,813 18,813 112,488 0 112,488 Annual CF 
WU23012 Residential Small Site 0 112,595 112,595 620,160 0 620,160 Annual CF 
WU23018 Landscape Irrigation 0 86,001 86,001 638,152 0 638,152 Annual CF 
WU23020 Residential Turf Replace 0 150,000 150,000 535,225 0 535,225 Annual CF 



Resolution No. 2023-10-1 
Page 4 of 7 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

Regional 
Wastewater 

O&M 
EN24050 Solids Handling Lease 0 175,000 175,000 0 250,000 250,000 

Approve new project to fund staff 
time to issue RFP and lease 

facility 

Regional 
Wastewater 

O&M 

EN24041 Regional Sewer Hydraulic 
Modeling 40,000 45,000 45,000 40,000 45,000 85,000 

Increase annual and total project 
budget to complete model 

updates 
EN16021 TCE Plume Cleanup 0 1,909,425 1,909,425 31,639,618 0 31,639,618 Annual CF 

EN19023 Asset Management 
Planning Document 0 30,653 30,653 1,196,146 0 1,196,146 Annual CF 

EN19024 Regional System Asset 
Management  0 281,897 281,897 3,919,419 0 3,919,419 Annual CF 

EN20034 RO On-Call/Small 
Projects FY 19/20 87,600 5,126 92,726 800,000 0 800,000 Annual CF 

EN20038 Agency Wide Pavement 
Management Study 0 35,653 35,653 340,000 0 340,000 Annual CF 

EN21058 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic 
Modeling 0 953 953 100,000 0 100,000 Annual CF 

EN22037 Prado De-Chlorination 
Station Inundation 0 142,573 142,573 380,000 0 380,000 Annual CF 

EN22053 RO On-Call/Small 
Projects FY  21/22 0 370,281 370,281 565,000 0 565,000 Annual CF 

EN22054 RO Safety On-Call/Small 
Projects FY  21/22 0 169,146 169,146 405,000 0 405,000 Annual CF 

EN23019 RO Emergency O&M 
Projects FY 22/23 0 213,277 213,277 500,000 0 500,000 Annual CF 

EN23021 Agency Wide Infiltration 
and Inflow Study 300,000 300,000 600,000 600,000 0 600,000 Annual CF 

EN23026 RO Assessment Projects 150,000 143,597 293,597 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 Annual CF 

EN23066 Preserve Lift Station 
Improvements 698,000 324,341 1,022,341 1,050,000 0 1,050,000 Annual CF 

EN23088 RO On-Call/Small 
Projects FY 22/23 122,500 829,910 952,410 1,265,000 0 1,265,000 Annual CF 

EN23089 RO Safety On-Call/Small 
Projects FY22/23 0 425,826 425,826 500,000 0 500,000 Annual CF 

IS21007 WW Cybersecurity 
Assessment 0 70,380 70,380 75,000 0 75,000 Annual CF 

PA22003 Agency Wide Paving 300,000 510,913 810,913 3,735,000 0 3,735,000 Annual CF 



Resolution No. 2023-10-1 
Page 5 of 7 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

PL19002 Regional Contract 
Facilitation 0 50,287 50,287 865,467 0 865,467 Annual CF 

PL23001 PFAS Investigation 0 76,674 76,674 250,000 0 250,000 Annual CF 

PL23004 Wastewater Flow and 
Loading Study 100,000 450,689 550,689 600,000 0 600,000 Annual CF 

PL23007 RO Planning Documents 0 24,454 24,454 123,000 0 123,000 Annual CF 

Total Non-Capital Request $3,563,834 $11,518,810 $15,082,644 $58,839,588 $9,284,500 $68,124,088  

 
Fund Project 

Number Description Adopted 
Budget 

Requested 
Change 

Amended 
Budget 

Current 
Total Project 

Requested 
Change 

New total 
Project Justification 

CAPITAL PROJECTS   

Administrative 
Services 

FM24010 Agency Wide Office 
Furniture $0 $60,000 $60,000 $0 $60,000 $60,000 Transfer budget from non-capital 

project FM24009 

EN21020 Oracle P6 Migration and 
Web Hosting Serv 206,000 180,630 386,630 545,500 0 545,500 Annual CF 

EN23003 Central Plant Cooling 
Tower Replacement 420,000 415,758 835,758 3,000,000 0 3,000,000 Annual CF 

EN23034 Agencywide EV 
Charging Stations 600,000 499,297 1,099,297 1,100,000 0 1,100,000 Annual CF 

EN23039 Lab Rooms Temperature 
Variation 0 237,948 237,948 240,000 0 240,000 Annual CF 

EN23100 Headquarter B 
Additional Office Space 0 47,964 47,964 75,000 0 75,000 Annual CF 

EN23102 RP-1 New Parking Lot 100,000 53,231 153,231 1,248,465 0 1,248,465 Annual CF 

EP22004 Agency Wide Vehicle 
Replacement 0 104,350 104,350 1,867,256 0 1,867,256 Annual CF 

FM21005 Structural Agency Wide 
Roofing Phase II 250,000 228,573 478,573 6,416,308 0 6,416,308 Annual CF 

Recharge 
Water 

EN21057 Recharge Basin Clean-up 
of Illegally Dumping 145,898 174 146,072 552,978 0 552,978 Annual CF 

RW15003 Recharge Master Plan 
Update 1,800,000 2,812,587 4,612,587 27,938,033 0 27,938,033 Annual CF 

RW15004 
Lower Day Basin 

Improvements (RMPU 
PID 1 

0 11,550 11,550 4,014,958 0 4,014,958 Annual CF 

Non- EN20064 North Sewer North 2,385,000 1,071,103 3,456,103 4,572,126 0 4,572,126 Annual CF 



Resolution No. 2023-10-1 
Page 6 of 7 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

Reclaimable 
Wastewater 

Trunk Sewer Siphon 
Replacement 

EN22020 Philadelphia Lift Station 
Pump Upgrades 335,000 10,112 345,112 6,762,142 0 6,762,142 Annual CF 

Recycled 
Water 

EN23067 
Hickory Basin 

Replacement Monitoring 
Well 

525,000 0 525,000 653,100 1,200,000 1,853,100 
Increase total project budget, 
drilling expense increase to 
penetrate 2 aquifer layers 

EN23123 
RP-4 Outfall Valve 

Replacement & Blow Off 
Valve Upgrade 

1,450,000 0 1,450,000 2,587,886 800,000 3,387,886 

Increase total project budget, due 
to additional scope items and 

design consultant not originally 
budgeted 

Regional 
Wastewater 

O&M 

EN21042 RP-1 East Influent Gate 
Replacement 150,000 0 150,000 666,117 30,000 696,117 Increase total project budget, due 

to several change orders 

EN21056 
RP-1 Evaporation 

Cooling for Aeration 
Blower Building 

760,000 0 760,000 1,371,732 500,000 1,871,732 
Increase total project budget, 
design revisions increasing 

project scope 

EN23035 CCWRF RAS Header 
Replacement 180,000 0 180,000 380,000 50,000 430,000 

Increase total project budget, 
additional consultants for PDR 

needed 

EN23038 CCWRF HVAC System 
Upgrade 199,000 0 199,000 257,577 20,000 277,577 

Increase total project budget, 
increase contingencies during 

PDR 

EN24020 RP-1 Dewatering 
Centrate Pumps 500,000 0 500,000 1,394,353 1,000,000 2,394,353 

Increase total project budget, due 
to additional scope items and 
centrate line clean out needs 

EP22003 South Major Facilities 
Repair & Replace 0 54,250 54,250 395,000 0 395,000 Annual CF 

EP23003 South Facilities 
Repair/Replacement 0 59,779 59,779 250,000 0 250,000 Annual CF 

FM23001 Heavy Equipment 
Replacement 670,000 529,574 1,199,574 1,655,000 0 1,655,000 Annual CF 

Regional 
Wastewater 

Capital 

EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvement 116,000 0 116,000 9,200,000 450,000 9,650,000 

Increase total project budget, 
revised construction costs due to 

blower issue and increase 
inspection 

EN19025 Regional Force Main 
Improvement 685,000 0 685,000 4,807,327 920,000 5,727,327 

Increase total project budget, due 
material and other construction 

delays  



Resolution No. 2023-10-1 
Page 7 of 7 
 

Fund Project 
Number Description Adopted 

Budget 
Requested 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Current 

Total Project 
Requested 

Change 
New total 
Project Justification 

EN23005 
CCWRF Filter Effluent 
Sodium Hypochlorite 

Modification 
180,000 0 180,000 112,975 75,000 187,975 Increase total project budget, due 

to higher construction bids 

IS22006 
SCADA Network 

Infrastructure 
Replacement 

300,000 108,817 408,817 4,300,000 0 4,300,000 Annual CF 

IS22007 
RP-1 and RP-2 

Distributed Control 
System Upgrade 

0 71,926 71,926 420,000 0 420,000 Annual CF 

IS22008 Operations Electronic  
Logbook 0 21,712 21,712 140,000 0 140,000 Annual CF 

Total Capital Request  $11,956,898 $6,579,335 $18,536,233 $86,923,833 $5,105,000 $92,028,833  

Grand Total Project Requests $15,520,732 $18,098,145 $33,618,877 $145,763,421 $14,389,500 $160,152,921  

 
 
 
 
 



FY 2023/24 FIRST QUARTER 
BUDGET AMENDMENT

Paula Hooven
Acting Budget Officer

October 2023



2

Change in Budget Amendment Process

Adopted Budget
• O&M 
• TYCIP

Quarterly Budget Amendments
• Total Project Cost Changes
• New Project Budgets
• Budget Amendments
• Transfers Between Programs and 

Budget Category
• Carry Forward of Prior Year Budget

Amended Budget
• O&M 
• TYCIP



FY 2023/24 First Quarter Budget Amendment
Summary by Fund ($ in Millions)

3

• Pursuant to Ordinance 102 - Fiscal Control  
• FY 23/24 Annual project budget adjustment of $18.1 million for 69 projects
• FY 23/24 Total project budget adjustment of $14.4 million for 20 projects

Fund 

Adopted 
FY 2023/24 

Budget
Proposed 

Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total Project 

Budget
Proposed 

Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Administrative Services $1.70 $1.82 $3.52 $14.85 $0.00 $14.85
Recharge Water 2.77 2.93 5.70 33.53 0.00 33.53
Non-Reclaimable 
Wastewater 2.72 1.08 3.80 11.33 0.00 11.33

Recycled Water 2.33 0.27 2.60 6.34 2.00 8.34

Water Resources 0.47 4.56 5.03 3.92 9.05 12.97

Regional Wastewater O&M 4.26 7.23 11.49 56.82 1.89 58.71

Regional Wastewater 
Capital 1.28 0.20 1.48 18.98 1.45 20.43

Grand Total $15.53 $18.09 $33.62 $145.77 $14.39 $160.16



Total Project Budget Amendment - Capital
Summary by Fund ($ in Millions)

4

FY 2023/24 Annual Budget Total Project Budget

Fund
Project 
Number Project Description

Adopted 
FY 23/24 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

WC
EN23067 Hickory Basin Replacement 

Monitoring Well $0.52 $0.00 $0.52 $0.65 $1.20 $1.85

EN23123 RP-4 Outfall Valve Replace & 
Blower Upgrade 1.45 0.00 1.45 2.59 0.80 3.39

RO

EN21042 RP-1 East Influent Gate 
Replacement 0.15 0.00 0.15 0.67 0.03 0.70

EN21056 RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for 
Aeration Blower Building 0.76 0.00 0.76 1.37 0.50 1.87

EN23035 CCWRF RAS Header 
Replacement 0.18 0.00 0.18 0.38 0.05 0.43

EN23038 CCWRF HVAC System 
Upgrade 0.20 0.00 0.20 0.26 0.02 0.28

EN24020 RP-1 Dewatering Centrate 
Pumps 0.50 0.00 0.50 1.39 1.0 2.39

WC = Recycled Water; RO = Regional Operations & Maintenance

• No current fiscal year impact to the adopted capital budget
• $5.0M total project budget increase for 10 capital projects across 3 funds



Total Project Budget Amendment - Capital
Summary by Fund Continued ($ in Millions)

5

FY 2023/24 Annual Budget Total Project Budget

Fund
Project 
Number Project Description

Adopted 
FY 23/24 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Sub-Total WC & RO $3.76 $0.00 $3.76 $7.31 $3.60 $10.91

RC

EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvements 0.12 0.00 0.12 9.20 0.45 9.65

EN19025 Regional Force Main 
Improvements 0.68 0.00 0.68 4.81 0.92 5.73

EN23005 CCWRF Filter Effluent Sodium 
Hypochlorite Modification 0.18 0.00 0.18 0.11 0.07 0.18

Sub-Total RC $0.98 $0.00 $0.98 $14.12 $1.44 $15.56

Total All Funds $4.74 $0.00 $4.74 $21.43 $5.04 $26.47

WC = Recycled Water; RO = Regional Operations & Maintenance; RC = Regional Capital

• No current fiscal year impact to the adopted capital budget
• $5.0M total project budget increase for 10 capital projects across 3 funds



FY 2023/24 New Project Requests 
Summary by Fund ($ in Millions)

6

FY 2023/24 Annual Budget Total Project Budget

Fund
Project 
Number Project Description

Adopted 
FY 2023/24 

Budget
Proposed 

Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

WW WU24016* Turnkey Turf Transformation $0 $2.82 $2.82 $0 $8.47 $8.47

RO EN24050 Solids Handling Lease - 0.18 0.18 - 0.25 0.25

Grand Total $0 $3.00 $3.00 $0 $8.72 $8.72

*Project is 100% Grant Funded

WW = Water Resources; RO = Regional Operations & Maintenance

• Fiscal impact to the FY 2023/24 adopted budget of $3.0 million
• Total project budget increase for 2 non-capital projects of $8.7 million



FY 2023/24 Budget Amendments
Summary by Fund

7

FY 2023/24 Annual Budget Total Project Budget

Fund
Project 
Number Project Description

Adopted 
FY 23/24 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

RO EN24041 Regional Sewer Hydraulic 
Modeling $40,000 $45,000 $85,000 $40,000 $45,000 $85,000

WW 

WU24005 Large Landscape Retrofit 50,000 15,000 65,000 50,000 15,000 65,000

WU24006 CII Device Rebates 5,000 79,000 84,000 5,000 79,000 84,000 

WU24011 Contract Agency 
Administered Projects 285,378 72,000 357,378 285,378 72,000 357,378

WU24013 CII Turf Replacement 5,000 192,000 197,000 5,000 192,000 197,000

WU24014 Residential Turf 
Replacement 5,000 217,000 222,000 5,000 217,000 222,000

Grand Total $390,378 $620,000 $1,010,378 $390,378 $620,000 $1,010,378

WW = Water Resources; RO = Regional Operations & Maintenance

• Fiscal impact to the FY 2023/24 adopted budget of $620,000
• Total project budget increase for 6 non-capital projects of $620,000 



FY 2023/24 Budget Transfer from 
Operations and Maintenance to Capital

8

• Non-Capital Project FM24009 Approved in June 2023 as part of the TYCIP

• A portion of the project has been identified as capital 

• Approve fiscal year and total project budget transfer of $60,000 from non-capital project 
FM24009 to capital project FM24010 in the Administrative Services fund

FY 2023/24 Annual Budget Total Project Budget

Fund
Project 
Number Project Description

Adopted 
FY 23/24 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

GG
FM24009 O&M 

Agency Wide Office Furniture $120,000 ($60,000) $60,000 $120,000 ($60,000) $60,000

FM24010 Capital
Agency Wide Office Furniture 0.00 $60,000 $60,000 0.00 60,000 60,000

Grand Total $120,000 $0.00 $120,000 $120,000 $0.00 $120,000

GG = Administrative Services



FY 2023/24 Carry Forward Summary
($ in Millions)

9

• Per Policy A-81 staff can request open encumbered and non-encumbered commitments be carried
forward to the new year  

• The carry forward of $14.4 million of encumbered commitment items and non-encumbered commitment items 
and related budget is requested to be spent in the current fiscal year. The total includes: 

• $6.5 million of capital project open encumbered and non-encumbered commitments and related budget
• $7.9 million of non-capital open encumbered and non-encumbered commitments and related budget 

Fund 

Adopted 
FY 2023/24 

Budget
Proposed 

Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total Project 

Budget
Proposed 

Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Capital Carry Forward $7.21 $6.52 $13.73 $65.49 $0.00 $65.49
Non-Capital Carry Forward 3.05 7.96 11.01 58.33 0.00 58.33
Grand Total $10.26 $14.48 $24.74 $123.82 $0.00 $123.82



FY 2023/24 Carry Forward Major Projects
($ in Millions)

10

FY 23/24 Annual Budget Total Project Budget

Fund
Project 
Number Project Description

Adopted 
FY 2023/24 

Budget

Carry 
Forward 

Amendment

Amended 
FY 2023/24

Budget

Current 
Total 

Project 
Budget

Proposed 
Amendment

Amended 
Total 

Project 
Budget

RW RW15003 Recharge Master Plan $1.80 $2.81 $4.61 $27.94 $0.00 $27.94

RO EN16021 Chino Basin Groundwater 
Clean-up 0.00 1.91 1.91 31.64 0.00 31.64

NC EN20064 North Sewer North Trunk 
Sewer Siphon Replace 2.38 1.07 3.45 4.57 0.00 4.57

RO EN23088 RO On-Call/Small Projects 0.12 0.83 0.95 1.26 0.00 1.26

RO PA22003 Agency-Wide Paving 0.30 0.51 0.81 3.73 0.00 3.73

GG EN23034 Agency-Wide EV Charging 
Station 0.60 0.50 1.10 1.10 0.00 1.10

Grand Total $5.20 $7.63 $12.83 $70.24 $0.00 $70.24

RW = Recharge Water; RO = Regional Operations & Maintenance; NC = Non-Reclaimable Wastewater; GG = Administrative Services

• 6 major projects comprise 53%, or $7.6 million of total request 
• 53 projects account for the remaining 47% or $6.8 million



Staff’s Recommendation

11

1. Amend the annual budget for 69 projects in the amount of $18,098,147 and amend the
total project budget for 20 projects in the amount of $14,389,500 in various funds; and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-10-1, approving the Agency’s FY 2023/24 amended
budget.

Approval of the First Quarter Budget Amendment is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Fiscal 
Responsibility and maintaining prudent budgetary controls

Fund Annual Total Project

GG Administrative Services $1,820,527 $0.0

RW Recharge Water 2,931,793 0.0

NC Non-Reclaimable Wastewater 1,081,215 0.0

WC Recycled Water 268,440 2,000,000

WW Water Resources 4,564,059 9,049,500

RO Regional Wastewater Operations & Maintenance 7,229,658 1,895,000

RC Regional Wastewater Capital 1,483,455 1,445,000

Total $18,098,147 $14,389,500



INFORMATION
ITEM

3A



Vicky Salazar
Senior Associate Engineer

October 2023

RP-5 Expansion Project Update
October 2023

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 - Jan 2025 Construction

Jan 12 – Dec 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 - Nov 7 MBR Phase1 
Dec 14 - Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 - Sep 23 Digesters
Feb 15 - Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 - Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 - Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award
Jul 15

Biosolids Milestone
Jun 11

Project Completion
Jun 10

Day 1168 of 1640 = 70%

RP-5: Project Status

Role Firm Contract
This Month’s 

Payment
Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $337,425,976 $2,000,000 $241,452,998 71%

Designer Parsons $36,833,185 $235,000 $35,546,469 96%

Construction 
Management Arcadis $21,125,523 $350,000 $13,585,779 64%

2

Data date: 9/30/2023



Electrical and SCADA Status Update 

3

• PlantPAx Migration Software Factory Acceptance Test Plan (SFAT) completed
• PlantPAx Training scheduled completed
• National Electrical Testing Association (NETA) testing of Power Centers ongoing

• Electrical Subcontractor
• New SCE power feed at Chino Creek Park expected in

October 2023
• Energization expected to be completed by January 2024

• SCADA Integrator
• PlantPAx 3.5 to 4.6 Migration scheduled for October

• PRI, SEC, TER PRP Migration to follow

COMPLETED

CHALLENGES AHEAD

Expanded
System

New 
Hardware

Existing
System

Migration 
3.5 to 4.6



RP-5 Expansion: Work on Kimball Ave. 

4



RP-5: Major Activities

Grit Chamber and Pump Station

5



RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Clarifiers

6



RP-5: Major Activities

Aeration Basins

7



RP-5 Major Activities 

Thickening Building

8



RP-5: Major Activities

Emergency Overflow Pond (EOP)

9



10



Questions?



INFORMATION
ITEM

3B



1 

October 2, 2023 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 

a Municipal Water District 

Federal Update  

www.carpiclay.com 

Congress Passes Continuing Resolution to Avert Shutdown 
Over the weekend, Congress passed a Continuing Resolution (CR) at the 11th hour to 
avert a federal government shutdown. The CR keeps the federal government over and 
funded at current levels through November 17th. The CR also includes an extension of 
the National Flood Insurance Program through November 17th, funding for the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for disaster relief, and a three-month extension 
of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) authorization. Congress will now have seven 
more weeks to try and find a path forward on the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 appropriations 
bills. In October, both the House and the Senate are expected to work to continue to move 
their respective FY24 appropriations bills.  

Governor Newsom Announces Senate Appointment 
On Friday, the news broke that Senator Dianne Feinstein passed away at the age of 90. 
California Governor Gavin Newsom has the responsibility of appointing someone to fill 
the remainder of Feinstein’s term. Newsom announced that he intends to appoint 
Laphonza Butler, the current President of EMILY’s List. Butler will be sworn into the 
Senate on Wednesday, October 4th. 

EPA and Corps Publish Update to WOTUS Rule 
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
(Corps) released an update to the Water of the United States (WOTUS) rule. The U.S. 
Supreme Court decision in May in the Sackett v. EPA case required the Corps and EPA 
to amend the rule to address language regarding wetlands protections. In the updated 
rule, the definition for wetlands that are regulated under WOTUS are only those wetlands 
with relatively permanent surface water connections to larger waterways. Additionally, 
EPA and the Corps did not put the amended rule out for public comment, citing the “good 
cause” exception of the Administrative Procedure Act as the agencies claim the rule was 
being amended to comply with the Supreme Court ruling. The updated rule was published 
in the Federal Register on September 8th, effective immediately, and more information 
can be found HERE.  

Sens. Feinstein & Padilla Introduce Rural Clean Drinking Water Bill
California Senators Dianne Feinstein (D) and Alex Padilla (D) introduced the Clean 
Drinking Water for Rural Communities Act (S. 2697). The bill would raise the eligibility for 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) water and wastewater programs from 10,000 residents 

https://www.regulations.gov/document/COE-2023-0001-0020
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/2697


2 www.carpiclay.com 

to 20,000 residents for programs that assist communities in complying with state and 
federal drinking water standards. The legislation was referred to the Senate Committee 
on Agriculture, Nutrition, and Forestry. 

Rep. Harder Introduces Central Valley Water Resources Bill 
Representative Josh Harder (D-CA) introduced the Securing Access for the central Valley 
and Enhancing (SAVE) Water Resources Act (H.R. 5483). The legislation would provide 
$250 million in funding for water storage programs, $750 million for water surface and 
groundwater storage, water reclamation and reuse, and WaterSMART program projects, 
and would create a loan-interest loan program for local water infrastructure projects. The 
bill was referred to the House Committee on Natural Resources. 

Federal Funding Opportunities & Announcements

Corps Releases $81 Million CWIFP NOFA. The Corps released an $81 million notice of 
funding announcement (NOFA) for the Corps Water Infrastructure Financing Program 
(CWIFP). The program will provide credit assistance to eligible entities for the 
development of non-federal dam water infrastructure to improve flood resilience and 
environmental quality. Preliminary applications are due December 19th and more 
information can be found HERE. 

DHS Awards $20 Million in Targeted Violence and Terrorism Prevention Grants. The 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) announced 34 grant awards totaling $20 million 
as part of the FY23 Targeted Violence and Terrorism Prevention Grant Program. The 
funding will support projects that enhance local government capacity to combat targeted 
violence and terrorism through prevention programs, innovative approaches, and the 
development of best practices. The list of awardees can be found HERE. 

DOE Publishes Domestic Conversion Grant Program NOFO. The Department of 
Energy (DOE) published the notice of funding opportunity (NOFO) for the Domestic 
Conversion Grant Program. The program provides cost-shared grants to help support the 
domestic production of efficient hybrid, plug-in electric hybrid, plug-in electric drive, and 
hydrogen fuel cell electric vehicles. Concept papers are due November 1st, and 
applications are due January 9th. More information can be found HERE. 

DOE Announces Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program. 
DOE announced $10 billion in loan authority for the Advanced Technology Vehicles 
Manufacturing Loan Program. This program focuses on automotive manufacturing 
conversion projects in communities that currently host manufacturing facilities. Project 
applications will be reviewed considering criteria that ensure that projects minimize risks 
to project success. More information can be found HERE. 

DOE Announces Availability of $18 Million for Communities LEAP. DOE announced 
the availability of $18 million for the Communities Local Energy Action Program (LEAP). 
This program assists low-income and disadvantaged communities in deploying 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5483
https://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Infrastructure/Revolutionize/CWIFP/
https://www.dhs.gov/tvtpgrants
https://www.energy.gov/mesc/domestic-manufacturing-conversion-grants
https://www.energy.gov/lpo/advanced-technology-vehicles-manufacturing-loan-program-0


3 www.carpiclay.com 

renewable energy technology through technical and planning assistance. Applications 
are due December 14th. Program and application information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces Availability of $7.5 Billion in WIFIA Funding. EPA announced the 
availability of $7.5 billion in Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) 
program funding. The program provides low-interest loans for drinking water, wastewater, 
and stormwater infrastructure projects. LOIs are due October 25th. More information can 
be found HERE. 
 
EPA Releases $4.6 Billion Climate Pollution Reduction Grants NOFO. EPA published 
a $4.6 billion NOFO for the Climate Pollution Reduction Grants program. This program 
will fund implementation of state, municipality, tribal, or territory-specific climate action 
plans developed under a planning grant. The General Competition application deadline 
is April 1st.  
 
EPA Awards $105 Million in SWIFR Grants. EPA awarded $105 million for 80 projects 
through the Solid Waste Infrastructure for Recycling (SWIFR) Grant Program. The 
program supports projects that improve post-consumer materials management and 
infrastructure, support improvements for local waste recycling infrastructure, and 
technical assistance for local waste management systems. The list of awardees can be 
found HERE. 
 
EPA Publishes $20 Million Innovative Water Infrastructure Workforce Development 
NOFO. EPA published a $20 million NOFO for the Innovative Water Infrastructure 
Workforce Development Grant program. This grant program supports collaboration 
among federal, state, and local governments and institutions of higher education, 
apprentice programs, labor organizations, high schools, and other community-based 
organizations to develop the water sector workforce. Applications are due November 17th. 
More information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Releases $19 Million Drinking Water System Infrastructure Resilience and 
Sustainability Program NOFO. EPA released a $19 million NOFO for the Drinking Water 
System Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Program. The program will provide 

funding to support projects in underserved, small, and disadvantaged communities that 
improve drinking water facility resilience to natural hazards. Applications are due 
November 6th. More information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Releases $3.6 Million Environmental Education Local Grant NOFO. EPA 
released a $3.6 million in NOFOs by EPA Region for the 2023 Environmental Education 
Local Grant Program. Each of the ten EPA Regions has $360,000 in funding available to 
support projects in all EPA regions that design, demonstrate, and/or disseminate 
environmental education practices, methods, or techniques. Applications are due 
November 8th. Application information for all Regions can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $239 Million Title XVI Water Recycling NOFO. Reclamation 
published a $239 million NOFO for the Title XVI Water Recycling program for funding to 

https://www.energy.gov/communitiesLEAP/communities-leap
https://www.regulations.gov/document/EPA_FRDOC_0001-30053
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=350252
https://www.epa.gov/infrastructure/recycling-grant-selectees-and-recipients
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=350314
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=350091
https://www.epa.gov/education/environmental-education-ee-grant-solicitation-notice


4 www.carpiclay.com 

support water reclamation and reuse projects. Applications are accepted on a rolling 
basis, with the first deadline on December 7th and the second deadline on September 
30th, 2024. More information can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Releases $180 Million Large-Scale Water Recycling Program NOFO. 
The Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) released a $180 million NOFO for the Large-
Scale Water Recycling Program. The funding will support projects that create new large-
scale recycled water supplies that are less vulnerable to drought. Applications are 
accepted on a rolling basis through September 30th, 2024, with intermediary deadlines of 
November 21st for the first submittal period and March 29th for the second submittal 
period. More information can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $64 Million WIIN Desalination NOFO. Reclamation 
published a $64 million NOFO for the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation 
(WIIN) Act Desalination grant program. Funding will support the planning, design, and/or 
construction of eligible seawater and brackish water desalination projects. Applications 
are accepted on a rolling basis, with the first deadline on December 7th and the second 
deadline on September 30th, 2024. More information can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $28.97 Million for WaterSMART Recycling and 
Desalination Projects. Reclamation announced $28.97 million in appropriated funding 
to support 31 WaterSMART Program recycling and desalination projects in six western 
states. The list of projects can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $25 Million Small Surface Storage NOFO. Reclamation 
published a $25 million NOFO for the Small Surface Storage Program. This program 
funds projects with a water storage capacity between 200 and 30,000 acre-feet that 
increase surface water or groundwater storage. Applications are due November 30 th. 
More information can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Awards $11 Million for Snow Water Supply Forecast Program. 
Reclamation awarded $11 million in grant funding for 15 projects as part of the Snow 
Water Supply Forecast Program. The program funds projects that demonstrate and/or 
deploy emerging and existing snow monitoring technologies or improve the use of snow 
monitoring data in water supply forecasts. The list of awards can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $2.3 Million for Science and Technology Program. 
Reclamation announced $2.3 million in funding for 25 new and 118 existing multi-year 
projects. The projects focus on environmentally and economically sustainable water 
management and electricity generation technologies in western states. The list of awards 
can be found HERE. 
 

Federal Agency Personnel/Regulatory Announcements 

 
EPA Issues Final CWA Section 401 Water Quality Certification Improvement Rule. 
EPA published its final Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 401 Water Quality Certification 

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=350381
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=350116
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=350382
https://www.usbr.gov/watersmart/desalination/docs/FY23RecyclingDesalinationPlanningProjectDescriptions.pdf
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=350235
https://www.usbr.gov/newsroom/news-release/4644
https://www.usbr.gov/research/st/docs/FY24%20S&T%20Project%20Descriptions_508.pdf


5 www.carpiclay.com 

Improvement Rule. The rule streamlines and enhances certification review and provides 
regulatory certainty for federally permitted projects. More information can be found HERE. 

EPA Releases Cancer Prevention Website. EPA announced a new cancer prevention 
website for Administration activities aimed to help prevent cancer by reducing exposure 
to carcinogens. The new site can be found HERE. 

EPA Publishes Final PFAS Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements Rule. EPA 
published a final rule regarding reporting and recordkeeping under the Toxic Substances 
Control Act (TSCA) for per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS). The rule requires any 
person that manufactures or imports or has manufactured or imported PFAS or PFAS-
containing articles since January 1, 2011, to electronically report information regarding 
PFAS uses, production volumes, disposal, exposures, and hazards. The rule is expected 
to be published in the Federal Register shortly with an effective date of 30 days after 
publication. Data is due to EPA 18 months after the effective date of the rule. More 
information can be found HERE. 

NOAA Releases August 2023 Climate Assessment Report. NOAA released a report 
titled “Assessing the U.S. Climate in August 2023” that details a total of 23 separate 
billion-dollar weather and climate events in the first eight months of 2023. The report can 
be found HERE. 

## ## ## 

https://www.epa.gov/cwa-401/final-2023-cwa-section-401-water-quality-certification-improvement-rule
https://www.epa.gov/environmental-topics/epa-efforts-reduce-exposure-carcinogens-and-prevent-cancer
https://www.epa.gov/assessing-and-managing-chemicals-under-tsca/tsca-section-8a7-reporting-and-recordkeeping
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/news/national-climate-202308


INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3C 



September 29, 2023 

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

From: Michael Boccadoro 

Beth Olhasso 

RE: September Report 

Overview: 

September 2022 brought some of the hottest weather recorded to CA, with rolling blackouts and 

extreme heat. September 2023 continued the year-long trend of weather completely opposite 

from 2022 and remained mild. Reservoirs are slowly being drawn down as fall takes hold of the 

state, but still remain well above average for this time of the year.  Carryover storage is expected 

to be significant as we roll into a new water year on October 1.  

As discussed last month, the draft Making Conservation a California Way of Life/ Water Use 

Efficiency regulations have been released by the State Water Resources Control Board and have 

been the talk of the water world ahead of the October 4 SWRCB workshop on the draft 

regulations. Even with a potable reuse “bonus incentive” and extra outdoor irrigation allowance 

if using recycled water, most water agencies see the mandates proposed by the regulations as 

unattainable and/or very costly. All eyes are on how Board Members and staff react to the 

significant pushback they have received since releasing the draft. IEUA staff have been working 

closely with member agencies on these regulations.   

After five years of development, direct potable reuse regulations got their first public workshop 

at the SWRCB recently. After many years of work, the regulations are set to be adopted by the 

end of the year. While stakeholders are working on some very technical tweaks, overall, the 

regulations are widely supported.  

The Legislature officially gaveled closed the first year of the two-year session on September 14.  

The Legislature passed a suite of bills that will help keep PFAS out of the wastewater system, 

held significant water rights legislation and a climate bond until 2024, and taken late action to 

make it harder for the “Taxpayer Protection Act” citizen initiative to pass and easier for voters to 

approve funds for local infrastructure projects. On the energy side, the Legislature has authorized 

DWR to act as a central procurement entity for energy- attempting to procure and organize the 

significant amount of energy that will be needed to meet the state’s renewable energy goals. The 

Governor has until October 14 to act on the over 700 bills left on his desk. 

The Legislature will start 2024 with new leaders in each house. Senator Mark McGuire (D-

Healdsburg) will lead the Senate and Robert Rivas (D-Salinas) will continue in his new post as 

Speaker of the Assembly. New leadership will most certainly mean a significant shake-up in 

committee chairs, especially in the Assembly, come the first of the year. The Legislature is on 

recess until January 3. 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report – September 2023 

 

Water Supply Conditions 

California water supply levels remain well above average as the state transitions out of summer 

conditions, with snow predicted in the Sierras before the first of October. 

 

Lake Oroville is sitting at 136 percent of historical average and 74 percent capacity.  San Luis 

Reservoir, the main south-of-Delta storage facility for the State Water Project, is at 193 percent 

of average for this time of the year and 81 percent capacity. State Water Project water continues 

to flow into Diamond Valley Lake, which is at 83 percent capacity.  

 

 

 
 

Water Use Efficiency Regulations Update 

As discussed last month, the State Water Resources Control Board recently initiated the formal 

rulemaking for “Making Conservation a Way of Life” by releasing the draft text to implement 

AB 1668 (Friedman, 2018) and SB 606 (Hertzberg, 2018). The goal of the regulatory framework 

is to achieve long-term water use efficiency.  

 



The proposed regulation would require urban retail water suppliers to meet a water use objective 

starting in 2025. The total proposed water budget is based on gallons per capita per day (GPCD), 

comprised of a residential indoor standard, residential outdoor standard, commercial industrial 

institutional outdoor standard, water loss, with any variances or bonus incentives (potable reuse) 

included. 

It is important to note that the proposed regulations include several measures important to IEUA: 

the bonus incentive will allow member agencies to count their proportional share of potable 

reuse water in their water budget. Second, the proposed regulation, as directed by statute, allows 

for consideration of “special landscapes” which gives special consideration for outdoor irrigation 

using recycled water. However, the proposed regulation includes a never-before-discussed 

provision requiring agencies to get approval annually to use the “special landscape” distinction. 

In the month since the draft has been circulating, water agencies have been meeting regularly to 

discuss concerns. Stakeholders have identified several areas where the regulations seem to divert 

from the intent of the legislation and have been meeting board members and staff to articulate 

concerns. 

IEUA staff has been working closely with member agencies and other regional partners on the 

regulations and have been in regular coordination with WCA staff on strategy. 

The first workshop at the SWRCB on the regulations is October 4 where significant public 

comment is expected. Staff have indicated that there will be at least one more draft, possibly two, 

before the final regulations are set to be adopted August/September of 2024. 

Direct Potable Reuse Regulations 

After years of collaboration, expert panels, meetings, and drafts, the draft regulations for direct 

potable reuse (DPR) have finally been released and the SWRCB held the first public hearing on 

September 7. While there are still some issues that are getting worked out, the draft regulations 

look to be positive- after significant work by WateReuse over the past five years. There is still an 

effort to make some changes on very technical sections of the regulations. The regulations are 

expected to be adopted by the end of 2023. 

2023 Legislative Session Recap 

The Legislature was gaveled closed for the first year of the two-year session sending around 1,100 

bills to the Governor, who has until October 14 to act on the remaining 779 (as of 9/28/23).  

Senate & Assembly Leadership 

Outside of legislation, both the Senate and Assembly elected new leaders, as both Pro Tem Atkins 

and Speaker Rendon are termed out at the end of 2024. Robert Rivas (D-Salinas) was elected 

Speaker of the Assembly taking over for Rendon. Mike McGuire (D-Healdsburg) was elected 

President Pro Tem of the Senate and will take over at the beginning of 2024.  Rivas is termed out 

in 2030 while McGuire is termed out in 2026.  

Speaker Rivas did not make any significant committee changes once he assumed the role, but after 

a prolonged and bitter battle for the Speakership, significant changes are expected. While the 



transition from Atkins to McGuire was not nearly as contentious, there will likely be some changes 

on the Senate side as well.  

 

Water Rights 

The biggest issue to arise in 2023 on the water side was on water rights. After the SWRCB had 

issues getting some water users to abide by curtailment orders during the drought, several 

legislators introduced legislation to give the state board more power over water rights. What was 

billed as legislation to “go after the bad actors” was quickly revealed to contain language to 

significantly expand SWRCB powers over water rights. The water community united against AB 

460 (Bauer-Kahan) and AB 1337 (Wicks) and were able to get them held in Senate policy 

committee. They are eligible to be taken up again in 2024.  

 

Recycled water issues were relatively quiet in the legislature in 2023, after several years of 

significant legislation. SB 754 (Cortese) would allow for the Building Standards Commission to 

require new buildings to be constructed to capture and reuse water onsite. The bill was amended 

to soften the language so it is no longer a mandate, just a consideration. The bill is on the 

Governor’s desk. 

 

Energy/Climate: attempts to accelerate the state’s renewable energy goals stalled, giving the state 

time to try to catch up with already-aggressive targets. Importantly, AB 1594 (E.Garcia- D, 

Coachella) allows utilities, including water/wastewater utilities some flexibility from zero-

emission fleet mandates. Under AB 1594, utilities will be allowed to replace traditional utility 

specialized vehicles at the end of their useful life when needed to maintain reliable service and 

respond to major foreseeable events. 

 

Additionally, the Legislature passed AB 1373 (E. Garcia) providing the Department of Water 

Resources authority to act as a centralized energy procurement entity. The goal is to have the state 

a central buyer for hard to procure resources, when the Investor Owned Utilities cannot, ensuring 

energy reliability. Supporters of the bill note that better coordination is needed as the state is 

transitioning to more renewable energy including the potential for significant offshore wind 

resources.      

 

Voting/Taxes/Fees- The Legislature approved several Constitutional Amendments on voting and 

vote thresholds.  

 

ACA 13 was introduced somewhat late in the process requiring any initiative measure seeking to 

increase the voter approval requirement to for state or local measures would be approved only if 

the proportion of votes cast in favor is equal or greater than the highest voter approval requirement 

that the initiative measure would impose. So if a measure is on the ballot raising the threshold for 

local taxes and fees to a 2/3 majority, then that measure would also have to pass by a 2/3 majority. 

 

This Constitutional Amendment is in direct response to the November 2024 Ballot Initiative: 

Taxpayer Protection and Government Accountability Act, as described in previous reports. The 

act would make justification of public water agency fees or charges more difficult and likely result 

in litigation. The local government would bear the burden of proving by clear and convincing 



evidence that the amount of the charge is “reasonable” and those charges would have to be imposed 

by ordinance. 

The measure passed by the 2/3 necessary and will appear on the November 2024 ballot. 

ACA 1 passed on the last evening of the session seeks to lower the vote threshold from 2/3 to 55 

percent for local infrastructure and housing taxes or fees. The measure will appear on the 

November 2024 ballot. 

Water-Use Efficiency: Assemblymember Laura Friedman (D-Glendale) introduced several bills 

on water-use efficiency, despite the continued progression and imminent implementation of the 

conservation regulations at the SWRCB.  

AB 1572, co-sponsored by MWD, would prohibit the use of potable water to irrigate nonfunctional 

turf on commercial, municipal, institutional, homeowners’ association, common interest 

development and community service organization properties. The prohibitions would be phased-

in beginning on Jan 1, 2027. The measure is on the Governor’s desk awaiting action.  

AB 1573 would require the Model Water Efficiency Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) to require 

plants included in a landscape design be selected based on their adaptability to climate, geological 

and topographic conditions of the project site, among other provisions. The bill, supported by 

MWD, was put on the inactive file and can be considered again next year.  

Resources/Climate Bond 

The Governor made it very clear he wants voters undivided attention on his homelessness/mental 

health bond and is not interested in competition from a climate bond on the March 2024 ballot. 

The Legislature will have until summer 2024 to pass a climate bond for the November 2024 ballot. 

PFAS 

The three PFAS bills introduced at the beginning of the year all moved through the Legislature 

this year and are on the Governor’s desk for consideration. AB 727 (Weber) is sponsored by CASA 

and would prohibit PFAS in cleaning products. AB 1423 (Schiavo) would prohibit PFAS in 

artificial turf.  AB 246 (Schiavo) would ban PFAS in menstrual products. All the measures took 

amendments remove opposition but will still effectively limit PFAS in the sewer system. 



IEUA BILLS— September 29, 2023 
Bill 

Number 

Author/Sponsor Title and/or 

Summary 

Summary IEUA Position/ Bill 

Location 

Positions Taken by 

Associations & 

Regional Agencies 

AB 

727 

Weber/ 

CASA 

Product safety: 

cleaning 

products: 

perfluoroalkyl 

and 

polyfluoroalkyl 

substances.  

Would, beginning January 1, 2025, prohibit a person from 

manufacturing, selling, delivering, distributing, holding, or 

offering for sale in the state a cleaning product that contains 

regulated PFAS, as specified. The bill would make a violation 

of these provisions punishable by a civil penalty not to exceed 

$5,000 for a first violation and not to exceed $10,000 for each 

subsequent violation, upon an action brought by the Attorney 

General, a city attorney, a county counsel, or a district attorney. 

SUPPORT 

On Governor’s 

Deks 

CASA Support 

AB 

1072 

Wicks Water 

conservation 

and efficiency: 

low-income 

residential 

customers. 

Would declare the policy of the state that all residents have 

access to water conservation and efficiency programs. The bill 

would also set forth related findings including that reaching 

the state’s environmental justice goals and commitments 

requires designing climate adaptation programs so that all 

households may participate. 

WATCH 

Failed in Asm. 

Appr. 

AB 

1216 

Muratsuchi Wastewater 

treatment plants: 

monitoring of air 

pollutants.  

Would require, on or before January 1, 2025, the owner or operator of a 
wastewater treatment facility that is located within 1,500 feet of a residential 
area and has an original design capacity of 425,000,000 gallons or more per 
day to develop, install, operate, and maintain a wastewater treatment-related 
fence-line monitoring system in accordance with guidance developed by the 
appropriate air quality management district. The bill would require the 
wastewater treatment-related fence-line monitoring system to include 
equipment capable of measuring pollutants of concern, including hydrogen 
sulfide, nitrogen oxides, and volatile organic compounds emitted to the 
atmosphere from wastewater treatment or reclamation processes that the 
appropriate district deems appropriate for monitoring. The bill would also 
require the owner or operator of a wastewater treatment facility to collect 
real-time data from the wastewater treatment-related fence-line monitoring 
system, to maintain records of that data, and to transmit the data to the 
appropriate air quality management district in accordance with the district’s 
guidance. In addition, the bill would require, to the extent feasible, the data 
generated by these systems to be provided to the public as quickly as 
possible in a publicly accessible format. 

OPPOSE 

Governor’s Desk 

CASA OPPOSE 

CASA asking 

for a sunset 

clause 

AB 

1423 

Schiavo Product safety: 

perfluoroalkyl 

and 

polyfluoroalkyl 

substances: 

artificial turf or 

Would, commencing January 1, 2024, require a manufacturer or installer of 
a covered surface, defined as artificial turf or a synthetic surface that 
resembles grass, proposing to design, sell, or install a field with a covered 
surface to any party to notify the party at the earliest possible date that the 
covered surface contains regulated PFAS, as defined. The bill would also 
prohibit, commencing January 1, 2024, a public entity, including a charter 
city, charter county, city, or county, any public or private school serving 
pupils in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, a public institution 
of higher education, other than the University of California, or a private 

SUPPORT 

Governor’s Desk 



synthetic 

surfaces. 

institution of higher education from purchasing or installing a covered 
surface containing regulated PFAS, as provided. 

AB 

1572 

Friedman Potable water: 

nonfunctional 

turf 

This bill would make legislative findings and declarations concerning water 
use, including that the use of potable water to irrigate nonfunctional turf is 
wasteful and incompatible with state policy relating to climate change, water 
conservation, and reduced reliance on the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta 
ecosystem. The bill would direct all appropriate state agencies to encourage 
and support the elimination of irrigation of nonfunctional turf with potable 
water. This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws. 

WATCH 

Governor’s Desk 

ACWA- Oppose 

unless amended- 

likely removing 

opposition— 

Negotiated 

amendments 

remove 

multifamily 

housing from 

the bill 

AB 

1573 

Friedman Water 

conservation: 

landscape 

design: model 

ordinance 

The Water Conservation in Landscaping Act provides for a model water 
efficient landscape ordinance that is adopted and updated at least every 3 
years by the Department of Water Resources, unless the department makes 
a specified finding. Existing law requires a local agency to adopt the model 
ordinance or to adopt a water efficient landscape ordinance that is at least 
as effective in conserving water as the updated model ordinance, except as 
specified. Existing law specifies the provisions of the updated model 
ordinance, as provided. Existing law includes a related statement of 
legislative findings and declarations. This bill would require the updated 
model ordinance to include provisions that require that plants included in a 
landscape design plan be selected based on their adaptability to climatic, 
geological, and topographical conditions of the project site, as specified. The 
bill would also exempt landscaping that is part of ecological restoration 
projects that do not require a permanent irrigation system, mined-land 
reclamation projects that do not require a permanent irrigation system, and 
existing plant collections, as part of botanical gardens and arboretums open 
to the public, from the model ordinance. The bill would require the updated 
model ordinance to include provisions that require that all new or renovated 
nonresidential areas install plants that meet specified criteria, and that 
prohibit the inclusion of nonfunctional turf in nonresidential landscape 
projects after January 1, 2026. The bill would also revise the legislative 
findings and declarations to state that the model ordinance furthers the 
state’s goal to conserve biodiversity and provide for climate resilience 
consistent with state drought efforts to eliminate the use of irrigation of 
nonfunctional turf. This bill contains other related provisions and other 
existing laws. 

WATCH 

Senate Inactive File 

ACWA- Oppose 

unless amended 

AB 

1637 

Irwin Local 

government: 

internet websites 

and email 

addresses 

The California Constitution authorizes cities and counties to make and 
enforce within their limits all local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and 
regulations not in conflict with general laws and further authorizes cities 
organized under a charter to make and enforce all ordinances and 
regulations in respect to municipal affairs, which supersede inconsistent 
general laws. This bill, no later than January 1, 2027, would require a local 
agency, as defined, that maintains an internet website for use by the public 
to ensure that the internet website utilizes a “.gov” top-level domain or a 
“.ca.gov” second-level domain and would require a local agency that 

WATCH- 

 

AMENDS TAKE 

OUT SPECIAL 

DISTRICTS 

CSDA- moves 

to “watch” with 

new amends 



maintains an internet website that is noncompliant with that requirement to 
redirect that internet website to a domain name that does utilize a “.gov” or 
“.ca.gov” domain. This bill, no later than January 1, 2027, would also require 
a local agency that maintains public email addresses to ensure that each 
email address provided to its employees utilizes a “.gov” domain name or a 
“.ca.gov” domain name. By adding to the duties of local officials, the bill 
would impose a state-mandated local program. This bill contains other 
related provisions and other existing laws. 

Governor’s Desk 

SB 366 Caballero 

CMUA 

The California 

Water Plan: 

long-term supply 

targets 

Current law requires the Department of Water Resources to update every 5 
years the plan for the orderly and coordinated control, protection, 
conservation, development, and use of the water resources of the state, 
which is known as “The California Water Plan.” Current law requires the 
department to include a discussion of various strategies in the plan update, 
including, but not limited to, strategies relating to the development of new 
water storage facilities, water conservation, water recycling, desalination, 
conjunctive use, water transfers, and alternative pricing policies that may be 
pursued in order to meet the future needs of the state. Current law requires 
the department to establish an advisory committee to assist the department 
in updating the plan. This bill would revise and recast certain provisions 
regarding The California Water Plan to, among other things, require the 
department to instead establish a stakeholder advisory committee and to 
expand the membership of the committee to include tribes, labor, and 
environmental justice interests. The bill would require the department, in 
coordination with the California Water Commission, the State Water 
Resources Control Board, other state and federal agencies as appropriate, 
and the stakeholder advisory committee to develop a comprehensive plan 
for addressing the state’s water needs and meeting specified long-term 
water supply targets established by the bill for purposes of “The California 
Water Plan.” 

SUPPORT 

TWO YEAR BILL 

ACWA in 

support 

SB 687 Eggman Water Quality 

Control Plan: 

Delta 

Conveyance 

Project. 

Would require the State Water Resources Control Board to adopt a final 
update of the 1995 Water Quality Control Plan for the San Francisco 
Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary, as provided, before the board 
may consider a change in point diversion or any other water rights permit or 
order for the Delta Conveyance Project. The bill would also, if, after 
completing the update of the plan and in compliance with existing law, the 
board approves a change in point of diversion or any other water rights 
permit or order associated with the Delta Conveyance Project, prohibit the 
operation of the Delta Conveyance Project unless and until the updated plan 
is fully implemented. The bill would specify that these provisions do not 
constitute an authorization for or approval of funding for the Delta 
Conveyance Project or any other project that includes isolated Delta 
conveyance facilities, and do not reduce any statutory or other regulatory 
conditions or permit requirements for Delta conveyance projects. 

BILL FAILED IN 

SENATE 

APPROPRIATIONS 

State Water 

Contractors- 

OPPOSE 

SB 

745 

Cortese Drought-

Resistant 

Buildings Act 

Would require the California Building Standards Commission to research, 
develop, adopt, approve, codify, and publish voluntary and mandatory 
building standards to reduce potable water use in new residential and 
nonresidential buildings, as specified. The bill would require the commission 
to perform a review of voluntary and mandatory water efficiency and water 
reuse standards in the California Buildings Standards Code every 3 years, 
commencing with the next triennial edition, and update as needed. 

NEUTRAL 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

Oppose unless 

amended by 

CASA, CSDA, 

CMUA, 

ACWA, 

WateReuse 



SB 

149 

Caballero California 

Environmental 

Quality Act: 

administrative 

and judicial 

procedures: 

record of 

proceedings: 

judicial 

streamlining. 

Infrastructure Package bill on streamlining of judicial review for CEQA 
challenges 

Signed by Governor Support by 

ACWA, 

CMUA, 

WateReuse 



INFORMATION
ITEM

3D



General Manager

Budget Impact 

October 18, 2023

Public Outreach and Communication

Staff continues to publish the first few messages in the rebranded “Time is Always Now” series.
The first three posts in the re-branded campaign correlate to “Controlling your Controller” and
define what a Smart Controller is, how to use it, and available rebates. Future posts will have an
increased emphasis on specific water-saving tips, habitual changes, and will continue to be
shared on the Agency’s outreach platforms. Additional re-branded collateral will be added to the
campaign toolkit for Customer Agency access and use.

Staff worked with the Facilities and Water System Programs Unit to collaborate on the
Agency’s CWEA social takeover October 9 and 10.

Staff is collaborating with Civic Publications to develop an outreach plan and strategy for
targeted digital messaging specifically related to Fog and Wipes messaging.

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the
preservation of the region's heritage.

N/A

Attachment 1 - Background

Not Applicable

23223



        Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Background 
Subject:  Public Outreach and Communication 
  
 
October 

• October, Cybersecurity Awareness Month 
• October, National Energy Awareness Month 
• October 1, New Water Year 
• October 7, Chino Basin Water Conservation District’s Waterwise Garden & Pumpkin 

Fest 
• October 7-15, Water Professionals Appreciation Week 
• October 19, The Great ShakeOut 
• October 19, Imagine a Day Without Water 
• October 26, Sustainability Day 
• October 28, DEA’s National Prescription Drug Take Back Day 

 
Media and Outreach 

General 
• Staff continues to work with the Chino Basin Program team leads, partners, Jacobs, and 

Arellano Associates to develop and implement an outreach strategy for additional 
program communication, roadshow scheduling, identifying collaboration and partnership 
opportunities on shared media, and more. The team is working to develop a series of 
video shorts that can be included in presentations and shared more broadly. Staff is 
working with other program team members to help plan for outreach events where CBP 
can be highlighted.  

• Staff worked with members of the Agency’s Safety team in honor of National 
Preparedness Month. Safety information and related quizzes were released each Thursday 
throughout the month. Three random participants from each week’s quizzes were selected 
to win a safety ladder.  

• Staff celebrated Water Monitoring Day by highlighting IEUA’s Water Quality 
Laboratory and their rigorous sampling processes and analyses.  

• Staff highlighted three members of the Agency’s IT department in honor of IT Pro Day 
and three members of the Finance and Accounting team in honor of Finance and 
Accounting Appreciation Week.  

• Staff participated in the September 14 Human Resources Open House. Staff engaged 
with participants through games and giveaways and shared how to stay informed about 
the Agency’s latest initiatives. Wally the Waterdrop visited the External and Government 
Affairs booth and posed with staff and community members. 

• Staff participated in Chino Basin Water Conservation District’s Waterwise Garden & 
Pumpkin Fest on October 7. 

• Staff will be facilitating outreach at a booth for the Hispanic Coalition of Small 
Businesses Event on October 14. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Water Supply Awareness Efforts 
• Staff continues to publish the first few messages in the rebranded “Time is Always Now” 

series. The first three posts in the re-branded campaign correlate to “Controlling your 
Controller” and define what a Smart Controller is, how to use it, and available rebates. 
Future posts will have an increased emphasis on specific water-saving tips, habitual 
changes, and will continue to be shared on the Agency’s outreach platforms. Additional 
re-branded collateral will be added to the campaign toolkit for Customer Agency access 
and use. 

• Staff is collaborating with Civic Publications to develop an outreach plan and strategy for 
targeted digital messaging specifically related to Fog and Wipes messaging. 
 

Advertising/Marketing  
• An education program ad ran in the September issue of IE Magazine. 
• A FOG/wipes ad ran on September 6 in La Opinion. 
• A FOG/wipes ad ran on September 30 in the Chino Champion. 
• A FOG/wipes ad will run in October in the Daily Bulletin.  
• A water wise/education program ad will run in the October issue of IE Magazine. 

Social Outreach and Analytics 
• Staff worked with the Facilities and Water System Programs Unit to collaborate on the 

Agency’s CWEA social takeover October 9 and 10. 
• The Agency continues to publish content on LinkedIn and has gained 77 followers since 

August, with 972 page views in the last 30 days (August 26 – September 24).  
• September: 22 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, 22 tweets were sent on 

the @IEUAWater Twitter handle, 22 posts were published to IEUA’s Instagram grid, and 
10 posts were published to the IEUA LinkedIn page. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
September were:  
 9/12 Contracts and Procurement Supervisor Hiring 
 9/8 Congresswoman Torres IERCF Tour 
 9/25 Finance and Accounting Appreciation Week 

o The top three Twitter tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
September were: 
 9/20 Water Word Wednesday 
 9/18 World Water Monitoring Day  
 9/20 IT Pro Day 

o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
September were: 
 9/18 Open House      
 9/7 Regional Confined Space Rescue Rodeo and Symposium   
 9/11 Patriot Day  

o The top three LinkedIn posts, based on impressions and reactions, in the month of 
September were: 
 9/18 Post Open House      
 9/7 Regional Confined Space Rescue Rodeo and Symposium 
 9/7 Open House Reminder 



Page 3 of 3 
 

• For the month of September, there were 9,374 searches for a park in IEUA’s service area 
on Yelp and the Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park was viewed 531 times.  

 
Education and Outreach Updates 

• The 2023/24 Water Discovery Field Trip Program commenced in September. The 
Agency’s October - December calendar is booking quickly, with a just a few dates 
remaining. Currently, over 800 students are confirmed and scheduled to participate in the 
2023-24 school year thus far. External Affairs staff continues to collaborate with 
customer agencies on participation.  

• Staff is collaborating with the Operations team to host a group of high school students for 
a tour of the Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility Tour through the Water Discovery 
Program in October. 

• Staff distributed the quarterly Education Newsletter to share with educators and partners 
about education programs and opportunities. 

• Staff is working on outreach for Metropolitan Water District’s Water Engineering 4 Good 
program. 

• Staff is working closely with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District to complete 
the two remaining Garden in Every School® gardens before year end. The bunny fencing 
and irrigation system has been completed at Our Loving Savior, and planting is expected 
to take place in early October when the weather cools. Construction for Randall Pepper 
Elementary School will be completed in October. 
 

 Agency-Wide Membership Updates 
Organization Participant(s) Date Topic/Activity 

Rancho Cucamonga 
Chamber of Commerce 

Ashley Womack 9/7/2023 Networking Breakfast: 
Arellano Associates presented 
on CBP 

WateReuse Association Shivaji Deshmukh, Pietro 
Cambiaso 

9/21/2023 WateReuse California 
Industry Technical Leaders 

Water Education 
Foundation 

Adham Almasri, Brian 
Wilson, Jamal Zughbi, Jason 
Marseilles, Travis Sprague, 
Scott Lenning, Agustin 
Nieto 

9/29/2023-
10/4/2023 

WEFTEC 96th Annual 
Technical Exhibition & 
Conference 

National Safety Council Tony Arellano, Erik Cortez, 
Ernie Rodelo 

10/23/2023-
10/25/2023 

National Safety Council 
(NSC) Safety Congress & 
Expo 

California Water 
Environment 
Association (CWEA) 

David Correia, Robert 
Delgado 

10/26/2023 CWEA Southern Safety Day 

 



INFORMATION
ITEM

3E



Groundwater Recharge Update

Steven Smith, PE

Acting Groundwater Recharge Supervisor

October 2023



Annual Recharge Monthly
Accumulation – FY22/23 End

2
2



Groundwater Recharge Deliveries –
Past 12 Months

3
3



4

DYY Delivery Status



MWD DYY Delivery

OC59
CB20

CB11 CB15 CB14

CB13

CB18

5



6

Tropical Storm Hilary – 8/20/23

• Preliminary Storm Estimates:
—Rainfall total at Ontario Airport ~ 1.92 inches
—Storm capture volume ~ 1,850 AF
—Suspended deliveries of RW and DYY
—Transferred water where available
—Operated basins per FCD rules



7

Ely Basins – Before and After Tropical 
Storm



Infiltration Restoration Projects

RP-3 Rubber Dam Replacement

Completed Rubber Dam at RP-3

Hickory Basin

Banana Basin

Turner 3 Basin

San Sevaine 3 Basin

08 /15 / 2023

08 /17/ 2023

8



9

Grant Funded - Trash Grate Modifications

Turner 8 inlet from Deer Creek



Questions?



INFORMATION
ITEM

3F



General Manager

Budget Impact 

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Month Ended August 2023

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended August 31, 2023 is submitted in
a format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of August 2023, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $367,606,226
reflects a decrease of $3,079,350 compared to the total of $370,685,576 reported for July 2023.
The decrease is primarily due to $12,388,022 in construction costs for the RP-5 Expansion and
other Agency projects. As a result, the average days cash on hand for the month ended August
2023 decreased from 282 to 278 days.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in August 2023 was 3.636 percent, an
increase of 0.139 percent compared to the July 2023 yield of 3.497 percent. The change in yield
is attributed to higher monthly earnings yields for LAIF, CAMP, and managed investments.

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended August 31, 2023 is an
information item for the Board of Director's review

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

 October 18, 2023
  

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On September 20, 2023 the Board of Directors received the Treasurer's Report of Financial
Affairs for the month ended July 31, 2023.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

23217



Page 1 of 2

Background
Subject: Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Month Ended August 2023

The Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended August 31, 2023, is submitted in 
a format consistent with State requirements. The monthly report denotes investment transactions 
that have been executed in accordance with the Agency’s Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2023-
4-6).

Agency total cash, investments, and restricted deposits for the month of August 2023 was $367.6
million, a decrease of $3.1 million compared to the $370.7 million reported in July 2023 as shown 
in Figure 1. The decrease is primarily due to $12.4 million in construction costs for the RP-5 
Expansion and other Agency projects.

Figure 1: Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits

PFM continues to focus on investment discipline and maintaining a neutral duration strategy to 
ensure current investments align with the Agency’s Investment Policy’s goals of preservation of 
capital in the overall portfolio, providing sufficient liquidity to meet operating requirements, and 
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles.

Table 1 below represents the Agency’s unrestricted investment portfolio by authorized investment 
and duration with a total portfolio amount of $237.9 million. The Agency portfolio excludes cash 
and restricted deposits in the amount of $129.7 million held with fiscal agents, including $57.0
million in capitalized interest and debt proceeds for the RP-5 Expansion Project.

The Agency’s unrestricted investment portfolio yield in August 2023 was 3.636 percent, an
increase of 0.139 percent compared to the July 2023 yield of 3.497 percent. The change in yield is 
attributed to higher monthly earnings yields for LAIF, CAMP, and managed investments.   



Page 2 of 2

Table 1: Agency Portfolio

Authorized Investments

Allowable 
Threshold 
($ million 
or %)

Investment Value as of
August 31, 2023

($ million) Average 
Yield %

Portfolio%
(Unrestricted)Under 1 

Year
1-3 

Years
Over 3 
Years

Total

LAIF*- Unrestricted $75 $26.0 $0.0 $0.0 $26.0 3.434% 10.94%
CAMP** – Unrestricted n/a 90.4 0.0 0.0 90.4 5.520% 37.99%
CBB*** – Sweep 40%   6.5 0.0 $0.0   6.5 0.100% 2.71%

Sub-Total Agency Managed $122.9 $0.0 $0.0 $122.9 4.794% 51.64%
Brokered Cert. of Deposit 30% $0.0 $2.1 $0.0 $2.1 5.259% 0.90%

Medium Term Notes 30% 3.2 9.6 9.0 21.8 3.401% 9.17%

Bank Notes 30% 0.0 1.6 0.0 1.6 5.500% 0.69%
Federal Agency Mortgage-
Backed Security n/a 0.0   0.0 6.5 6.5 4.750% 2.73%

Municipal Bonds 10% 0.3 1.7 0.0 2.0 0.926% 0.82%
Supranational Bonds 20% 0.0 1.7 0.0 1.7 0.520% 0.70%

US Treasury Notes n/a 0.0 39.4 24.0 63.4 2.167% 26.67%
US Gov’t Securities n/a 0.2 15.7 0.0 15.9 0.659% 6.68%
Sub-Total PFM Managed $3.7 $71.8 $39.5 $115.0 2.399% 48.36%

Total $126.6 $71.8 $39.5 $237.9 3.636% 100.0%
*LAIF – Local Agency Investment Fund
**CAMP – California Asset Management Program266
***CBB – Citizens Business Bank
+/- due to rounding

Average days cash on hand is calculated using the monthly ending balance of unrestricted cash 
and cash equivalents divided by disbursements associated with operating expenses, debt service 
costs, and capital expenditures. The average days cash on hand decreased from 282 days to 278
days for the month of August 2023 as shown in Figure 2.  

Figure 2: Days Cash on Hand – 12 Month Rolling Average

Monthly cash and investment summaries are available on the Agency’s website at:
https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/

https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/


Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs 
for the Month Ended August 2023

Alex Lopez

Acting Treasurer

October 2023



Agency Liquidity

2

• Decrease in Cash, Investment, and Restricted Deposits is primarily due to construction costs for the RP-5 
Expansion and other Agency projects. 

• Increase in Investment Portfolio Yield is due to higher monthly earnings yields for LAIF, CAMP, and managed 
investments. 

Description August
$ Millions

July
$ Millions

Increase / 
(Decrease) 
$ Millions

Investment Portfolio $237.9 $241.9 (4.0)

Cash and Restricted Deposits $129.7 $128.8 0.9

Total Investments, Cash, and Restricted Deposits $367.6 $370.7 (3.1)

Investment Portfolio Yield 3.636% 3.497% 0.139%

Weighted Average Duration (Years) 1.60 1.55 0.05

Average Cash on Hand (Days) 278 282 (4)

Monthly cash and investment summaries available at: https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/

https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/


Agency Investment Position

3

Authorized Investments
Allowable 
Threshold

($ million or %)

Under 1 
Year

1 – 3 
Years

Over 3 
Years Total Average 

Yield %
Portfolio % 
(Unrestricted)

Local Agency Investment Fund $75 $26.0 $0.0 $0.0 $26.0 3.434% 10.94%

California Asset Management 
Program n/a 90.4 0.0 0.0 90.4 5.520% 37.99%

Citizens Business Bank – Sweep 40% 6.5 0.0 0.0 6.5 0.100% 2.71%

Sub-Total Agency Managed $122.9 $0.0 $0.0 $122.9 4.794% 51.64%

Brokered Certificates of Deposit 30% $0.0 $2.1 $0.0 $2.1 5.259% 0.90%

Bank Notes 30% 0.0 1.6 0.0 1.6 5.500% 0.69%

Medium Term Notes 30% 3.2 9.6 9.0 21.8 3.401% 9.17%

Federal Agency Mortgage-
Backed Security n/a 0.0 0.0 6.5 6.5 4.750% 2.73%

Municipal Bonds 10% 0.3 1.7 0.0 2.0 0.926% 0.82%

Supranational Bonds 20% 0.0 1.7 0.0 1.7 0.520% 0.70%

US Treasury Notes n/a 0.0 39.4 24.0 63.4 2.167% 26.67%

US Government Securities n/a 0.2 15.7 0.0 15.9 0.659% 6.68%

Sub-Total PFM Managed $3.7 $71.8 $39.5 $115.0 2.399% 48.36%
Total $126.6 $71.8 $39.5 $237.9 3.636% 100.00%



Portfolio Yield Comparison

4



   All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in
   the Agency's Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2023-4-6) adopted by the Inland Empire
   Utilities Agency's Board of Directors during its regular meeting held on May 17,2023

   The funds anticipated to be available during the next six-month period are expected to be
   sufficient to meet all foreseen expenditures during the period.

* A Municipal Water District

TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

For the Month Ended August 31, 2023



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

August July Variance

$2,577,993 $2,258,930 $319,063

Investments
Agency Managed
Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Repurchase (Sweep) $6,443,009 $5,723,992 $719,017
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 26,013,912 26,013,912 - 
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 90,396,203 94,984,325 (4,588,122)           
Total Agency Managed Investments $122,853,124 $126,722,229 ($3,869,105)

PFMManaged
Certificates of Deposit $2,140,000 $2,140,000 $0
Bank Notes 1,642,767 0 1,642,767             
Municipal Bonds 1,945,636 1,945,665 (29) 
Federal Agency Commercial Mortage-Backed Securites 6,495,948 3,819,022 2,676,926             
Supra-National Agency Bonds 1,669,563 1,669,528 35 
Medium Term Notes 21,805,894 20,970,765 835,129 
U.S. Treasury Notes 63,428,048 68,754,313 (5,326,265)           
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities 15,877,188 15,878,350 (1,162) 
Total PFMManaged Investments $115,005,044 $115,177,643 ($172,599)

Total Investments $237,858,168 $241,899,872 ($4,041,704)

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency $240,436,161 $244,158,802 ($3,722,641)

Restricted Deposits
CAMP Water Connection Reserve $29,808,151 $29,107,697 $700,454
LAIF Self Insurance Reserve 6,573,509 6,573,509              - 
Bond and Note Accounts 15,338,680                15,338,680           - 
2020B Construction Accounts 41,691,153                41,639,523           51,630 

20,685,633                21,148,472           (462,839)               

Escrow Deposits 13,072,939 12,718,893 354,046 

Total Restricted Deposits $127,170,065 $126,526,774 $643,291

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $367,606,226 $370,685,576 ($3,079,350)

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

California Employers' Retirement Benefit Trust Account - CERBT (Other Post 
       Employment Benefits - OPEB)

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

CBB Demand Account (Negative balance offset by CBB Sweep Balance) $1,715,487
CBB Payroll Account - 
CBB Workers' Compensation Account 22,788 

Subtotal Demand Deposits $1,738,275

Other Cash and Bank Accounts
Petty Cash $2,250

Subtotal Other Cash $2,250

US Bank Pre Investment Money Market Account $837,468

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $2,577,993

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments
Freddie Mac (FHLMC) $6,443,009

Subtotal CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $6,443,009

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
  LAIF Fund $26,013,912

Subtotal Local Agency Investment Fund $26,013,912

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)
  Short Term $90,396,203

Subtotal CAMP $90,396,203

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $122,853,124

Brokered Certificates of Deposit
Brokered Certificates of Deposit $2,140,000

Subtotal Brokered Certificates of Deposit $2,140,000

Bank Notes
Bank Notes $1,642,767

Subtotal Bank Notes $1,642,767

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Federal Agency Commercial Mortage Backed Security
Federal Agency Comm. Mortage-Backed Security $6,495,948

Subtotal Federal Agency Comm. Mortage-Backed Security $6,495,948

Supra National Agency Bonds
Inter-American Development Bank Notes $1,669,563

Subtotal Supra-National Agency Bonds $1,669,563

Municipal Bonds
Subtotal State and Local Municipal Bonds $1,945,636

Subtotal State and Municipal Bonds $1,945,636

Medium Term Notes
Medium Term Notes $21,805,894

Subtotal Medium Term Notes $21,805,894

U.S. Treasury Notes
Treasury Note $63,428,048

Subtotal U.S. Treasury Notes $63,428,048

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities
Fannie Mae Bank $11,267,428
Freddie Mac Bank 3,471,348 
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,138,412 

Subtotal U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $15,877,188

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $115,005,044

Total Investments $237,858,168

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts
CAMP - Water Connection Reserves $29,808,151
LAIF - Self Insurance Fund Reserves 6,573,509 

Subtotal Investment Pool Accounts $36,381,660

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Bond and Note Accounts
2017A Debt Service Accounts $427
2020A Debt Service Accounts -                                                 
2020B Debt Service Accounts 36                                              
2020B Capitalized Interest 15,338,217                             

Subtotal Bond and Note Accounts $15,338,680

2020B Construction Project Accounts
LAIF Construction Project Accounts $30,624,380
CAMP Construction Project Accounts 11,066,773                             

Subtotal 2020B Construction Project Accounts $41,691,153

CalPERS
CERBT Account (OPEB) $20,685,633

Subtotal CalPERS Accounts $20,685,633

Escrow Deposits
W.M. Lyles Construction $12,275,987
MNR Construction, Inc. 796,952                                   

Subtotal Escrow Deposits $13,072,939

Total Restricted Deposits $127,170,065

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of August 31, 2023 $367,606,226

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of 08/31/2023 $367,606,226
Less: Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of 07/31/2023 370,685,576                          

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease) ($3,079,350)

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Par Cost Basis Term August Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)
Demand Account $1,715,487 $1,715,487 N/A $1,715,487 N/A N/A $1,715,487
Payroll Checking 0 0 N/A 0 N/A N/A 0
Workers' Compensation Account 22,788 22,788 N/A 22,788 N/A N/A 22,788

Subtotal CBB Accounts $1,738,275 $1,738,275 $1,738,275 $1,738,275

US Bank (USB)
Custodial Money Market (Investment Mgmt.) $365,578 $365,578 N/A $365,578 4.83% N/A $365,578
Custodial Money Market (Debt Service) 471,890 471,890 N/A 471,890 4.83% N/A 471,890

Subtotal USB Account $837,468 $837,468 $837,468 4.83% $837,468

Petty Cash $2,250 $2,250 N/A $2,250 N/A N/A $2,250

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $2,577,993 $2,577,993 $2,577,993 $2,577,993

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

Freddie Mac (FHLMC) $6,443,009 $6,443,009 N/A $6,443,009 0.10% N/A $6,443,009
Subtotal CBB Repurchase Accounts $6,443,009 $6,443,009 $6,443,009 0.10% $6,443,009

LAIF Accounts
Non-Restricted Funds $26,013,912 $26,013,912 N/A $26,013,912 3.434% N/A $26,013,912

Subtotal LAIF Accounts $26,013,912 $26,013,912 $26,013,912 3.434% $26,013,912

CAMP Accounts
Non-Restricted Funds $90,396,203 $90,396,203 N/A $90,396,203 5.52% N/A $90,396,203

Subtotal CAMP Accounts $90,396,203 $90,396,203 $90,396,203 5.52% $90,396,203

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $122,853,124 $122,853,124 $122,853,124 4.79% $122,853,124

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)
Toronto Dominion Bank NY $1,065,000 $1,065,000 725 $1,065,000 5.47% 5.44% 10/25/24 $1,064,531
Cooperat Rabobank UA/NY 1,075,000 1,075,000 1093 1,075,000 5.08% 5.08% 07/17/26 1,051,845

Subtotal Brokered CDs $2,140,000 $2,140,000 $2,140,000 5.26% $2,116,376

Bank Notes
Wells Fargo Bank Note $1,645,000 $1,642,746 1081 $1,642,767 5.45% 5.50% 08/07/26 $1,651,891

Subtotal Bank Notes $1,645,000 $1,642,746 $1,642,767 5.50% $1,651,891

Federal Agency Commercial Mortgage Backed Security (CMBS)
FHMS K061 A2 $790,000 $765,683 1257 $767,617 3.35% 4.31% 11/01/26 $752,142
FHMS K064 A2 1,160,000 1,094,206 1291 1,094,920 3.22% 4.98% 03/01/27 1,095,374
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Note 660,000 622,282 1322 622,681 3.24% 4.97% 04/01/27 623,362
FHLMC Multifamily Structured Note 1,025,000 958,535 1379 959,017 3.12% 5.01% 06/01/27 961,271
FHMS KJ46 A1 884,573 884,551 1771 884,552 4.78% 4.78% 06/01/28 876,830
FHMS K505 A2 1,075,000 1,085,737 1778 1,085,477 4.82% 4.59% 06/01/28 1,072,522
FNA 2023-M6 A2 1,100,000 1,081,352 1797 1,081,684 4.19% 4.58% 07/01/28 1,065,282

Subtotal Fed. Agcy. Comm. Mortgage-Backed Securit $6,694,573 $6,492,346 $6,495,948 4.75% $6,446,783

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Par Cost Basis Term August Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon

Investments (continued)

US Treasury Note
US Treasury Note $235,000 $242,022 1824 $236,521 2.13% 1.50% 09/30/24 $227,105
US Treasury Note 595,000                    614,454                    1822 599,548                   2.25% 1.57% 10/31/24 574,640
US Treasury Note 510,000                    521,814                    1789 513,011                   2.13% 1.63% 11/30/24 490,795
US Treasury Note 1,820,000                 1,876,875                 1258 1,840,616               1.50% 0.58% 11/30/24 1,737,531
US Treasury Note 1,445,000                 1,383,587                 1009 1,414,446               1.13% 2.73% 01/15/25 1,368,009
US Treasury N/B Note 1,430,000                 1,357,383                 579 1,363,152               1.50% 4.88% 02/15/25 1,357,383
US Treasury Note 340,000                    335,232                    1475 337,938                   0.25% 0.60% 05/31/25 313,278
US Treasury Note 1,900,000                 1,866,230                 1440 1,885,038               0.25% 0.71% 05/31/25 1,750,672
US Treasury Note 2,050,000                 2,027,898                 1488 2,039,157               0.25% 0.52% 08/31/25 1,871,266
US Treasury Note 990,000                    968,228                    1463 978,690                   0.25% 0.81% 09/30/25 901,828
US Treasury Note 1,600,000                 1,573,125                 1482 1,586,218               0.25% 0.67% 09/30/25 1,457,500
US Treasury Note 435,000                    427,965                    1658 431,517                   0.38% 0.74% 11/30/25 394,762
US Treasury Note 1,910,000                 1,873,218                 1623 1,891,393               0.38% 0.82% 11/30/25 1,733,325
US Treasury Note 2,925,000                 2,845,591                 1489 2,881,216               0.38% 1.06% 11/30/25 2,654,438
US Treasury Note 815,000                    810,034                    1814 812,667                   0.38% 0.50% 12/31/25 738,339
US Treasury Note 1,780,000                 1,751,145                 1699 1,765,530               0.38% 0.73% 12/31/25 1,612,569
US Treasury Note 870,000                    820,995                    1439 839,929                   0.38% 1.86% 01/31/26 785,039
US Treasury Note 1,520,000                 1,466,087                 1486 1,487,964               0.38% 1.27% 01/31/26 1,371,563
US Treasury Note 1,540,000                 1,400,437                 1368 1,449,917               0.38% 2.95% 01/31/26 1,389,609
US Treasury Note 2,345,000                 2,248,910                 1479 2,287,632               0.38% 1.42% 01/31/26 2,115,996
US Treasury Note 2,940,000                 3,257,428                 1822 3,093,836               2.63% 0.43% 01/31/26 2,801,269
US Treasury Note 1,765,000                 1,717,428                 1544 1,736,931               0.50% 1.15% 02/28/26 1,593,464
US Treasury Note 3,110,000                 3,068,088                 1821 3,089,032               0.50% 0.78% 02/28/26 2,807,747
US Treasury N/B Note 1,360,000                 1,359,469                 1664 1,359,699               0.75% 0.76% 03/31/26 1,234,200
US Treasury N/B Note 1,464,000                 1,453,192                 1805 1,457,994               0.75% 0.90% 05/31/26 1,320,345
US Treasury N/B Note 2,120,000                 1,942,947                 1453 1,997,781               0.75% 2.99% 05/31/26 1,911,975
US Treasury N/B Note 890,000                    819,461                    1637 841,523                   0.88% 2.77% 09/30/26 798,497                      
US Treasury N/B Note 1,190,000                 1,086,851                 1604 1,117,654               0.88% 3.00% 09/30/26 1,067,653
US Treasury Note 1,500,000                 1,457,637                 1686 1,468,265               2.25% 2.91% 02/15/27 1,394,531
US Treasury N/B Note 2,115,000                 1,890,281                 1729 1,941,230               0.50% 2.92% 04/30/27 1,836,745
US Treasury Note 1,055,000                 936,436                    1784 962,090                   0.50% 2.99% 06/30/27 911,421
US Treasury Note 3,315,000                 3,142,905                 1804 3,177,248               2.25% 3.40% 08/15/27 3,060,159                  
US Treasury Note 1,965,000                 1,952,181                 1792 1,954,342               4.13% 4.27% 09/30/27 1,946,578
US Treasury Note 1,105,000                 1,120,366                 1788 1,118,072               4.13% 3.81% 10/31/27 1,094,813
US Treasury Note 2,165,000                 1,843,717                 1759 1,887,188               0.50% 3.91% 10/31/27 1,849,722
US Treasury Note 1,925,000                 1,932,971                 1639 1,932,543               3.88% 3.77% 11/30/27 1,889,809
US Treasury Note 2,235,000                 2,145,949                 1750 2,152,157               2.75% 3.66% 02/15/28 2,093,217
US Treasury Note 620,000                    613,122                    1820 613,795                   4.00% 4.25% 02/29/28 612,347
US Treasury Note 2,160,000                 2,158,312                 1795 2,158,427               3.63% 3.64% 03/31/28 2,099,587
US Treasury Note 625,000                    561,694                    1786 565,700                   1.25% 3.52% 03/31/28 546,094
US Treasury Note 1,200,000                 1,194,609                 1826 1,194,972               3.50% 3.60% 04/30/28 1,160,250
US Treasury N/B Note 980,000                    965,032                    1817 965,469                   4.00% 4.34% 06/30/28 968,363

Subtotal US Treasuries $64,859,000 $63,031,307 $63,428,048 2.17% $59,844,433

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities
Federal Home Loan Bank $190,000 $189,327 1,824 $189,939 2.50% 2.58% 02/13/24 $187,497
Fannie Mae Bond 2,055,000                 2,130,234                 1,769 2,076,009               1.63% 0.85% 01/07/25 1,959,323                  
Freddie Mac Bond 1,215,000                 1,214,065                 1,825 1,214,728               1.50% 1.52% 02/12/25 1,153,728                  
Federal Home Loan Bank 950,000                    945,288                    1,824 948,473                   0.50% 0.60% 04/14/25 883,435                      
Fannie Mae Bond 495,000                    496,628                    1,792 495,544                   0.63% 0.56% 04/22/25 460,601                      
Fannie Mae Bond 1,275,000                 1,272,373                 1,824 1,274,138               0.63% 0.67% 04/22/25 1,186,398                  

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Par Cost Basis Term August Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon
Investments (continued)

Fannie Mae Bond 1,425,000                 1,432,296                 1,782 1,427,453               0.63% 0.52% 04/22/25 1,325,974                  
Fannie Mae Bond 240,000                    241,126                    1,716 240,430                   0.50% 0.40% 06/17/25 221,640                      
Fannie Mae Bond 995,000                    996,473                    1,693 995,570                   0.50% 0.47% 06/17/25 918,881                      
Fannie Mae Bond 1,435,000                 1,441,931                 1,778 1,437,553               0.50% 0.40% 06/17/25 1,325,221                  
Fannie Mae Bond 1,480,000                 1,476,936                 1,824 1,478,900               0.50% 0.54% 06/17/25 1,366,778                  
Freddie Mac Bond 895,000                    890,543                    1,824 893,316                   0.38% 0.48% 07/21/25 821,859                      
Fannie Mae Bond 950,000                    945,554                    1,824 948,235                   0.38% 0.47% 08/25/25 869,007                      
Freddie Mac Bond 1,365,000                 1,360,891                 1,824 1,363,304               0.38% 0.44% 09/23/25 1,245,534                  
Fannie Mae Bond 895,000                    891,796                    1,821 893,596                   0.50% 0.57% 11/07/25 814,733                      

Subtotal U.S. Gov't Sponsored Entities $15,860,000 $15,925,461 $15,877,188 0.66% $14,740,609

Supra National Agency Bond
Inter-American Development Bank Notes $1,670,000 $1,668,764 1,096 $1,669,563 0.50% 0.52% 09/23/24 $1,587,534

Subtotal Supra-National Agency Bond $1,670,000 $1,668,764 $1,669,563 0.52% $1,587,534

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

Maryland State GO Bond $250,000 $249,930 1457 $249,984 0.51% 0.52% 08/01/24 $239,022
CA State Dept of Wtr Res 100,000                    100,000                    1578 100,000                   0.56% 0.56% 12/01/24 94,202                        
Univ. of CA Revenue Bond 90,000                       90,326                       1764 90,111                     0.88% 0.81% 05/15/25 83,861                        
Univ. of CA Revenue Bond 205,000                    205,000                    1764 205,000                   0.88% 0.88% 05/15/25 191,017                      
Florida State Board of Admin. Taxable Rev 200,000                    201,414                    1749 200,541                   1.26% 1.11% 07/01/25 186,178                      
Florida State Board of Admin. Taxable Rev 520,000                    520,000                    1749 520,000                   1.26% 1.26% 07/01/25 484,063                      
Los Angeles CCD CA Taxable GO Bonds 375,000                    375,000                    1725 375,000                   0.77% 0.77% 08/01/25 345,840                      
NJ Turnpike Authority 205,000                    205,000                    1792 205,000                   1.05% 1.05% 01/01/26 188,190                      

Subtotal State and Local Municipal Bonds $1,945,000 $1,946,670 $1,945,636 0.93% $1,812,373

Medium Term Notes
Pfizer Inc $1,260,000 $1,276,393 1807 $1,261,540 2.95% 2.67% 03/15/24 $1,242,496

    Amazon Com. Inc. 560,000                    559,182                    1096 559,811                   0.45% 0.50% 05/12/24 541,065                      
    Walmart Inc 1,425,000                 1,495,196                 1768 1,436,349               2.85% 1.78% 07/08/24 1,392,825                  
    JP Morgan Chase 570,000                    570,000                    1461 570,000                   0.65% 0.65% 09/16/24 568,580                      
   Toyota Motor 315,000                    318,078                    1724 315,948                   1.80% 1.58% 02/13/25 299,342                      
   Toyota Motor 425,000                    429,152                    1724 426,279                   1.80% 1.58% 02/13/25 403,874                      
   JP Morgan Chase 555,000                    555,000                    1461 555,000                   0.82% 0.82% 06/01/25 532,919                      
   Pepsico Inc 1,115,000                 1,092,510                 899 1,097,864               3.50% 4.37% 07/17/25 1,084,151                  
   Intel Corp 1,115,000                 1,091,474                 911 1,097,000               3.70% 4.60% 07/29/25 1,083,644                  
   JP Morgan Chase 355,000                    355,000                    1460 355,000                   0.77% 0.77% 08/09/25 337,344                      
   Microsoft Corp (Callable) 560,000                    543,346                    1008 546,881                   3.13% 4.28% 11/03/25 540,504                      
   Bristol Myers 349,000                    345,524                    1606 347,260                   0.75% 0.98% 11/13/25 317,982                      
   Bank of Americ Corp 880,000                    880,000                    1472 880,000                   3.38% 3.38% 04/02/26 845,463                      
   State Street Corporation Corp Notes 775,000                    730,290                    1078 733,899                   2.65% 4.77% 05/19/26 728,342                      
   Microsoft Corp (Callable) 1,100,000                 1,112,199                 1625 1,107,798               2.40% 2.14% 08/08/26 1,031,408                  
   Paccar Financial Corp Note 830,000                    833,818                    1095 833,745                   5.05% 4.88% 08/10/26 832,383                      
   Bank of Americ Corp 720,000                    720,000                    1096 720,000                   5.53% 5.53% 08/18/26 723,748                      
   Mastercard Inc 1,705,000                 1,621,148                 1430 1,635,983               2.95% 4.33% 11/21/26 1,607,636                  
   Target Corp 150,000                    149,745                    1817 149,827                   1.95% 1.99% 01/15/27 137,001                      
   Target Corp 690,000                    689,579                    1810 689,714                   1.95% 1.96% 01/15/27 630,203                      
   Truist Financial Corp 935,000                    817,779                    1824 842,971                   1.13% 3.91% 08/03/27 789,832                      
   Home Depot Inc 1,145,000                 1,079,586                 1688 1,087,879               2.80% 4.17% 09/14/27 1,063,177                  
   Amazon Inc 1,075,000                 1,079,322                 1804 1,078,708               4.55% 4.46% 12/01/27 1,070,976                  
   Walmart Inc 1,330,000                 1,327,034                 1794 1,327,209               4.55% 3.95% 04/15/28 1,288,243                  

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Par Cost Basis Term August Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon
Investments (continued)

   Apple Inc 1,330,000                 1,334,190                 1819 1,333,941               4.55% 3.93% 05/10/28 1,298,569                  
   John Deere Capital Corp 160,000                    162,176                    1827 162,118                   4.95% 4.64% 07/14/28 160,305                      
   John Deere Capital Corp 280,000                    283,802                    1824 283,707                   4.95% 4.64% 07/14/28 280,534                      
   John Deere Capital Corp 370,000                    369,449                    1827 369,463                   4.95% 4.98% 07/14/28 370,706                      

Subtotal Medium Term Notes $22,079,000 $21,820,971 $21,805,894 3.40% $21,203,252

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $116,892,573 $114,668,265 $115,005,044 2.42% $109,403,251

Total Investments $239,745,697 $237,521,389 $237,858,168 $232,256,375
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts
   CAMP - Water Connection Reserves $29,808,151 $29,808,151 N/A $29,808,151 5.52% N/A $29,808,151
   LAIF - Self Insurance Reserves 6,573,509                 6,573,509                 N/A 6,573,509               3.43% N/A 6,573,509                  

Total Investment Pool Accounts $36,381,660 $36,381,660 $36,381,660 5.14% $36,381,660

Bond and Note Accounts
2017A Debt Service Accounts $427 $427 N/A $427 0.00% N/A $427
2020A Debt Service Accounts 0 0 N/A 0 0.00% N/A 0
2020B Debt Service Accounts 36 36 N/A 36 0.00% N/A 36
2020B Capitalized Interest Account 15,338,217              15,338,217 N/A 15,338,217 5.52% N/A 15,338,217

Total Bond and Note Accounts $15,338,680 $15,338,680 $15,338,680 5.52% $15,338,680

2020B Construction Project Account
LAIF Construction Fund $30,624,380 $30,624,380 N/A $30,624,380 3.43% N/A $30,624,380
CAMP Construction Fund 11,066,773 11,066,773 11,066,773 5.52% N/A 11,066,773

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $41,691,153 $41,691,153 $41,691,153 3.99% $41,691,153

CalPERS Deposits
CERBT Account (OPEB) $16,000,000 $16,000,000 N/A $20,685,633 N/A N/A $20,685,633

Subtotal CalPERS Deposits $16,000,000 $16,000,000 $20,685,633 $20,685,633
CERBT Strategy 2 Performance as of July 31, 2023 based on 1 year net return was 0.37%
Escrow Deposits

   W. M. Lyles Construction $12,275,987 $12,275,987 N/A $12,275,987 N/A N/A $12,275,987
   MNR Construction, Inc 796,952 796,952 N/A 796,952 N/A N/A 796,952

Subtotal Escrow Deposits $13,072,939 $13,072,939 $13,072,939 $13,072,939

Total Restricted Deposits $122,484,432 $122,484,432 $127,170,065 $127,170,065

$364,808,122 $362,583,814 $367,606,226 $362,004,433
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits
as of August 31, 2023

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

August Purchases
Par Amount Investment

No. Date Transaction Investment Security Type Purchased Yield to Maturity
1 8/11/2023 Buy Paccar Financial Corp Note Corporate Note $830,000 4.880%
2 8/18/2023 Buy Bank of America Corp Note Corporate Note 720,000 5.530%

3 8/18/2023 Buy FHMS K064 A2
Fed. Agcy. Mortgage-Backed 

Security 1,160,000 4.950%

4 8/18/2023 Buy FHLMC Multifamily Structured Note
Fed. Agcy. Mortgage-Backed 

Security 660,000 4.970%

5 8/22/2023 Buy FHLMC Multifamily Structured Note
Fed. Agcy. Mortgage-Backed 

Security 1,025,000 5.010%
6 8/22/2023 Buy Wells Fargo Bank Note Medium Term Note 1,645,000 5.500%

Total Purchases 6,040,000$

August Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales
Par Amount Investment

No. Date Transaction Investment Security Type Matured/Sold Yield to Maturity
1 8/11/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury $850,000 1.900%
2 8/18/2023 Sell Bank of America Corp Note Corporate Note 725,000 0.810%
3 8/18/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 145,000 0.350%
4 8/18/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 1,495,000 1.900%
5 8/18/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 175,000 1.780%
6 8/22/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 400,000 1.780%
7 8/22/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 590,000 1.780%
8 8/22/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 1,075,000 1.500%
9 8/22/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 410,000 1.780%

10 8/22/2023 Sell US Treasury Note US Treasury 210,000 0.470%
Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 6,075,000$

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
August 31, 2023

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield
CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $6,443,009 0.100%
LAIF - Unrestricted 26,013,912 3.434%
CAMP - Unrestricted 90,396,203 5.520%
Brokered Certificates of Deposit 2,140,000 5.259%
Bank Notes 1,642,767 5.500%
Medium Term Notes 21,805,894 3.401%
Commercial Mortage-Backed Security 6,495,948 4.750%
Municipal Bonds 1,945,636 0.926%
Supra-National Bonds 1,669,563 0.520%
US Treasury Notes 63,428,048 2.167%
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities 15,877,188 0.659%

Total Investment Portfolio $237,858,168
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 3.636%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield
CalPERS OPEB (CERBT) Account $20,685,633 N/A
CAMP Restricted Water Connection Reserve 29,808,151 5.520%
LAIF Restricted Insurance Reserve 6,573,509 3.434%
US Bank - 2017A Debt Service Accounts 427 0.000%
US Bank - 2020A Refunding Bond Accounts 0 0.000%
US Bank - 2020B Revenue Note Accounts 15,338,253 5.520%
US Bank - Pre-Investment  Money Market Account 837,468 4.830%
LAIF Construction Account 30,624,380 3.434%
CAMP Construction Account 11,066,773 5.520%
Citizens Business Bank - Demand Account 1,715,487 N/A
Citizens Business Bank - Workers' Compensation Account 22,788 N/A
Citizens Business Bank - Payroll Account 0 N/A
Other Accounts* 2,250 N/A
Escrow Account 13,072,939 N/A

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $129,748,058
Average Yield of Other Accounts 4.691%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $367,606,226

*Petty Cash

10



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended August 31, 2023
Agency Investment Portfolio (Net of Escrow Accounts)

$354,533,287

Commercial 
Mortgage-Backed 

Security, 1.83%
CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 1.82%

Restricted 
Accounts (net of 
Escrow), 32.18%

LAIF -
Unrestricted, 

7.34%

Medium Term 
Notes, 6.15%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.60%

Other Accounts, 
0.73% U.S. Government 

Sponsored 
Entities, 4.48%

US Treasuries, 
17.89%

CAMP -
Unrestricted, 

25.50%

Supra-National , 
0.47%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.55%

Bank Notes, 0.46%

11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended August 31, 2023
Unrestricted Agency Investment Portfolio

$237,858,168

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 2.71% Local Agency 

Investment Fund, 
10.94%

Bank Notes, 0.69%

Medium Term 
Notes, 9.17%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.90%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.82%

Commercial 
Mortgage-Backed 

Security, 2.73%
U.S. Government 

Sponsored 
Entities, 6.68%

US Treasuries, 
26.67%

Supra-National, 
0.70%

CAMP, 37.99%

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended August 31, 2023
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities Portfolio

$15,877,188

Fannie Mae Bonds, 
70.97%

Freddie Mac Bonds, 
21.86% Federal Home Loan 

Bank Bonds, 7.17%

13



$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

0-30 Days 31-180 Days 181-365
Days

366-730
Days

2 to 3 Years Over 3 Yrs

LAIF+CAMP $116,410,115
CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $6,443,009
GSE+CD+MTN+MUNI+CMBS - $189,939 $3,507,684 $32,302,082 39,497,196 39,508,143
Percent 51.65% 0.08% 1.47% 13.58% 16.61% 16.61%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended August 31, 2023
Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)

$237,858,168

14



1.770%
2.125%

3.636%

1.513%

1.772%

3.434%

3.745%
4.324%

5.519%

2.610%

3.140%

5.520%

0.000%

1.000%

2.000%

3.000%

4.000%

5.000%

6.000%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended August 31, 2023
Agency Investment Portfolio Yield Comparison

Agency Yield LAIF Yield 6 Months T-Bill CAMP Yield

15



    AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’   

REPORTS 

4A



S A W P A 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom): Meeting Access Via Telephone: 

• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/89583380799 • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 895 8338 0799 • Meeting ID: 895 8338 0799 

 

 
 
This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above.  As a convenience to the public, members 
of the public may also participate virtually using one of the options set forth above. Any member of the public may 
listen to the meeting or make comments to the Commission using the call-in number or Zoom link above.  
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Authority from broadcasting the meeting 
to members of the public, the meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without remote 
participation.  The remote participation option is provided as a convenience to the public and is not required.  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in-person. 
 
 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2023 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Bruce Whitaker, Chair)  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, no action may be 
taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by Government Code §54954.2(b). 
Members of the public may make comments in-person or electronically for the Commissions’ consideration by sending them to 
publiccomment@sawpa.org with the subject line “Public Comment”. Submit your electronic comments by 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 
October 16, 2023. All public comments will be provided to the Chair and may be read into the record or compiled as part of the 
record. Individuals have a limit of three (3) minutes to make comments and will have the opportunity when called upon by the 
Commission. 

 
4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 

Pursuant to Government Code §54954.2(b), items may be added on which there is a need to take immediate action and the need 
for action came to the attention of the SAWPA Commission subsequent to the posting of the agenda. 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by the 
Commission by one motion as listed below. 

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

B. TREASURER’S REPORT:  JULY 2023 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

C. TREASURER’S REPORT:  AUGUST 2023 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 
 

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/89583380799


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

October 17, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. SAWPA BUILDING LANDSCAPING REFRESH AND IRRIGATION REPLACEMENT 
REQUEST FOR BIDS (CM#2023.60) 
Presenter:  David Ruhl 
Recommendation:  

1. Direct the General Manager to file a Notice of Exemption for the Landscaping 
Refresh and Irrigation Replacement Project with the Riverside County Clerk’s 
Office, and  

2. Direct the General Manager to issue a Notice Inviting Bids, upon completion of the 
Final Plans and Specifications, for the Construction of the Landscaping Refresh 
and Irrigation Replacement Project. 

 

7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
Recommendation:  Receive for information. 

 
A. CASH TRANSACTIONS REPORT – AUGUST 2023 

Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

B. INTER-FUND BORROWING – AUGUST 2023 (CM#2023.61) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

C. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS/FINANCIAL REPORTING – JULY 2023 (CM#2023.62) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

D. PROJECT AGREEMENT 25 – OWOW FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, JULY 2023 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

E. PROJECT AGREEMENT 25 – OWOW FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, AUGUST 2023 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

F. PROJECT AGREEMENT 26 – ROUNDTABLE FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, 
JULY 2023 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

G. PROJECT AGREEMENT 26 – ROUNDTABLE FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, 
AUGUST 2023 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

H. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
 

I. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
 

J. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 
 

K. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 

L. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

  



SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

October 17, 2023 
Page 3 

 

 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9: one case | PFAS Regional Analysis Phase I Consultant Contract  

 

9. CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call (951) 354-4220 
or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at www.sawpa.org, subject to 
staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
Declaration of Posting 

I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on October 12, 2023, a copy of this agenda has 
been uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office at 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 

 

2023 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/3/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/7/23 Commission Workshop 
2/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/7/23 Commission Workshop 
3/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/4/23 Commission Workshop 
4/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/2/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
5/16/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/9 – 5/11/23 ACWA Spring Conference, Monterey, CA 

June 
6/6/23 Commission Workshop 
6/20/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/4/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
7/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/1/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
8/15/23 Regular Commission Meeting [cancelled] 

September 
9/5/23 Commission Workshop 
9/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/3/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
10/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/7/23 Commission Workshop 
11/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
11/28 – 11/30/23 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

December 
12/5/23 Commission Workshop 
12/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting  
 

 

 

 

 

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


    AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

  REPORTS 

4B 



Tuesday, September 26, 2023
Meeting Schedule

Special Board of Directors - Final

September 26, 2023

10:30 AM

08:30 a.m. PWSCRC
10:30 a.m. Sp BOD
12:30 p.m. Break
01:00 p.m. EXEC 
02:30 p.m. LTRPPBM

Agendas, live streaming, meeting schedules, and other board materials are available 
here: https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. A listen-only phone line is 
available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 891 1613 4145. Members of the public 
may present their comments to the Board on matters within their jurisdiction as 
listed on the agenda via in-person or teleconference. To participate via 
teleconference 1-833-548-0276 and enter meeting ID: 815 2066 4276 or click 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81520664276pwd=a1RTQWh6V3h3ckFhNmdsUWpKR1c2Z
z09

MWD Headquarters Building - 700 N. Alameda Street - Los Angeles, CA 90012
Teleconference Locations:

Covina Irrigating Company • 146 E. College Street • Covina, CA  91723
3008 W. 82nd Place • Inglewood, CA 90305
20 Civic Center Plaza • Santa Ana CA 92701

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board limited 
to the items listed on agenda. (As required by Gov. Code §54954.3(a)

5. OTHER MATTERS

5-1 21-2709Discussion of Department Head Performance Evaluations [Public 
Employees' performance evaluations; General Manager, General 
Counsel, and Ethics Officer; to be heard in closed session 
pursuant to Gov. Code 54957.]

5-2 21-2710Report on Department Head 2023 Salary Survey

09262023 Sp BOD 5-2 PresentationAttachments:

5-3 21-2711Discuss and Approve Compensation Recommendations for 
General Manager, General Counsel, and Ethics Office

Boardroom

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3809
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3810
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a6dfff96-6d1c-4cc4-b8d5-2acb668ad802.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3811


Special Board Meeting September 26, 2023

Page 2 

6. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

NONE

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by 
one or more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors. The committee 
designation appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item, e.g. (EOT). Board agendas may 
be obtained on Metropolitan's Web site https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx 

Writings relating to open session agenda items distributed to Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting 
are available for public inspection at Metropolitan's Headquarters Building and on Metropolitan's Web site 
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. 

Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Board Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to 
ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Boardroom



Tuesday, October 10, 2023
Meeting Schedule

Board of Directors - Final - Revised 2

October 10, 2023

1:00 PM

08:30 a.m. L&C
10:30 a.m. FAIRP
12:30 p.m. Break
01:00 p.m. BOD
02:30 p.m. Bay-Delta

Agendas, live streaming, meeting schedules, and other board materials are available 
here: https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. A listen-only phone line is 
available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 891 1613 4145. Members of the public 
may present their comments to the Board on matters within their jurisdiction as 
listed on the agenda via in-person or teleconference. To participate via 
teleconference 1-833-548-0276 and enter meeting ID: 815 2066 4276 or click 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81520664276pwd=a1RTQWh6V3h3ckFhNmdsUWpKR1c2Z
z09

MWD Headquarters Building • 700 N. Alameda Street • Los Angeles, CA 90012
Teleconference Locations:

City of Fullerton City Hall • 303 W. Commonwealth Avenue • Fullerton, CA 92832
20 Civic Center Plaza • Santa Ana CA 92701
3008 W. 82nd Place • Inglewood, CA 90305

1. Call to Order

a. Invocation: Director Martin Miller, San Diego County Water Authority

b. Pledge of Allegiance: Director Cynthia Kurtz, City of Pasadena

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
matters within the Board's jurisdiction. (As required by Gov. Code 
§54954.3(a))

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

A. 21-2492Report on Directors' Events Attended at Metropolitan's Expense

10102023 BOD 5A ReportAttachments:

Boardroom

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3592
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53dad52e-b148-4ffe-8c7f-d0f0e7cbfd7c.pdf


Board of Directors October 10, 2023

Page 2 

B. 21-2493Chair's Monthly Activity Report

10102023 BOD 5B Report

10102023 BOD 5B Supplemental Report

Attachments:

C. 21-2494General Manager's summary of activities

10102023 BOD 5C ReportAttachments:

D. 21-2495General Counsel's summary of activities

10102023 BOD 5D ReportAttachments:

E. 21-2496General Auditor's summary of activities

10102023 BOD 5E ReportAttachments:

F. 21-2497Ethics Officer's summary of activities

10102023 BOD 5F ReportAttachments:

** CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS -- ACTION **

6. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-2498Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting for 
September 12, 2023 (Copies have been submitted to each 
Director, any additions, corrections, or omissions)

10102023 BOD 6A (09122023) MinutesAttachments:

B. Approve Committee Assignments

C. 21-2742Nomination and Election of nonofficer member of the 
Executive Committee for the remaining two-year term 
effective October 10, 2023 and ending at the January 2025 
Board Meeting. [ADDED ITEM 10/4/2023]

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

Boardroom

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3593
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2b2fd760-7a8e-4014-bb3b-001933ef3fe1.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2ae971b0-081a-426a-af58-d7a8071265c2.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3594
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e10d7d8d-60e0-4db0-a7ff-9f529925434a.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3595
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=49ab1800-218f-49c6-b7c5-7a4a3419ecf5.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3596
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8322fc3d-162a-4936-84a2-cca73b527916.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3597
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24e22f3d-87c0-4bea-b44d-3fe70eefa144.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3598
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0be072cd-262c-4316-a90b-76c87f584fd0.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3842


Board of Directors October 10, 2023

Page 3 

7-1 21-2668Amend the Capital Investment Plan for fiscal years 2022/23 and 
2023/24 to include development of a multi-benefit landscape 
project on Webb Tract and authorize professional service 
agreements with: (1) GEI Consultants Inc. in an amount not to 
exceed $1.5 million; and (2) Environmental Science Associates in 
an amount not to exceed $980,000; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed actions are exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (EOT)

10102023 EOT 7-1 B-L

10102023 EOT 7-1 Presentation

Attachments:

7-2 21-2669Authorize an agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation in an 
amount not to exceed $750,000 for design of new access platforms 
to facilitate maintenance activities on the main pumps at the five 
Colorado River Aqueduct pumping plants; the General Manager 
has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise 
not subject to CEQA (EOT)

10102023 EOT 7-2 B-L

10102023 EOT 7-2 Presentation

Attachments:

7-3 21-2670Award a $4,400,000 construction contract to Bosco Constructors 
Inc. for San Diego Canal Concrete Liner Rehabilitation; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EOT)

10102023 EOT 7-3 B-L

10102023 EOT 7-3 Presentation

Attachments:

7-4 21-2676Authorize up to $6 million in additional funding for member agency 
studies and research under the Future Supply Actions Program; 
the General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA [SUBJECT REVISED 
10/2/2023] (OWS)

10102023 OWS 7-4 B-LAttachments:

Boardroom

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3768
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=de16f2ad-6691-4f42-97cb-2c98042e9ebd.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f784467c-150e-46c5-bd90-6c2e35b20dde.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3769
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=066246d8-7598-49af-af03-06e2b570a6e8.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=57220d10-b94c-433a-b499-ce4df3fbfb43.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3770
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9b10005e-c75d-4afc-8d88-d075ce03faca.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f3ebafb3-67cc-4daf-b383-d24eb5701c07.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3776
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f8d93a7a-629e-4104-bd5b-674127bb5d64.pdf


Board of Directors October 10, 2023

Page 4 

7-5 21-2730Authorize of Cost-of-Living Adjustment for General Auditor; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA. [REVISED BOARD 
LETTER NUMBER 10/4/23] (EOP)

10102023 EOP 7-5 B-L

10102023 EOP 7-5 Presentation

Attachments:

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

8-1 21-2694Report on legal claims alleging equal employment opportunity 
violations; and authorize an increase in the maximum amount 
payable under two contracts for legal services with Seyfarth Shaw 
LLP as follows: Agreement No. 201897 by $150,000 to an amount 
not to exceed $350,000, and Agreement No. 203454 by $50,000 to 
an amount not to exceed $210,000; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA. [Conference with legal counsel – anticipated 
litigation; based on existing facts and circumstances of receipt of 
two legal claims threatening litigation, there is significant exposure 
to litigation against Metropolitan: two potential cases; to be heard in 
closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)] (LC)

8-2 21-2712Report on litigation in Darren A. Reese v. Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, Riverside County Superior Court 
Case No. CVPS2204312; and authorize increase in the maximum 
amount payable under a contract for legal services with Seyfarth 
Shaw LLP in the amount of $350,000 for a total amount not to 
exceed $750,000; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA. 
[Conference with legal counsel – existing litigation; to be heard in 
closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] (LC)

Boardroom

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3830
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0d0591b2-edf9-4275-858c-c0149ea60bf4.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3e24b4e9-caf5-4499-8329-8fcedc506fdc.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3794
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3812


Board of Directors October 10, 2023

Page 5 

8-3 21-2664Receive report on litigation in In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams 
Products Liability Litigation, Master Docket No.: 
2:18-mn-2873-RMG, and provide direction on response to 
proposed settlements in:  (1) City of Camden, et al. v. 3M 
Company, Civil Action No.: 2:23-cv-03147-RMG; and (2) City of 
Camden, et al. v. E.I. DuPont De Nemours and Company (n/k/a 
EIDP, Inc.) et al., Civil Action No.: 2:23-cv-03230-RMG; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA [Conference with legal 
counsel – existing litigation; may be heard in closed session 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)]. [REVISED 
SUBJECT 10/6/23] (LC)

8-4 21-2677Express support for the goals of the Climate Mayors Colorado 
River Conservation Working Group and, by two-thirds vote, 
approve a financial sponsorship of $50,000; the General Manager 
has determined the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA. [REVISED SUBJECT 10/4/2023] (OWS)

10102023 OWS 8-4 B-L

10092023 OWS 8-4 Presentation

Attachments:

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1 21-2499Conservation Program Board Report

10102023 9-1 B-LAttachments:

9-2 21-2696Compliance with Fund Requirements and Bond Indenture 
Provisions (FAIRP)

10102023 FAIRP 9-2 B-LAttachments:

9-3 21-2671Update on review of desalination technologies for potential water 
supply augmentation (EOT)

10102023 EOT 9-3 B-L

10102023 EOT 9-3 Presentation

Attachments:

10. OTHER MATTERS

NONE

11. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

Boardroom

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3764
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3777
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5f2639ef-8aa8-46fd-9840-59e766989057.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=38e4ca7f-026f-4509-90c2-7ab6ea5951db.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3599
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31694379-b505-4c18-b020-71e0f663a0dc.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3796
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0ca8207a-b5bb-4c3b-adda-ff443e3beec4.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3771
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ae51bd03-d778-4eac-8f23-8939dfc00494.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c607f0e9-705e-47f6-9a19-d86a1e7a32e8.pdf


Board of Directors October 10, 2023

Page 6 

NONE

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by 
one or more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors. The committee 
designation appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item, e.g. (EOT). Board agendas may 
be obtained on Metropolitan's Web site https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx 

Writings relating to open session agenda items distributed to Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting 
are available for public inspection at Metropolitan's Headquarters Building and on Metropolitan's Web site 
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. 

Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Board Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to 
ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Boardroom



    AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’   

REPORTS 

4C



 

 

 
Regional Sewerage Program  
Policy Committee Meeting 

 
AGENDA 

Thursday, October 5, 2023 
3:30 p.m. 

 
Agency Headquarters – Board Room 

6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A 
Chino, CA 91708 

Telephone Access: (415) 856-9169/Conf ID: 966 283 115# 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by joining in person or by 

calling the number provided above.  Comments may also be submitted by email to the Recording 

Secretary Jennifer Hy-Luk at jhyluk@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of 

the meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Policy Members. 

 

   

 
Call to Order 
 
Roll Call 
 
Flag Salute 
 
Public Comment 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Committee; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. 
 

 
Additions to the Agenda 

 
 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 

two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 

unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 

need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 
(Continued) 

 

mailto:jhyluk@ieua.org


Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda 
October 5, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

1. Technical Committee Report (Oral) 
 

2. Action Item  
A. Approve minutes of September 7, 2023 Policy Committee Meeting 

Minutes 
 

3. Information Items  
A. Grants Semi-Annual Update  
B. Regional Wastewater Fee Collection  
C. Review of Recycle Water (Oral)  

 
4. Receive and File Items 

A. Building Activity Report 
 

5. Other Business 
A. IEUA General Manager’s Update  
B. Committee Member Requested Future Agenda Items 
C. Committee Member Comments  
D. Next Meeting – November 2, 2023 

 
Adjourn  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECLARATION OF POSTING 

I, Jennifer Hy-Luk, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water District, hereby certify 

that per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the Agency’s main office, 6075 

Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at least seventy-two (72) hours 

prior to the meeting date and time above.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 

meeting, please contact Jennifer Hy-Luk at (909) 993-1727 or jhyluk@ieua.org 48 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:jhyluk@ieua.org


    AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

  REPORTS 

4D 



 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING 

11:00 a.m. – September 28, 2023 
Mr. Jim Curatalo, Chair 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair 
Mr. Bob Kuhn, Secretary/Treasurer 

At The Offices Of 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on any short non-agenda items 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Chino Basin Watermaster. No discussion or action 
can be taken on matters not listed on the agenda, per the Brown Act. Each member of the public who 
wishes to comment shall be allotted three minutes, and no more than three individuals shall address 
the same subject. 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-controversial 
and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate 
discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public requests 
specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate action.  
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held August 24, 2023 (Page 1) 

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  

The monthly financial reports are being redesigned and will be available next month. 
 

C. OBMP SEMI-ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2023-1 
Adopt the Semi-Annual OBMP Status Report 2023-1, and direct staff to file a copy with the Court, 
subject to any necessary non-substantive changes. (Page 6) 
 

 II. BUSINESS ITEMS  
A. 2023 RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06 

Approve the 2023 RMPU as presented, adopt Resolution No. 2023–06, and direct staff to file with 
the Court. (Page 27) 
 

B. BOARD-REQUESTED RECHARGE PROJECT ANALYSIS 
Approve staff moving forward with gathering necessary information and documentation for each    
project to be considered grant-ready and prepare the Work Plan. (Page 202) 

 
 
 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      September 28, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

 
C. INCREASE OF FY 2023/24 DRY YEAR YIELD PROGRAM DELIVERY  

Approve an increase of the annual delivery limit from 25,000 acre-feet to 50,000 acre-feet for Fiscal 
Year 2023/24. (Page 205) 
 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 

1. Court Tour of Chino Basin 
2. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re 

OAP Expenses and Attorney Fees) 
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E080457 (City of Ontario appeal re 2021-22 Assessment Package) 
4. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 

budget expenses to support CEQA analysis) 
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re Challenge to 2022-23 

Assessment Package) 
6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 

 
B. ENGINEER  

1. 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation 
2. Model Update and Required Demonstrations 
3. Ground-Level Monitoring Committee 
4. 2022 State of the Basin Report 

 
C. GENERAL MANAGER 

1. Long Term Planning Efforts 
2. New Staff Member Introduction 
3. Other 

 
IV. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION 
Pursuant to Article II, Section 2.6, of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may 
be held during the Watermaster Board meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action. 

 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER  

 09/28/23    Thu    9:30 a.m. Watermaster Orientation* 
 09/28/23    Thu  11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board 
 10/04/23    Wed   9:00 a.m. Ground-Level Monitoring Committee (GLMC) 
 10/12/23     Thu   9:00 a.m.  Appropriative Pool Committee  
 10/12/23     Thu 11:00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 10/12/23     Thu   1:30 p.m. Agricultural Pool Committee 
 10/18/23    Wed   1:00 p.m. Water Quality Committee  
 10/19/23     Thu   9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee 
 10/19/23     Thu   9:30 a.m.    Recharge Investigations and Projects Committee (RIPComm) 
 10/24/23     Tue   9:00 a.m.    2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation – Scenario Design #1 
 10/26/23     Thu   9:30 a.m. Watermaster Orientation* 
 10/26/23 Thu 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board 

 
* The Watermaster Orientation sessions are held in person with no remote access.  

 
 ADJOURNMENT 



    AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

  REPORTS 

4E 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY 

3550 E. Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA  91761 

OTHER TELECONFERENCE LOCATIONS LISTED BELOW 

October 5, 2023    2:00 p.m. 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

All documents available for public review are on file with the Authority’s 
Secretary located at 3550 E. Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA  91761 

  

Public access is also available via remote teleconference: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09 

-or-  https://zoom.us/   Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101                Passcode: 380557 
Dial-in #:  (669) 900 6833  Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101                Passcode: 380557 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Chino 
Basin Desalter Authority; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.   
Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the CDA Board is prohibited from taking action on non-agendized matters.  
However, Board Members may respond briefly or refer the communication to staff.  The CDA Board may also 
request the Secretary to calendar an item related to your communication at a future CDA Board meeting. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require two-
thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of 
those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 
attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial to be acted upon by the Board at one 
time without discussion.  If any Board member, staff member, or interested person requests that an item be 
removed from the Consent Calendar, it will be moved to the first item on the Action Items 

1.  MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 7, 2023 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

2.  TREASURER’S FINANCIAL AFFAIRS REPORT 
Report by: Michael Chung, CDA CFO/Treasurer 

3.  TREASURER’S REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS 
Report by: Michael Chung, CDA CFO/Treasurer 

 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://zoom.us/


October 5, 2023 – Regular Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 2 of 3 

ACTION ITEMS 

Prior to action of the CDA Board, any member of the public will have the opportunity to address the CDA Board 
on any item listed on the agenda. 

4.  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD FOR CHEMICAL ROOM REHABILITATION 

PROJECT 

Report By:  Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve the contract award to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Cora 
Constructors Inc. for the Chemical Room Rehabilitation Project in the not-to-exceed 
amount of $615,000.00; and 

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to execute the contract and approve authorized 
expenditures up to a not-to-exceed total of $676,500. 

5.  SOUTH ARCHIBALD PLUME PROJECT: AMENDMENT 1 TO WEBB’S AGREEMENT 

FOR DESIGN OF WELL I-11 BOOSTER PUMP STATION PROJECT  

Report By:  Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve Amendment 1 to the professional services agreement with Albert A. Webb 
Associates for engineering design and construction phase services in the not-to-exceed 
amount of $25,447; and  

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to finalize and execute the amendment, with 
subsequent authorizations up to a not-to-exceed total of $203,500. 

6.  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER FOR CHINO II ION EXCHANGE 

SYSTEM COATING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

Report By:  Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve Change Orders in the total amount of $58,010 to the construction contract for 
Capital Industrial Coatings, LLC for the Chino II Ion Exchange System Coating 
Improvement Project for a total revised contract amount of in the not-to-exceed amount 
of $453,268. 

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to execute the contract and approve authorized 
expenditures up to a not-to-exceed total of $480,000. 

7.  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER FOR RO SYSTEMS AND SODIUM 

HYPOCHLORITE STORAGE TANKS IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  

Report By:  Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve Change Order in the total amount of $23,790 to the construction contract for 
Metro Builders & Engineers Group for the Construction of the RO Systems and Sodium 
Hypochlorite Storage Tanks Improvements for a total revised contract amount in the not-
to-exceed amount of $500,438; and 

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to execute the contract and approve authorized 
expenditures up to a not-to-exceed total of $525,000. 



October 5, 2023 – Regular Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 3 of 3 

8.  ADOPTION OF LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND, DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT 

INVESTMENT AND SIGNATORY RESOLUTIONS 

Report By:  Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-05, authorizing investment of monies in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF);  

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-06, authorizing and designating signatories of depository 
agreement, depository cards, deposits, transfers, checks, and withdrawal of funds; 
and 

3. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-07, authorizing and designating signatories of transfer 
documents for the movement of funds and investment securities to safekeeping with 
a third-party custodian. 

 

STAFF COMMENTS 

i. Deputy CDA General Counsel, Allison Burns 
ii. CDA CFO/Treasurer, Michael Chung 
iii. CDA General Manager/CEO, Thomas O’Neill 

CLOSED SESSION 
The Authority may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider litigation matters, personnel matters, or other matters 
as provided for in the Ralph M. Brown Act (Section 54950 et seq., of the Government Code). 

9.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 

CONSIDERATION OF INITIATION OF LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 

CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(4)             (ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

ADJOURN  

One or more committee members will participate from the meeting location(s) listed below: 

303 E. “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764      
5111 Dodd Street, Mira Loma, CA 

Each teleconference location is accessible to the public and the public will be given the opportunity to address the committee 
at each teleconference location. Public comments will be taken on the agenda items at the time the specified item is raised. 

 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodations in order to participate in this meeting or for package materials in 
an alternative format should telephone Executive Assistant Casey Costa at (909) 218-3730, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation.  All accommodation requests will 
be handled swiftly and resolving all doubts in favor of access  Copies of records provided to Board Members which relate to 
any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from Chino Basin Desalter Authority at 3550 Philadelphia 
Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA 91761. 

Declaration of Posting 
I, Casey Costa, Executive Assistant to the Chino Basin Desalter Authority, hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been 
posted by 2:00 p.m. at the Chino Basin Desalter Authority’s main office, 3550 Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA on 
October 2, 2023. 
_____________________________________ 
Casey Costa, Executive Assistant  

 



GENERAL 
 MANAGER’S 

 REPORT 



SEPTEMBER 2023 NOTES: 

 Total stormwater and dry weather flow
recharged was preliminarily estimated at 281
acre-feet.

 Recycled water delivered for recharge totaled
1,711 acre-feet.

 Imported water recharge from MWD, SAWCo,
and CVWD was 7,480 acre-feet. 

 Chino Basin Watermaster will remove 4.2% for
evaporation losses from delivered supplemental
water sources (imported water and recycled
water). 

 Considering evaporation losses, total recharge
was preliminarily estimated at 9,086 acre-feet.

Groundwater Recharge 

Recycled Water Use Agency-Wide Effluent TDS & TIN 

Full Service Imported Water Deliveries 
Summary (FY 2019/20 to 2023/24) 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT OCTOBER 2023 

Imported Water 

Imported Water TDS 
Summary (FY 2019/20 to 2023/24) 

A
cr

e 
Fe

et
 

Recycled Water 



 

 
 

 
 Pulse of the Organization 

Agency Highlights 
* On September 5, Operators looking to advance their certification to Grade 
IV/V attended a 3-day seminar to prepare for the State Wastewater Exam. 
* On September 6, staff attended the 1st Annual Confined Space Rescue 
Rodeo and Symposium at the Rancho Cucamonga All-Risk Training Center. 
* On September 7, IEUA had the distinct honor of hosting Congresswoman 
Norma J. Torres for a tour of the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility 
(IERCF). 
* On September 13, Human Resources hosted On the Menu: Water Use 
Efficiency.  Many thanks to Chris Garcia, Environmental Resources Planner II, 
and the Water Use Efficiency (WUE) team for an informative and entertaining 
presentation.
* On September 14, Engineering staff attended the Metworks Industry 
Day conference in Moreno Valley along with staff from Western Municipal 
Water District and Eastern Municipal Water District. The workshop 
focused on upcoming contracting opportunities with Metropolitan. IEUA 
provided a presentation on their upcoming capital improvement projects. 
*  On September 14, Human Resources hosted their second Career 
Opportunities Open House.
* On September 21, the External and Government Affairs Department hosted 
their third Media Training session– an integral part of our ongoing mission 
to empower our leaders for effective communication when the spotlight is 
on. 
* On September 20, Human Resources hosted our annual in-person Benefits 
Fair.  Employees were able to visit with representatives from our benefit 
providers to learn more and ask questions.  We had over 122 employees 
attend the event. 
* On September 26, a dewatering silo gate malfunctioned, causing around 
50,000 pounds of biosolids to spill onto the truck scale load-out bay. O&M 
staff reacted swiftly, manually closing the silo gate and commencing cleanup. 
Approximately 15 O&M team members joined forces to shovel and remove 
the biosolids, minimizing operational disruptions. Despite the challenging 
task, the team maintained a positive attitude and successfully cleaned up the 
site within 90 minutes. Outstanding teamwork by all.

Bid & Award Look Ahead Schedule 
Active Capital Improvement Project Status 
Emergency Projects 

Engineering & Construction Management FY 2023/24 
Budget Status Update 

Grants Human Resources 

Biosolids/Compost  
 

IERCF Inbound & Outbound

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/0lfx2gkzkg1h6j6es05ci/23228-GM-Report-October-2023-Attachment-1.pdf?rlkey=9dn1y1h74dd1nhr8ljedqk5fs&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/htrk2dcsut166lwe7zvj2/23228-GM-Report-October-2023-Attachment-2.pdf?rlkey=igc0ysawqmrz6ufihltaejodq&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/rws9yv1nbfnjss6lx0b49/23228-GM-Report-October-2023-Attachment-3.pdf?rlkey=c9rn3rdwojnebp6bdpvbvf539&dl=0


  
 

 
 

 Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 
  Project Name 

Projected  
Bid Opening 

Date 

Projected 
Bid Award 

Date 

 Nov-23   

1 PA22003.02  RP-2 Solar Pad Paving Repairs 11/1/2023 11/15/2023 

 Dec-23   

2 PA22003.01  Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station 12/1/2023 12/20/2023 

3 EN24020.00  RP-1 Dewatering Centrate Pumps 11/8/2023 12/20/2023 

 Jan-24   

4 EN24036.00  NRW Manhole Upgrades FY 23/24 12/6/2023 1/17/2024 

5 EN24045.00  RSS Manhole Upgrades FY23/24 12/6/2023 1/17/2024 

6 AM23001.01  RP-4 VFD Upgrades 10/31/2023 1/17/2024 

7 AM23002.01  Recycled Water VFD Upgrades 10/31/2023 1/17/2024 

8 EN21041.00  RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well Passive Overflow Line 11/24/2023 1/17/2024 

9 EN23123.00  RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades 11/9/2023 1/17/2024 

10 RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 2) 11/30/2023 1/17/2024 

 Feb-24   

11 EN21056.00  RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building 12/16/2023 2/21/2024 

12 EN23067.00  Hickory Basin Replacement Monitoring Well 12/15/2023 2/21/2024 

 Mar-24   

13 EN15002.00  1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup 2/5/2024 3/20/2024 

14 EN20051.00  RP-1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab 1/31/2024 3/20/2024 

15 EN21045.00  Montclair Force Main Improvements 1/30/2024 3/20/2024 

16 EN22027.00  RP-1 Repurpose Lab 1/31/2024 3/20/2024 

17 EN23002.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements 2/6/2024 3/20/2024 

18 EN23024.00  RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades 1/19/2024 3/20/2024 

19 EN23100.00  Headquarter B Additional Office Space 2/7/2024 3/20/2024 

 Apr-24   

20 EN22031.00  RP-1 Intermediate Pump Station Electrical Improvements 3/6/2024 4/17/2024 

 May-24   

21 EN21053.00  RP-1 Filter Effluent Structure #2 Rehabilitation 3/10/2024 5/15/2024 

22 EN23004.00  CCWRF Aeration Basins 1-6 Drain Valve Replacements 1/19/2024 5/15/2024 

 

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 



  
 

 
 

   

Agency-Wide 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

1 
EN23034.00 Agency Wide EV Charging Stations                  975         1,100,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

2 

EN21020.00 Oracle P6 Migration and Web Hosting Services 25,561 545,500 Behind 
Schedule 

Consultant 
Contract 
Award 

Once the proposals were received, it was determined that the project would need a capital budget 
augmentation and a new O&M project type created.  Additionally, ISS is reviewing the project scope to 
determine if some of the scope items can be done in house.  The project will be rebaselined once the 
consultant contract is awarded.  

3 EN19051.00 RW Hydraulic Modeling 195,744 702,534 On-time Pre-Design  

4 EN20038.00 Agency Wide Pavement Management Study          231,701             340,000  On-Time Design   

5 
PA22003.01 Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station            72,145             450,000  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Due to design modifications for drainage and coordination with other projects in the vicinity, contractor 
solicitation has been delayed.  The project will be bid under the Small Construction Project Contracts, which 
will partially recover the schedule. 

6 
EN23089.02 Chino Avenue Trunk Critical Repairs            77,836                          -    Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
IEUA is coordinating with Cal Trans, City of Chino, San Bernardino County Flood Control, San Bernardino 
County Public Works, and City of Chino Hills for permitting and reviewing plans. Securing permits has 
caused the schedule to slip. The project will be rebaselined once the construction schedule is received.  

7 AM23001.00 Old VFD Replacement (Wastewater)            28,416         3,840,000  On-Time Construction   

8 

AM23002.00 Old VFD Replacement (Recycled Water)            28,151         3,840,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Project delay was caused by vendors not providing pricing for contractors during the bid phase resulting in 
no bids being received. IEUA then had to negotiate with vendor to obtain pricing and rebid project.  IEUA 
awarded a contract to Big Sky Contractors. No recovery will be made at this point due to supply chain 
issues, but the project will be rebaselined once the construction schedule is received.  

9 EN19030.00 WC Asset Management          159,280         1,087,510  On-Time Construction   

10 EN22005.00 RO Asset Management          166,064         6,382,337  On-Time Construction   

11 
EN22040.00 NFPA 70E Arc Flash Labels          175,835             210,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

12 EN23026.00 RO Assessment Projects            17,903         1,500,000  N/A Project 
Evaluation 

  

13 AM24001.00 IEUA Asset Management Plan - Provide Consulting                       -               200,000  N/A Not Started   

14 AM24010.00 Agency Wide O&M Manual Update                       -           4,100,000  N/A Not Started   
15 EN24033.00 Annular Seals                      -           1,380,000  N/A Not Started   
16 EN22007.00 NRW Asset Management Projects                       -           4,700,000  N/A N/A   
17 EN23021.00 Agency Wide Infiltration and Inflow Study                  420             600,000  N/A Not Started   

18 EN23025.00 Agency Power Monitoring                  543             530,000  N/A Not Started   

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23
On-Time 45 38 42 40 33 32 25 27 25 31 30 33

Behind 17 20 18 13 15 17 16 18 16 17 17 22

Ontime % 73% 66% 70% 75% 69% 65% 61% 60% 61% 65% 64% 60%

Design Schedule Preformance Trend (55)

On-Time Behind Ontime %

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%
100%

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23
On-Time 19 13 15 22 20 22 28 25 28 28 25 22

Behind 9 10 9 10 12 9 10 11 10 8 11 11

Ontime % 68% 57% 63% 69% 63% 71% 74% 69% 74% 78% 69% 67%

Construction Schedual Performance (35)

On-Time Behind Ontime %

Active Capital Improvement Project Status 



  
 

 
 

Agency-Wide (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

19 EN23088.05 RP-1 Biofilter                  855             575,000  N/A Construction   
20 EN24009.00 NRW Collection System Pipe Rehabilitation and Lining                       -           7,500,000  N/A Not Started   
21 EN24010.00 RSS - Collection System Pipe Rehabilitation and Lining                       -           6,700,000  N/A Not Started   

22 EN24027.00 Fall Protection and Prevention Solutions at specified wastewater locations                      -           9,600,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total       1,179,428       55,882,881        

Carbon Canyon  

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

23 
EN24034.00 Agency Wide Roofing Phase IV at CCRWF                      -           1,300,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

24 EN23035.00 CCWRF RAS Header Replacement          137,117             380,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

25 EN23038.00 CWRF HVAC System Upgrade            43,055             257,577  On-Time Pre-Design   

26 EN23074.00 CCWRF Influent Box Rehab at the Primary Clarifiers          141,777             600,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

27 EN23004.00 CCWRF Aeration Basins 1-6 Drain Valve Replacements            99,149         1,500,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

28 
EN23005.00 CCWRF Filter Effluent Sodium Hypochlorite Modification            65,401             112,975  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Project schedule slipped while waiting to obtain additional funding for construction contract award. The 
schedule will be rebaselined once the construction contract award is issued.  

29 EN17006.00 CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements      8,416,546       31,750,000  On-Time Construction   

30 
EN17006.01 CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements       1,187,202                         -    Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The original delay was due to electrical instrumentation availability. Automatic switch gear have been 
installed and substantial completion has been issued. Currently working on final punch list items. No 
recovery is possible. 

31 EN24008.00 930 RW Pipeline Blow Off Upgrades                      -           1,300,000  N/A Not Started   

32 EN24024.00 CCWRF Subsidence Monitoring                    70             700,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total    10,090,317       37,900,552        

Collections/NRWS 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

33 
EN24041.00 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic Modeling                      -                 40,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

34 EN21058.00 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic Modeling            99,724             100,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

35 EN24036.00 NRW Manhole Upgrades FY 23/24               1,822             180,000  On-Time Design   

36 EN24045.00 RSS Manhole Upgrades FY23/24                       -               500,000  On-Time Design   

37 
EN19025.00 Regional Force Main Improvements       3,084,606         4,807,327  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The delay was due to coordination with other IEUA projects and operational constraints. IEUA has finished 
work at Vaults 2 and 6 and is starting work at Vaults 7, 9, 10, and 11. No recovery plan can occur at this 
point. 

39 EN20064.00 NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement       1,222,194         4,572,126  On-Time Construction   

40 EN24023.00 RP3 Regional Sewer Diversion Structure Rehab                       -               800,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total       4,408,346       10,999,453        

  



  
 

 
 

Groundwater Recharge 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

41 EN23067.00 Hickory Basin Replacement Monitoring Well            54,386             653,100  On-Time Design   

42 
EN23113.01 RW/GRW Safety Work Improvements for Basin Gate Actuator Access            97,464         1,020,000  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Project delay was caused by additional scope of work (addition of 8 safety projects).  Additionally, 30% 
design was revised to include a Preliminary Design Report.  Inclusion of Watermaster during PDR review 
also increased the review period.  No recovery plan at this time. 

43 EN21057.00 Recharge Basin Clean-up of Illegally Dumped Materials          343,847             552,978  Behind 
Schedule 

Project 
Acceptance 

Due to heavy rain earlier this year basin availability was delayed. No recovery plan at this time. Scheduling 
of work between basins may be extended due to previous weather. 

44 
EN23041.00 Ely Monitoring Well Capital Project          473,178             600,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Well foundation is required to be demolished and reinstalled causing schedule delays. No recovery plan is 
possible as the project is now complete, and the contractor is finalizing the punch list items.  

45 

RW15003.06 Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Improvements (RMPU PID 23a)    19,003,467                         -    Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Project was extended due to the delayed approval of the pump submittal, traffic control issues, and SCE 
delays. Currently, mitigating the SCE delay by providing contractor with a redesign. No recovery plan at this 
point. IEUA is also reviewing a value engineering recommendation from the contractor which can 
potentially reduce construction costs. 

46 EN21051.00 Ely Monitoring Well          269,864             379,999  On-Time Construction   

47 EN23040.00 Turner Basin 1 Turnout Fencing            54,346               65,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

    Sub Total    20,296,552         3,271,077        

Headquarters 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

48 
FM24008.00 HVAC Upgrades at Headquarters for Indoor Air Quality Improvements               1,012                     100  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

49 EN23003.00 Central Plant Cooling Tower Replacement            90,126         3,000,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

50 

EN23100.00 Headquarter B Additional Office Space            36,145               75,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Design 

Contractor prequalification is currently in progress and the project will go out to bid in January of 2024 
along with EN20051 & EN22027. Projects will be out to bid individually, but by bidding on the projects at the 
same time there is a potential to save cost.  No recovery plan at this point. Project will be rebaselined once 
contractors baseline schedule is received. 

51 EN24030.00 Headquarter B additional Office Space                       -               300,000  N/A Not Started   

52 EN24035.00 CIPO Enhancements FY 23/24                     -                 75,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total         127,283         3,450,100        

Lift Stations 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

53 
EN22053.10 Prado Dechlor/Preserve Lift Station Plant Pax Upgrade               7,571                         -    On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

54 EN22020.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades          420,809         6,762,142  On-Time Pre-Design   

55 

EN23036.00 San Bernardino Ave Lift Station Reliability Improvements          479,239         3,259,752  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design 

Project delays are due to the changes requested by operations and maintenance to the PDR. Due to the 
constraints of the SBLS Wet Well many of the PDR alternatives initially requested are not feasible. IEUA has 
requested the consultant provide additional alternatives for review. IEUA will be reviewing each alternative 
internally and plan to make a final selection to start the design phase of the project. Schedule will be 
rebaselined once the construction contract is awarded. 

56 
EN21045.00 Montclair Force Main Improvements          824,960         8,714,434  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Schedule delay has been caused due to City of Ontario storm drain using the same alignment as our force 
main and the need to evaluate options. IEUA has had a coordination meeting with the City of Ontario. 
Currently, staff is waiting for design elements from Ontario to complete minor design revisions. 

  



  
 

 
 

Lift Stations (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

57 

EN23002.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements       1,744,532       23,109,407  Behind 
Schedule Design 

IEUA has negotiated the MOU with Ontario and it was signed on September 20th and final design is currently 
in progress.  The project will be rebaselined once the construction contract is awarded. The project was 
initially delayed due to City of Ontario review times being extended. No recovery plan can occur at this 
point.   

58 EN23066.00 Preserve Lift Station Improvements            36,645         1,050,000  On-Time Construction   

59 FM21005.02 Prado Dechlor Roofing Assessment            76,659             277,300  On-Time Construction   

60 EN22037.00 Prado De-Chlorination Station Inundation Protection          238,645             380,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

    Sub Total       3,829,060       43,553,035        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

61 EN24028.00 RP-1 Utility Water Piping Asset Management Phase 1               3,145         2,500,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

62 EN24050.00 RP-5 Solids Handling Facility Lease                      -               250,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

63 
EN24029.00 RP-1 Tertiary Asset Management Phase 1               1,566        4,000,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

64 
EN23114.00 RP-1 Instrumentation and Control Enhancement            83,449             170,000  Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 
The draft PDR was sent to the consultant with numerous comments regarding the overall direction of the 
project which caused the schedule to slip. The project direction has been clarified and the final draft of the 
PDR has been received and is currently in the design engineer's court for revisions. No recovery at this time. 

65 EN24032.00 RP-1 Primary Clarifier #1 Through #10 Rehabilitation                  294         2,700,000  On-Time Pre-Design   
66 AM24003.00 AM Planning Development and Documentation               2,604            200,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

67 EN23000.00 RP-1 Device Net Replacement          133,912         4,246,416  On-Time Design   

68 

EN20051.00 RP-1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab          386,988         2,546,161  Behind 
Schedule 

Design 

Conceptual design is finished. Due to specific project requirements for this project, the development of the 
front ends took longer to complete than anticipated which is pushing out 80% design.  The project will go 
out to bid in January of 2024 along with EN23100 & EN20051. Projects will be out to bid individually, but by 
bidding on the projects at the same time there is a potential to save cost. Project will not recover time but 
will be rebaselined once construction contract award is issued. 

69 

EN21053.00 RP-1 Filter Effluent Structure #2 Rehabilitation          480,927         2,589,450  Behind 
Schedule Design 

Final Design is in progress. Due to coordination with the ongoing RP-1 Disinfection Project in the same area 
and investigation of SCADA interface the project has been delayed. Project may recover time once 
construction contract award is issued, and the current construction duration is further evaluated. At that 
time the schedule will be rebaselined.  

70 EN23024.00 RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades            97,563         1,394,353  On-Time Design   

71 

EN23102.00 RP-1 New Parking Lot            58,134         1,248,465  Behind 
Schedule Design 

IEUA is waiting for feedback from Edison on whether the layout is approved, which is causing a delay in the 
schedule. The project obtained external funding from SCE to electrify the parking lot. Because of restrictions 
stated in the grant the layout had to be redesigned. Even if the design is delayed construction will still meet 
its deadline. No recovery plan at this time.  

72 
EN24020.00 RP-1 Dewatering Centrate Pumps          265,943         1,394,353  Behind 

Schedule Design 
The delay in the schedule is due to required permits. Currently finalizing flood district permits and waiting 
on City of Ontario final comments. No recovery plan at this time. 

73 
EN21056.00 RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building          365,283         1,371,732  Behind 

Schedule Design 
90% design is currently in-progress. Design was originally delayed due to additional time needed to optimize 
the location for the new units. No recovery plan at this time. Schedule will be rebaselined once the 
construction contract award is issued.  

74 EN22022.00 RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades          318,650         5,427,944  On-Time Design   

75 

EN22027.00 RP-1 Repurpose Lab         303,309         2,622,730  Behind 
Schedule 

Design 

Conceptual design is finished. Due to specific project requirements for this project, the development of the 
front ends took longer to complete than anticipated which is pushing out 95% design.  After discussion with 
upper management, the project will go out to bid in January of 2024 along with EN23100 & EN20051. 
Projects will be out to bid individually, but by bidding on the projects at the same time there is a potential 
to save cost. Project will not recover time but will be rebaselined once construction contract award is 
issued. AC and installation requirements have increased this project's cost, but this has been taken into 
account in the cost forecast. 

76 
EN22031.00 RP-1 Intermediate Pump Station Electrical Improvements          563,321         9,237,147  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Currently in progress for 90% submittal. Determining the number of VFD’s has delayed the 90% design of 
the project. Schedule will be rebaselined once construction schedule is received. 



  
 

 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

77 EN22044.00 RP-1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase Digester       7,858,330     160,565,672  On-Time Design   
78 EN11039.00 RP-1 Disinfection Pump Improvements       7,414,158       12,997,043  On-Time Construction   
79 EN13016.05 SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1)       5,841,001       38,000,000  On-Time Construction   
80 EN22053.08 RP-1 Headworks Biofilter Media Replacement                  217             100,000  On-Time Construction   

81 EN17042.00 Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs       5,912,102       12,450,161  On-Time Construction   

82 
EN18006.00 RP-1 Flare Improvements       8,164,781        9,200,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The PLC program had delays with the flare supplier, delaying the project’s completion. Additionally, digester 
gas leaks have been identified at the gas blowers which is causing unforeseen delays. No recovery is 
determined at this time.  

83 
EN21042.00 RP-1 East Influent Gate Replacement          545,434             666,117  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The schedule delay was originally caused by the late delivery of the lids and odor control damper. The lids, 
aluminum channel covers, and odor control piping are now onsite. The contractor is scheduled to be back 
onsite in late October to complete the work. 

84 EN23111.00 RP-1 Headworks Bar Screens Improvements          738,956         3,900,000  On-Time Construction   

85 EN22034.00 RP1/RP4 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization          436,697             468,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction Due to issues during testing of the generator, the schedule has been extended. Currently, working on 
integrating into RP-4. No recovery anticipated. 

86 EN13016.06 RP-1 TP Building Water Piping Upgrades            31,196             200,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

87 
EN22041.00 RP-1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement       1,463,399         2,090,941  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Project delay due to additional scope of work (spalling repairs) and additional scope due to errors and 
omissions during design (nozzle extensions and nozzle/hose bib supports).  Hydro-testing issues have also 
caused extended time.  No recovery anticipated.  

88 EN19009.00 RP-1 Energy Recovery                  408        4,325,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total    41,471,767    286,861,685        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 2 (RP-2) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

89 PA22003.02 RP-2 Solar Pad Paving Repairs                       -                 50,000  On-Time Design   

90 EN24026.00 RP-2 UW Valve Installations                       -                 60,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total                       -               110,000        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

91 EN22039.00 RP-4 SCADA Performance Improvement               4,270         1,012,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

92 EN24007.00 1299 RW PS Rehab               1,362         8,800,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

93 AM23001.01 RP-4 VFD Upgrades                    66             960,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

94 EN23088.01 RP-4 Surcharging of Manholes Assessment            76,814             250,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

95 

EN20057.00 RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II          392,237         8,324,536  Behind 
Schedule 

Design 

Final TM1 and construction cost estimate received on September 11th. The construction estimate exceeds 
the total project budget as a result of design and construction duration has been pushed out causing the 
schedule to slip. IEUA plans to request additional funding through the TYCIP process. Project Charter review 
meetings scheduled for review and approval. Schedule to be re-baselined for when construction is awarded. 

96 
EN21041.00 RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well Passive Overflow 

Line 
         577,666         5,543,778  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Project schedule has been extended due to additional potholing being required. Location of buried utilities 
had to be confirmed before finalizing design. No recovery is determined at this time. 

97 
EN23123.00 RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades         298,545         2,587,886  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Project delay was caused by additional scope of work (2 valves, one vault, replacement of gate valves for 
blow-off valves) and longer than anticipated permit review period/response to comments (Caltrans, 
SBCFCD, City of Ontario).  Schedule to be re-baselined for construction.  

98 EN23115.00 RP-4 Headworks Utility Water Addition          163,326             175,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

  



  
 

 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

99 AM24004.01 RP-4 Biofilter Media Replacement                      -                 40,000  On-Time Not Started   

100 EN24031.00 RP-4 Manhole Surcharge Remediation                       -               800,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total       1,514,287       28,493,200        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

10 

EN19001.02 RP-5 New Radio Tower Design-Build              2,004         1,700,000  Behind 
Schedule Project 

Evaluation 

IEUA is waiting to receive confirmation from two state loan groups whether funding will be available which 
has caused a delay in the schedule. IEUA advertised the RFQ on July 6.  The RFQ process will be completed 
by the first week of October. The environmental report is still pending since the RFQ is not a bidding 
document, IEUA will proceed with this step. No recovery is determined at this time. 

101 EN19001.00 RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd  126,773,966     245,030,000  On-Time Construction   
102 EN19006.00 RP-5 Biosolids Facility  170,362,250    205,050,000  On-Time Construction   

103 AM24002.00 REEP Return to Service Condition Assessment                  412             500,000  N/A Not Started   

104 EN24025.00 REEP Return to Service Capital                      -           5,800,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total  297,138,632     458,080,000        

Recycled Water 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 9/28 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

105 EN15002.00 1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup          397,224         1,215,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

106 
EN23119.00 RW SCADA Migration          168,530         4,815,240  Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 
Project was delayed because of the additional scope items discovered during the field investigations.  PC 
and Development are currently in progress. Project may recover time throughout design phase and will be 
rebaselined once construction contract award is issued.  

107 AM23002.01 Recycled Water VFD Upgrades                  501             960,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

108 EN23121.00 1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades            50,064         2,000,000  On-Time Construction   

109 
EN23124.00 1630 East Pump Station VFD Installation          170,525             750,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Delayed due to delayed delivery of VFD mechanical equipment (currently quoted for February 2024).  
Equipment was pre-purchased January 2023 during design. Change order is in progress to update CIPO. No 
recovery anticipated.  

110 EN22058.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-RW          139,999             140,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

111 EN24040.00 WC Hydraulic Modeling FY 23/24                       -                 40,000  N/A Not Started   

112 PL26001.00 Advanced Water Purification Facility               9,392     165,500,000  N/A Not Started   

113 EN16065.00 RW Connections to JCSD            37,949       42,980,905  N/A Not Started   

114 WR23001.00 Replenishing Facilities            14,127     188,000,000  N/A Not Started   

115 WR23002.00 RW Interconnection to the City of Rialto            10,562       59,200,000  N/A Not Started   

116 WR24002.00 6 TAFY AWPF                      -               110,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total         998,873     465,711,145        

    Overall Totals  381,054,544  1,394,313,128        

 

  



  
 

 
 

 

FY23/24 Emergency Projects 
  Project ID Contractor Task Order Description  Location TO # Original Not-to-Exceed /Estimate Actual Cost thru 9/28 Date of Award Status 

Agencywide 

1 EN24019.02 Ferreira Coastal Construction CUIR-046A1 Manhole Repair Agencywide TO-001 15,000 541 8/17/2023 Completed 

Sub Totals 15,000 541     

RP-1 

1 EN24016.01 WA Rasic Construction RP-1 Dewatering Building 12-inch PVC RP-1 TO-002 13,000 4,717 7/23/2023 Completed 

2 EN24017.01 W.A Rasic Construction RP-1 Sinkhole RP-1 TO-001 15,442 43,468 7/10/2023 Completed 

3 EN24019.01 W.A. Rasic Construction 8" Hot Water Loop Line Leak at RP-1 RP-1 TO-003 33,940 0 8/14/2023 Completed 

Sub Totals 62,382 48,184     

RW System 

1 EN24017.02 W.A. Rasic Construction  Level 1 1158 RW Reservoir Power Feed Repair RW System TO-004 46,840 1,367   Completed 

Sub Totals 46,840 1,367     

  September Emergency Project(s) 

Contractor Task Order 
Description  

Details of the 
Circumstances/Cause 
of Emergency 

Scope of Repair Location Date of Call Out Not-to-Exceed 
/Estimate 

None to 
report 

  
    

      

Emergency Projects 


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Consent Item 1E
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Action Item 2C
	Action Item 2D
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D
	Information Item 3E
	Information Item 3F
	Representatives Report 4A
	Representatives Report 4B
	Representatives Report 4C
	Representatives Report 4D
	Representatives Report 4E
	General Manager's Report



